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ITEM 1,

PART 1

Business

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, which can be identified by the use of

words such as “estimalte,

LR oA

project,” “believe,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “seek,” “expect,” “will,”

“may” and words of similar meaning. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited fo:

statements of our goals, intentions and expectations;
statements regarding our business plans, prospects, growth and operating strategics;
statements regarding the asset quality of our loan and investinent portfolios; and

estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits.

These forward-looking statements are based on our current beliefs and expectations and are
inherently subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies,
many of which are beyond our control. In addition, these forward-looking statements are subject to
assumptions with respect to future business strategies and decisions that are subject to change. We are
under no duty to and do not take any obligation to update any forward-looking statements after the date of
this Anmual Report.

The following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from the
anticipated results or other expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements:

general economic conditions, either nationally or in our market areas, that are worse than
expected;

changes in government policy towards farming subsidies, and especially towards the
production of ethanol which is highly dependent upon #2 Yellow Corn, the primary
commodity produced in our market arca;

competition among depository and other financial institutions;

our success in continuing to emphasize agricultural real estate and agricultural and
commercial non-real estate loans;

changes in the interest rate environment that reduce our margins or reduce the fair vatue
of our financial instruments;

adverse changes i the securities markets;

changes in laws or government regulations or policies affecting financial institutions,
inchuding changes in deposit insurance premivms, regulatory fees and capital
reguirements, which increase our compliance costs;

our ability to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth epportunitics;

changes in consumer spending, borrowing and savings habits; .
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) changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the bank regulatory
agencics, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board,

. changes in our organization, compensation and benefit plans;
. loan delinquencies and changes in the underlying cash flows of our borrowers;
. changes in our financial condition or resulis of operations that reduce capital available to

pay dividends; and
» changes in the financial condition or future prospects of issuers of securities that we own.

Because of these and a wide variety of other uncertainties, our actual future results may be
materially different from the results indicated by these forward-looking statements.

BUSINESS OF MADISON COUNTY FINANCIAL, INC.

Madison County Financial, Inc. was incorporated in Maryland in 2012 as part of the mutual-to-
stock conversion of Madison County Holding Company, MHC, the former mutual holding company of
Madison County Bank, for the purpose of becoming the savings and loan holding company of Madison
County Bank. Since being incorporated, other than holding the common stock of Madison County Bank,
retaining approximately 50% of the net cash proceeds of the stock conversion offering and making a loan
to the employee stock ownership plan of Madison County Bank, we have not engaged in any business
activities to date.

Madison County Financial, Inc. is authorized to pursue business activities permitted by applicable
laws and regulations, which may include the acquisition of banking and financial services companies.
See “Supervision and Regulation - Holding Company Regulation” for a discussion of the activities that
arc permitted for savings and loan holding companies. We currently have no understandings or
agreements to acquire other financial institutions, afthough we may determine to do so in the future. We
may also borrow funds for reinvestment in Madison County Bank.

Our cash flow depends on earnings from the investment of the net proceeds we retained from our
initial public stock offering that was consummated in October 2012, and any dividends we receive from
Madison County Bank. We neither own nor lease any property, but pay a fee io Madison County Bank
for the use of its premises, equipment and furniture. At the present time, we employ only persons who are
officers of Madison County Bank who serve as officers of Madison County Financial, Inc, We use the
support staff of Madison County Bank from time to time and pay a fee to Madison County Bank for the
time devoted to Madison County Financial, Inc. by employees of Madison County Bank. However, these
persons are not be separately compensated by Madison County Financial, Ine. Madison County
Financial, Inc. may hire additional employces, as appropriate, to the extent it expands its business in the
future.

BUSINESS OF MADISON COUNTY BANK
General
Madison County Bank is a federally chartered savings bank headquartered in Madison, Nebraska,

which is the county seat of Madison County, and is located in northeastern Nebraska approximately 120
miles northwest of Omaha and approximately 100 miles southwest of Sioux City, Towa. Madison County
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Bank was organized in 1888 under the name The Madison County Building and Loan Association and
has operated continucusly in northeast Nebraska since this date, We reorganized into the mutval holding
company structure in 2004 by forming Madison County Holding Company, MHC, a federally chartered
mutual holding company, which converted to stock form, and was succeeded by Madison County
Financial, Inc. in October 2012,

On a consolidated basis, at December 31, 2012, Madison County Financial, Inc. had total assets
of $267.3 million, net loans of $207.2 million, total deposits of $195.2 million and stockholders’ equity of
$62.1 million.

Our principal business consists of attracting retail deposits from the general public in our market
area and investing those deposits, together with funds generated from operations and, to a lesser extent,
borrowings, in: agricultural real estate loans; one- to four-family residential real estate loans; agricultural
non-real estate loans (secured primarily by crops, livestock and farm machinery) and other commereial
non-real estate loans; multi-family and commercial real estate loans; and consumer loans, We also
purchase investment securities consisting primarily of securities issued by the United States ‘I'reasury,
United States Government agencies, Government sponsored enterprises and municipal securities,
including securities issued by countics, cities, school disiricts and other political subdivisions. Historically
we have not purchased loans, and at December 31, 2012 purchased loans amounted to less than 1.0% of
our total loan portfolio,

Qur business is highly dependent upon the economy in our market area, which is the northeastern
Nebraska counties of Antelope, Cedar, Boone, Knox, Madison, Pierce and Stanton, and on the profitable
farm operations in our market area. Most of the farming in our market ares is dependent upon corn,
soybeans and livestock, Most specifically, the crop on which our local economy is most dependent is #2
Yellow Corn which is used in the production of ethanol, a renewable fuel, and to feed farm animals to
produce meat. To a lesser extent, #2 Yellow Corn is used to produce high fructose corn syrup (commonly
used as a sweetener in cereals, soda and other foods) and distillers’ grains, To a much lesser extent, our
economy is dependent upon mamufacturing (including steel production and fabrication), meat packing
activity, healthcare, and education. Most of this industry is located in Norfolk, Nebraska, which is
approximately 15 miles from our headquarters in Madison, Nebraska, and is the regional economic hub
and predominant location for medical, financial and retail services for northeast Nebraska.

In recent years, the farming economy in our market area has thrived and, as a result, most
segments of our market area have not experienced the economic decline that has affected many parts of
the country since the recession of 2008. We have experienced increased demand in recent years for our
most important crop, #2 Yellow Corn, as a result of several factors, Specifically, federal government
policies have provided incentives and subsidics for the production of ethanol, an alternative energy source
to crude oil, which bhas increased demand for #2 Yellow Corn which is used in ethanol production,
Additionally, a strong export market, sustained in part by a weak dollar, has added to the ongoing demand
for this crop. As a result of these factors, the average gross profit margin for a bushel of #2 Yellow Corn
continued to be at consistently high levels in 2012 resulting in increased profits for many of our
agricultural borrowers.

We belicve that our cxpertise in our market area in northeastern Nebraska, and particularly in
agricultural real estate and agricultural non-real estate lending, has enabled us historically to compete
effectively with larger financial institutions in our market area which have access to greater resources. We
expect that our most significant lending activities will continue to be loans secured by agricultural real
estate, agricultural and commercial non-real estate, one- to four-family residential real estate, and
commercial and multi-family real estate.
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Our websile address s www.madisoncountybank.com. Information on this website should
not be considered a part of this Annual Report.

Market Area and Competition

Madison, Nebraska is located in the northeastern part of Nebraska, approximately 120 miles
northwest of Omaha and 100 miles southwest of Sioux City, Iowa. Our market area is primarily rural in
nature with the economy supported by agriculture (primarily corn, soybeans and livestock production),
manufacturing (including steel production and fabrication), meat packing, healthcare, and education.

Norfolk, Nebraska, where we maintain one of our branch offices, is approximately 15 miles from
our headquarters in Madison, Nebraska and is the regional economic hub and predominant location for
medical, financial and retail services for northeast Nebraska, Large employers in the Norfolk area include
Nucor Corporation, a national steel manufacturing company, Affiliated Foods and Faith Regional Health
Services.

We provide financial services to individuals, families and businesses through our six banking
offices located in the Nebraska counties of Cedar, Boone, Knox, Madison and Pierce, Our principal
business consists of attracting retail deposits from the general public in our market area and investing
those deposits, together with funds generated from operations and borrowings, in agricultural real estate
loans, onc- to four-family residential real estate loans, agricultural and commercial non-real estate loans,
commcreial and multi-family real estaie loans, and, to a much lesser extent, consumer loans. We also
purchase investment securities consisting primatily of securities issued by the United States Treasury,
United States Government agencies, Government sponsored enterprises and municipal securities,
including securities issued by counties, cities, school districts and other political subdivisions.

We are highly dependent upon on our executive management team, and especially our President
and Chief Executive Officer, David J. Warnemunde, who has been employed by Madison County Bank
since 1992 and has served in his current positions since 1994.

Madison County Bank’s executive offices are located at 111 West Third Street, Madison,
Nebraska 68748, Our telephone number at this address is (402) 454-6511. Our websiie address is
www.madisoncountybank.com. Information on our website is not incorporated into this Annual Report
and should not be considered part of this Annual Report.

We face competition within our market area both in making loans and attracting deposits. Our
market area has a concentration of financial institutions that include large money center and regional
banks, community banks and credit unions. Additionally, we face strong competition for our agricultural
lending from the Farm Credit Services of America, a division of the Federal Farm Credit System, a
Government-sponsored enterprise, as well as Metropolitan Life Insurance Company. As of June 30,
2012, based on the most recent available FDIC data, our market share of deposits represented 10.3% of all
FDIC-insured deposits in Madison County and 8.7% of FDIC-insured deposits in Cedar, Boone, Knox,
Madison and Pierce Counties, Nebraska, collectively.

Lending Activities

Our principal lending activity is originating agricultural real estate loans, one- to four-family
residential real estate loans, agricultural and conumercial non-real estate loans and commercial and multi-
famuly real estate loans. To a much lesser extent, we originate consumer loans, including automobile
loans. As a long-standing comnunity lender, we believe that our knowledge of the local farming
community allows us to compéte effectively in both residential and commercial lending, éspecially

{Clients/1483/001584388.DOC/ } 4




agricultural lending, by emphasizing superior customer service and local underwriting, which we believe
differentiates us from larger commercial banks in our primary market area.

{Clients/1483/03184388.DOC/ } 5




9 {120Q 88EPITO0/ERFT ST}

Afean23dsar “g007 PWR 60T ‘010T ‘1107 *Z10T ‘1€ Oquisoa( JO 58 091§ Pue 0f 095$ ‘129% ‘6$1% Jo WNCWE AU} Ul S{ES 10} PRy SUeO[ sopnpu| (1)

TITST 8 OF6LST § 3l S FITosl 3 STCLOC 5 g Ssweo] (210
1897 0¢ @ e meyr — S2550] TBO| O} STUBMOTY
%OUTOL - 268051 § %0000T 956091 S %00GOT  00SC8T $  %0000T 165661 § 2400001 LSTTIT
T atet 0ve FIFT Tre [ TArS [ TS5 TeT LY SABO] INMSHO] )
$L1T 618'7¢ 281 269°TE PI0T 096°LE 20°FT 0es'or 9T¢T 119°¢¢ TSRO $)R)SD
[EAI-UOT [BIARTINICS POR [EIHONEY
0901 166'¢1 0£Cl 6Ls1 SO'TI 9672 £E8°0T LEXTT 666 SOTIE "o AU - PO [HIORIE])
L69T T69°0F E184 18F0F 06’12 SHOF 5661 SE0'8¢ oLl £C19% "y IeBuepISa %Eﬂ.aa o -augy
%FEgE ISELS §  %LE6E TLEES  § %08TH gIFs6L  §  %S0EF PE'Es § %05SH 69596 ¢ T Ry !
SR S1else [BRg
(spursnox} oy saEqIe) '
JEIR] Jonouny H_.-m.ﬁ.hw.m BL LTRSS I3 wﬂ-—@.ﬂd« JLIEASER | Jamonry” JHedday JUnonry
00T 600 0rez 1z {4
T¢ 19quIadaq Iy
"PRIBOTPUL S93ED 2] 1B URO]

Jo 244 Aq ‘ores 03 pleY sueo] Surpnyout ‘ofoyiiod weo[ M0 Jo ToNIsOdmos 31y) TPIOJ. $198 9B} SUIMO[O] Y], “woyisoduio)) o1jofiio uvo’y



L L /DO 28 £r 8100/ EaFT/muRT D}

%LlS 5T §  %o9's LF S TTRRRY
czs TFIER — - T puofeq P 707
95°¢ PIHge _ _ e O O e
6Z% ST L L6T T mmm—— ClE 9 3102
g6F T6ETT £LS $66°7 TLIHE O 910T
| B TEIE 166 8611 B3 1114
£F 09 o ¢19 2 i
209LY 82°1F g %rot 189 D 1 11
TE TPURo] SmpuE
BIER 7, ) SuLmngy sncy
(spuesnoy) m sIeogr)
ey oY ey nnoury
IFRIANY aBexaay _
PNTIM pAaIBRM
el SOEO] JDTWNSTO )
p Aty TIOEE §  %bss SOCIT 5 %8LE TII3E 5§ %ITs I 5T RIL
- = 89 ) 19°5 0FEoT TS 8L6LS PU0A3q pue §707
v A ¥R TE6°S g L66'6 e LPTIT T ATOT 01 £T0T
b £98% £:89 £Te'e £re 0619 105 L9901 TTIOT A R0T
'y 9L8'G 3F'c 119 [y 0L0°L 9zs LPLT - TLI0E M BI0T
60°S L' §6'S 223 2 4 LTT 3 90 7 IO
S8t SFT'y AN 4 SL 209 I£2 L5 LE6 ¥I0T ;
%Iy 207§ %I§s SOET % w%rTS 881§ %STF L e 3114 '
Tt Bqmesa{ supug
srea X e Burmey 0
ey VRO 0wy HINOTWTY ey Junowy ey JunowEy
aBerany IfeIaAy aferoay aiuxaay
PAYBIA, PAYERM PRIESIaMm PGSR
(spuesnony 1 saefoq)
SHEO] 3J1)53 FURO] 218152 (221 SUEOf SUEO]
[B3J-TOU [RI2INININ AeE-nmua eSS [BAT [ELMAPIST 3JE3Sa pead TRy noLISy
pue ferxmmatidy PUE [ERIIII 0T Apumej-amoy 0] sy

ISP At sl Tet)oy syueuIdedaxd 1o 109330 o 1o Surotzdad 108[ol 10U S30P PUE SSULINIBT [21J0RINI0s syuasald ojqe; o 'sso[ JO Teaf ouo
u shp 31aq st pajIodal a1 SU20] JEIPISAO PUR ‘AILINEUL 10 S[apeyos JuatnAedas POIR)S OU FUEART] SURO[ ‘SUBO] PUBTE] 710 ‘1§ 2qUIada(] 18
“aTes 10 P[OY surO] SUIpNoUL ‘ofopuod WO 18303 N0 JO SATLIGETH [PMOBITIOS ) TIOJ SI9s 91423 SULMOT[O] N1 “SPRLIMIVTY [PHIIDIIN0)



The following table sets forth our fixed- and adjustable-rate loans, including loans held for sale,
at December 31, 2012 that are contractually due after December 31, 2013.

Due After December 31, 2013
Fixed Adjustable Total
{In thousands)

Real cstate loans:

ABOUMUITAL oo et n s s ar b aes L] 44392 § 40150 § 93,542
One- to four-family residential.. 17,472 16,804 34,276
Commercial and multi-family ......... 7214 11,626 18,900
Agticultural and cotnumergial noa-real estate oans... 12,276 7,214 19,594
Consmumer J0ans .o i 3.659 410 4,064

Total loans § 85073 § 85304 3__ 170377

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. Our lending is subject to written, non-discriminatory
underwriting standards and origination procedures. Decisions on loan applications are made on the basis
of detailed applications submitted by the prospective borrower and property valuations. Our policies
require that for all real estate loans that exceed $1.0 million, property valuations must be performed by
independent state-licensed appraisers approved by our board of directors. For real estate loans of $1.0
million or less, such property valuations may be supported by either an independent appraisal or an
evaluation conducted by bank personnel authorized by the board of directors, The loan applications are
designed primarily to determine the borrower’s ability to repay the requested loan, and the more
significant items on the application are verified through vse of credit reports, financial statements and tax
refurns. We will also evaluate a guarantor when a guarantee is provided as part of the loan.

Pursuant to applicable law, the aggrogate amount of loans that we are permitied to make to any
one borrower or a group of related borrowers is generally limited to 15% of Madison County Bank’s
unimpaired capital and surplus (25% if the amount in excess of 15% is secured by “readily marketable
collateral” or 30% for certain residential development loans). At December 31, 2012, our largest credit
relationship consisted of several loans which totaled $6.8 million and were secured by agricultural real
estate. At December 31, 2012, these loans were performing in accordance wiih their repayment terms,
Our second largest relationship at this date consisted of several loans totaling $6.7 million and were
secured primarily by agricultural real estate and agricultural non-rcal estatc, At December 31, 2012, these
loans were performing in accordance with their repayment terms.

Our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Vice President each have approval
authority of up to $150,000 for all types of loans and subordinate loan officers have loan authority
ranging from $25,000 to $100,000 for all loans. Loans above the amounts authorized to our President and
Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Vice President require approval by the Loan Committee, which
consists of our President and Chief Executive Officer, our Senior Vice President and Treasurer and our
chief in-house evaluator, which may approve loans up to our legal lending limit. Loans which exceed a
loan officer’s authority amount require approval of the Loan Cormittee. Additionally all loan rencwals
and extensions, regardless of amount and whether or not they are within an officer’s authority, are
submitted to the Loan Committee for action. Loan Committee actions are reported at the next board
meeting following approval. Aggregate credit exposure in oxcess of our legal lending limit (15% of
Madison County Bank’s unimpaired capital and surplus) must be approved by a majority of our board of
directors.

Generaily, we require title insurance on our real estate loans as well as fire and extended coverage
casualty insurance in amounts at least equal to the principal amount of the loan or the value of
improvements on the property, depending on the type of loan. We also require flood insurance if the
~ improved property is detenmined to be in a flood zone area. We do not always require federal crop
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insurance or hail insurance, or an assignment of the proceeds of such insurance, on our agricultural non-
real estate loans; however, the majority of our borrowers obtain such insurance,

Agricultural Real Estate Lending. At December 31, 2012, $96.6 million, or 45.5% of our total
loan portfelie including leans held for sale, consisted of agricultural real estate loans which are loans to
finance the acquisition, development or refinancing of agricultural real estate. We consider a number of
factors in originating agricultural real estate loans. We evaluate the qualifications and financial condition
of the borrower, including credit history, profitability and expertise, as well as the value and condition of
the agricultural property securing the loan. When evaluating the qualifications of the borrower, we
consider the financial resources of the borrower, the borrower’s experience in owning or managing
similar property and the borrower’s payment history with us and other financial institutions. In
evaluating the property securing the loan, the factors we consider include the net operating income of the
mortgaged property before debt service and depreciation, the ratio of the loan amount to the appraised
value of the mortgaged property and the debt service coverage ratio (the ratio of net operating income to
debt service).

We offer both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate agricultural real estate loans. At December 31, 2012,
47.1% of our agricultural real estate loans had fixed rates of interest. Generally, our agricultural real
estate loans amortize over periods not in excess of 21 years and have a loan-to-value ratio of 70%,
although we will originate such loans with a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 80%. Tn recent vears, with
the substantial increases in the price of the agricultural real estate in our market area, consistent with our
conscrvative underwriting practices, the loan-to-value ratio on the majority of our agricultural real estate
leans has not exceeded 60%.

We also originate agricultural real estate loans directly and through programs spensored by the
Farmers Home Administration, an agency of the United States Department of Agriculture (“FmHA™),
which provides a partial guarantee on loans underwritten to FmHA standards.

Agricultural real estate [ending generally gives us the opportunity to sarn yields higher than those
obtainable on conforming, fixed-rate one- to four-family residential loans that we sell in the secondary
market. However, agricultural real estate lending involves greater risk than one- to four-family residential
real estate loans because these loans generally are for larger amounts than one- to four-family residential
real estate loans. In addition, the repayment of agricultural real estate loans generally depends on the
successful operation or management of the farm propertics securing the loans, The ability to repay an
agricultural real ostate loan also may be affected by many factors outside the control of the borrower.

Additionally, on a limited basis, we provide financing for part-time farmers and their primary
residences. These loans are for customers who derive the majority of their income from non-farming
sources, but do derive a portion of their income from the property they are financing,

Weather presents one of the greatest risks to agricultural rcal estate lending as hail, drought,
floods, or other conditions, can severely limit crop yields and thus impair loan repayments and the value
of the underlying collateral. Farmers can reduce this risk with a variety of insurance optiens that can help
to ensure the timely repayment of loans. For instance, farmers are able to obtain multi-peril crop
insurance coverage through a program partially subsidized by the Federal Government. Grain and
livestock prices also present a risk as prices may decline prior to sale resulting in a failure to cover
production costs. These risks may be reduced by farmers with the use of futures contracts or options to
mitigate price risk. Another risk is the uncertainty of government programs and other regulations. During
periods of low commodity prices, the income from government programs can be a significant source of
cash to make loan payments and if these programs are discontinued or significantly changed, cash flow
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problems or defaults could result. Finally, the success of many farms depends on the presence of a limited
number of key individuals.

At December 31, 2012, our largest agricultural real estate loan had a principal balance of $1.0
million and was performing in accordance with its repayment terms.

Our agricultural real estate loans present an additional risk as a significant number of our
borrowers with these types of loans may qualify for relief under 11 U.S.C. Section 1201 et seq. of the
United States Bankruptcy Code (gencrally known as Chapter 12-Adjustment of Debts of a Family Farmer
or Fisherman with Regular Annual Incomne) (“Chapter 12”). Chapter 12, which was enacted by Congress
in response to the recession in agriculture in 1986, is designed specifically for the reorganization of
financial obligations of family farmers.

Pursuant to Chapter 12, a family farmer may be permitted through an order of the Bankruptey
Couri to modify a loan with Madison County Bank without our consent, including the following types of
modifications: (1) the sale of a portion of the property that serves as collateral for a loan (typically grain
or livestock) and the use of the cash proceeds for the borrower’s operating expenses (which reduces the
overall value of our collateral securing the loan); (2) non-payment by the borrower of unsecured
indebtedness; (3) a reduction in the amount of the loan to the current fair market value of secured
property; (4} establishing a repayment schedule which extends the original repayment schedule for the
loan; and (5) establishing a lower interest rate on the unpaid balance of the loan.

At December 31, 2012, we believe that borrowers would have qualified for relief under Chapter
12 for approximately $82.4 million of our loans. Although we have had exposure to Chapter 12 since its
enactment, since 1992 we have experienced only one agricultural real estate loan, with a principal balance
of $90,000, which we were required to modify involuntarily under Chapter 12. This modification, which
occurred in 2009, required us to modify the interest rate on the loan from 7.15% to a then market-rate of
5.25%. At the time of this modification and at December 31, 2012, this loan was performing, and we did
not account for this loan as a troubled debt restructuring.

One- to Four-Family Residential Real Estate Lending. At December 31, 2012, $36.1 million,
or 17.0% of our total loan portfolio, including loans held for sale, consisted of loans secured by one- to
four-family real estate.

We originate both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate one- to four-family residential real estate loans
with terms of up to 30 years. On a very limited basis, we will make a one- to four-family residential real
estate loan with a 31-year term for individuals who are constructing a house, with interest-only payments
for the first year of the loan. At December 31, 2012 such loans totaled less than $1.0 million.

We generally limit the loan-to-value ratios of our one- to four-family residential mortgage loans
to 80% of the sales price or appraised value, whichever is lower. Loans with certain credit enhancements,
such as private mortgage insurance, may be made with loan-to-value ratios up to 95%.

Our fixed-rate, one- to four-family residential real estate loans are generally underwritten
according (o the guidelines of the Mortgage Partnership Finance program, a division of the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Topeka (“FHLB-Topeka”). We generally originate both fixed- and adjustable-rate one- to
four-family residential real estate loans in amounts up to the maximum conforming loan limits as
established by the Federal Housing Finance Agency which, as of December 31, 2012, was generally
$417,000 for single-family homes in our market area. We have historically sold all of our originations of
conforming fixed-rate, one- to four-family residential real estate loans with terms of greater than 15 years,

“and in recent years the Mortgage Partnership Finance program has purchased these loans. Wealso™ - '
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originate loans above the lending limit for conforming loans, which are referred to as “jumbo loans.”
Virtually all of our one- to four-family residential real estate loans are secured by properties located in our
market area. On a limited basis we have made to our existing customers one- to four-family residential
real estate loans out of our market area.

The fixed-rate, one- to four-family residential real estate loans that we do not sell have terms of
15 years or less.

Our adjustable-rate, one- to four-family residential real estate loans generally have fixed rates of
interest for initial terms of 10 years, and adjust annually or every 5 years thereafter at a margin, which in
recent years has been 3.5% above either the 1 Year Constant Maturity Treasury Rate (CMT) or the 5 Year
CMT. The maximum amount by which the interest rate may be increased or decreased is generally 3.0%
per adjustrent period and the lifetime interest rate cap is generally 10% over the initial interest rate of the
loan. Our adjustable-rate loans carry terms to maturity of up to 30 years.

Although adjustable-rate one- to four-family residential real estate loans may reduce our
vulnerability to changes in market interest rates because they periodically reprice as interest rates
increase, the required payments due from the borrower also increase (subject to rate caps), increasing the
potential for default by the borrower. At the same time, the ability of the borrower to repay the loan and
the marketability of the underlying collateral may be adversely affected by higher intercst rates. Upward
adjustments of the contractual interest rate are also limited by the maximum periodic and lifctime rate
adjustments permitted by our loan documents. Moreover, the inlerest rates on many of our adjustable-rate
loans do not adjust for up to 10 years after origination. As a result, the effectiveness of adjustable-rate
one- to four-family residential real estate loans in compensating for changes in market interest rates
would be limited during periods of rapidly rising interest rates.

Except on a very limited basis on the initial one-year construction period of a 31 year one- to
tour-family residential real estate loan, we do not offer “interest only” mortgage loans on permanent one-
to four-family residential real estate loans (where the borrower pays interest for an initial period, after
which the loan converts to a fully amortizing loan). We also do not offer one- to four-family residential
real estate loans that provide for negative amortization of principal, such as “Option ARM” loans, where
the borrower can pay less than the interest owed on the loan, resulting in an increased principal balance
during the life of the loan, We generally do not offer “subprime loans™ on one-to four- family residential
real estate loans (i.e., loans to borrowers with weakened eredit histories typically characterized by
payment delinquencics, previous charge-offs, judgments, bankrupicies, or borrowers with questionable
repayment capacity as evidenced by low credit scores or high debt-burden ratios), or “Alt-A” (i.e., loans
to borrowers with better credit scores who borrow with alternative documentation such as little or no
verification of income).

We actively monitor our interest rate risk position to determine the desirable level of investment
in fixed-rate mortgage loans. Depending on market intercst rates and our capital and liquidity position,
we may retain all of our newly originated longer-term fixed-rate residential mortgage loans, or we may
sell all or a portion of such loans in the secondary mortgage market. We have historically sold, and
expect that we will continue to sell in the near future, subject to market conditions, all of the conforming
fixed-rate, one- to four-family residential real estate loans that we originate with terms of greater than 15
years to the Mortgage Partnership Finance, a division of the FHLB-Topcka, with servicing retained, or to
other third-party purchasers with servicing rcleascd.

Agricultural and Commercial Non-Real Estate Lending. At December 31, 2012, $53.6 million,
or 25.3% of our Joan portfolio, including loans held for sale, consisted of agricultural and commercial
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Agricultural non-real estate loans, which totaled $43.6 million at December 31, 2012, include
seasonal crop operating loans that are used to fund the horrower’s crop production operating expenses;
livestock operating and revolving loans used to purchase livestock for resale and related livestock
production expense; and loans used to finance the purchase of machinery, equipment and breeding stock.

Agricultural non-real estate loans are originated with adjustable- or fixed-rates of interest and
generally for terms of up to 15 months. In the case of agricultural non-teal estate loans secured by
breeding livestock and/or farm equipment, such loans are originated at fixed-rates of interest for a term of
up to seven years. At December 31, 2012, the average outstanding principal balance of our agricultural
non-real estate loans was $77,000, excluding lines of credit with $0 balances at this date. At December
31, 2012, our largest agricultural and commercial non-real estate loan had a principal balance of $1.1
million, was secured by farm assets and was performing in accordance with its ropayment terms. At this
date, we had no agricultural non-real estate loans which were non-performing.

Borrowers of agricultural and commercial non-real estate loans are required to supply current
financial statements and tax returns. Additionally, some borrowers are required to produce cash flow
projections which are updated on an annual basis. In addition, on larger loans, the loan officer respongible
for the loan and/or Madison County Bank’s in-house evaluator will perform an annual farm visit, obtain
financial statements and perform a financial review of the loan.

Our commercial non-real estate loans, which totaled $10.1 million at December 31, 2012, consist
of torm loans as well as regular lines of credit and revolving lines of credit to finance short-term working
capital peeds like accounts receivable and inventory. Qur commercial lines of credit generally have
adjustable interest rates and may be secured or unsecured. We generally obtain personal guarantees for
all commercial business loans. Business assets such as accounts receivable, inventory, equipment,
furniture and fixtures may be used to secure lines of credit. Qur lines of credit typically have a maximum
term of 12 months. We also originate commercial term loans to fund long-term borrowing needs such as
purchasing equipment, property improvements or other fixed asset needs. We fix the maturity of a term
loan to correspond to 80% of the useful life of any equipment purchased or 10 years, whichever is less.
Term loans can be secured with a variety of collateral, including business assets such as accounts
receivable and inventory, or long-term agsets such as equipment, furniture, fixtures or real estate.

Unlike one- to fous-family residential real estate loans, which we generally originate on the basis
of the borrower’s ability to make repayment from his or her employment and other income, and which are
securcd by real property with a readily ascertainable value, we typically originate agricultural and
commercial non-real estate loans on the basis of the borrowers ability to make repayment from the cash
flow of the horrower’s business or rental income produced by the property. As a result, the availability of
funds for the repayment of agticultural and commercial non-real estate loans may be substantially
dependent on the success of the business or rental property itsclf and the local economy. Therefore,
agricultural and commercial non-real estate loans that we originate generally have greater credit risk than
our one- to four-family residential real estate loans or consumer loans. In addition, agricultural and
commercial non-real estate loans ofien have larger outstanding balances to single borrowers, or related
groups of borrowers, and also generally require substantially greater evaluation and oversight efforts. For
additional risks specific to agricultural non-real estate loans, please see “~Agricultural Real Estate Loans”
above. -

Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate Lending. 'We originate commercial and multi-family
real estate morigage loans. At December 31, 2012, $21.2 million, or 10.0% of cur loan portfolio,
including loans held for sale, consisted of commereial and pmlti-family real estate loans. Our commercial
and mwulti-family real estate loans have terms of up to 20 years. The maximum loan-to-value ratio of our
commefcial réal estate 16ans is generally 80%. S I o
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Our commercial and multi-family real estate loans are secured primarily by office buildings, strip
mall centers, owner-occupied offices, car washes, condominiums, apartment buildings and developed lots,
At December 31, 2012, our commercial and multi-family real estate loans had an average loan balance of
approximately $155,000. At December 31, 2012, virtually all of our commereial and multi-family real
estaie loans were secured by properties located in Nebraska. We have occasionally made commercial and
multi-family real estate loans secured by properties in Iowa and South Dakota. In addition, we will make
loans to customers who live in our market area for commercial real estate properties located outside of
our market area, and at December 31, 2012 our largest commercial real estate loan totaled $1.8 milljon
and was secured by an office building in the Phoenix, Arizona metropolitan area. At December 31, 2012,
this loan was performing in accordance with it repayment terms.

At December 31, 2012, 36,2% of our commercial and multi-family real estate loans had fixed
interest rates, The rates on our adjustable-rate commercial real estate and multi-family loans are generally
tied to a varicty of indices including the 1 Year Constant Maturily Treasury rate (CMT), the 5 Year CMT
and the prime interest rate as reported in The Wall Street Journal. A portion of our commercial real estate
and mutlti-family loans represent permanent financing for borrowers who have completed real estate
construction for which we previously provided construction financing,

In underwriting commercial and multi-family real estate loans, we generally lend up to 80% of
the property’s appraised value. We base our decisions to lend on the economic viability of the property
and the creditworthiness of the borrower. In evaluating a proposed commercial real estate loan, we
cmphasize the ratio of the property’s projected net cash flow to the loan’s debt service requirement
{generally requiring a minimum ratio of 1.1 times), computed after deduction for a vacancy factor and
property expenses we deem appropriate. Personal guarantees are obtained from commercial real estate
borrowers. We require title insurance insuring the priority of our lien, fire and extended coverage
casualty insurance, and, if appropriate, flood insurance, in order o protect our security interest in the
underlying property.

Commercial and multi-family real estate loans generally carry higher interest rates and have
shorter terms than the conforming one- to four-family residential real estate loans that we sell in the
secondary market. Commercial and multi-family real estate loans, however, have significant additional
credit risks compared to one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, as they typically involve larger
lean balances concentrated with single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. In addition, the
repayment of loans secured by income-producing properties typically depends on the successful operation
of the related real estate project, and thus may be more subject to adverse conditions in the real estate
market and in the general economy,

We consider a number of factors in originating commercial and multi-family real estate loans.
We evaluate the qualifications and financial condition of the borrower, including credit history,
profitability and expertise, as well as the value and condition of the property securing the loan. When
evaluating the qualifications of a borrower, we consider the financial resources of the barrower, the
borrower’s experience in owning or managing similar property and the borrower’s payment history with
us and other financial institutions. In evaluating the property securing the loan, the factors we consider
include the net operating income of the mortgaged property before debt service and depreciation, the ratio
of the loan amount to the appraised value of the mortgaged property and the debt service coverage ratio
(the ratio of net operating income to debt service). All commercial and multi-family real estate loans are
appraised by independent appraisers approved by the board of directors or by internal evaluations, where
permitted by regulation. We obtain personal guarantees from the principals of our commercial and multi-
family real estate borrowers.
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Consumer Lending. To a much lesser extent, we offer a variety of consumer loans to individuals
who reside or work in our market area, including new and used avtomobile loans, home improvement and
home equity loans, recreational vehicle loans, and loans secured by certificates of deposits and other
collateral, including marketable securities. We do not purchase indirsct automobile loans from dealers. At
December 31, 2012, our consumer loan portfolio totaled $4.7 million, or 2.2% of our total loan portfolio.
At this date, $79,000 of our consumer loans were unsecured,

Consumer foans generally have shorter terms to maturity, which reduces our exposure to changes
in interest rates. In addition, management believes that offering consumer loan products helps to expand
and create stronger ties to our existing customer base by increasing the number of customer relationships
and providing cross-marketing opportunities.

Consumer and other loans generally have greater risk compared to longer-term loans secured by
improved, owner-occupied real estate, particularly consumer loans that are secured by rapidly depreciable
assets, such as automobiles. In these cases, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted foan may not
provide an adequate source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance. As a result, consumer loan
collections are dependent on the borrower’s continuing financial stability and thus are more likely to be
adversely affected by job loss, divoree, illness or personal bankruptey.

We aiso offer home equity loans and equity lines of credit secured by a first or second mortgage
on residential property. Second mortgage loans and equity lines of credit are made with fixed or
adjustable rates, and with combined [oan-to-value ratios up to 90% on an owner-occupied principal
residence.

Second mortgage loans and equity lines of credit have greater risk than one- to four-family
residential real estate loans secured by first mortgages. We face the risk that the collateral will be
insufficient to compensate us for loan lesses and costs of foreclosure, particularly since holders of the first
mortgage would be repaid [irst from the proceeds of any sale of collateral, before such proceeds are
applied o home equity lines of credit or second mortgage loans. When customers default on their loans,
we attempt to foreclose on the property and resell the property as scon as possible to minimize
foreclosure and carrying costs. However, the value of the collateral may not be sufficicnt to compensate
us for the amount of the unpaid loan and we may be unsuccessful in recovering the remaining balance
from those customers. Particularly with respect to our second morligage loans, decreases in real estate
values could adversely affect the value of property used as collateral for our loans.

Al December 31, 2012, the average balance of our outstanding home equity lines of credit was
$24,000 excluding lines with $0 balances, and the largest outstanding balance of any such loan was
$78,000. This Joan was performing in accordance with its repayment terms at December 31, 2012,

Originations, Purchases and Sales of Loans

Lending activities are conducted primarily by our loan personnel operating at our main office and
our branch offices. All loans that we originate are underwritten pursuant to our standard policies and
procedures. In addition, our one- to four-family residential real estate loans generally incorporate
underwriting guidelines of the Mortgage Partnership Finance Program, a division of the FFHLB-Topeka.,
We originate both adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans. Qur ability to originate fixed- or adjustable-rate
loans is dependent upon the relative customer demand for such loans and competition from other lenders,
which is affected by current market interest rates as well as anticipated future market interest rates. Cur
loan origination and sales activity may be adversely affected by a rising interest rate environment which
typically results in decreased loan demand. Most of our agricultural real estate, agricultural and :

- commercial non-real estate loans, and our commiercial and multi-family real estate loans are generated by
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our intethal business development efforts and referrals from professional contacts. Most of our
originations of one- to four-family residential real estate loans and consumer loans are generated by
existing customers, referrals from realtors, residential home builders, walk-in business and from our

websile,

Consistent with our interest rate risk strategy and the low interest rate environment that has
existed in recent years, we have sold to the Mortgage Parinership Finance Prograt on a servicing-
retained bass, all of the conforming fixed-rate, one- to four-family residential real estate loans that we

have originated with terms of greater than 15 years. At December 31, 2012, we serviced $55.6 million of

fixed-rute, one- to four-family residential real estate loans held by the FHLB-Topeka and serviced an

additional $1.1 million of other loans.

"The following table sets forth our loan crigination, purchase, sale and principal repayment

activity during the periods indicated.

Yeurs Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Total loans at begimming Gf Periot, . ..u.viieereeercenirinsistins coreeessessernsessesas $ 189,574 b 182,208 $ 157 940
Louns originaced;
Montgage loans:
AICUIEUIAL c.v. oot bt e ten b b s et s eee s et res e 39,577 24215 32,449
One- to fowr-farnily residential.... 45,674 28,139 26,500
Commercial and mURI-TANIY ..ot eeees ces st oo 5,697 2,620 6,032
Agricultural and commercial non-real estate (0ANS.. ... vve.eeeeeeeeesee s 28,769 25,115 22,197
Congumer 16808 ,..-vecveee v visnsirinnn 3.809 4.031 3658 -
Total louns originated .......coocceeerevsrcrereeeseennns 123,526 84,749 90,836
Loans purchased:
Montgage loans:
Agricultural.....ovveeereeeieens, R e et g A e nna reaap e 1,000 — —
One-to four-family residentia — —_ —
Commercial and tH-Family ..o oo eesees e entsesrons sessssas — - -
Agricullural and vommercial non-real estate loans............... e sne e anns - — KX]
Consumer 10ans.....c.oocinoreen s e ceeresns — e - _—
Total 10ans pPUrchased ... e oo, 1,000 — 33
Loans sold:
Mortgage loans:
ALIOUIURAL ...t seerereer s ee e et ses e e eeesees — — —
QOne~ o four-family residential. - (32,940} {17,945) {16,576}
Commercial and multi-fanmily ......ocooooveeeeece o, — —_ -
Agricultural and commercial non-real estate loans. — — —
CONRINGE LOANS e e eeirersrrnseresescreseesisstese e eees o — -
Total 10an3 SO ... st {32,940) (17,945) (16,576
Other:
Principal repayments and other............ooovienne (167,895) {140,574) (120,573}
Advances on agticuftural and commercial lines-of-credit loans. ............... 94,051 81,136 70,548
INOE T0AN BOHVIEY 1eocreciirinne st sse oo eenees s psses et e eesesee st e 17,742 i 7.366 24268
Total 1oans at end oF PEriod ....c..ciowmmisnmrmmmsesn i eessressserssss s soes § 207316 b 189,574 3 182 208
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Delinquencies and Non-Performing Assets

Delinguency Procedures. When a borrower fails to make a required monthly loan payment, a
late notice is generated stating the payment and late charges due. Generally our policies provide that
borrowers are sent the notice on the 10" day after the payment due date except for one- to four-family real
estate loans for which the delinquency netice is mailed between 15 and 20 days after the due date.
Thereafter a loan officer s assigned to pursue our loan collection procedures which include follow up
phone calls and letlers. For all loans 60 days or less past due, the loan officer responsible for the credit
contacts the borrower by phone. After 60 days past due, the Chief Executive Officer becomes the primary
officer responsible for the loan’s collection, and the Chief Executive Officer will contact the borrower by
phone and/or letters. After a loan is 90 days past dus, it is referred to our attorncy who will initiate
foreclosure procedurcs. If the loan is reinstated, foreclosure proceedings will be discontinued and the
borrower will be pormitted to continue to make payments.

When we acquire real estate as a result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure, the real
estate is classified as Other Real Estate Owned until it is sold. The real estate is recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of acquisition less estimated costs to sell, and any write-down resulting from the
acquisition is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Estimated fair value is based on a new appraisal or
an in-house evaluation which is obtained as soon as practicable, typically at the start of the foreclosure
proceeding and every six months thereafter until the property is sold, Subsequent decreases in the value of
the property are charged to operations. After acquisition, all costs incurred in maintaining the property
are expensed. Costs relating to the development and improvement of the property, however, are
capitalized to the extent of estimated fair value less estimated costs to sell.

Troubled Debt Restructurings. Troubled debt restructurings are defined under ASC 310-40 to
inctude loans for which cither a portion of interest or principal has been forgiven, or for loans modified at
interest rates or on terms materially less favorable than current market rates, We occasionally modify
loans to extend the term or make other concessions to help a borrower stay current on his or her loan and
to avoid foreclosure. We generally do not forgive principal or interest on loans. On occasion we have
modified the terms of loans to provide for longer amortization schedules. These modifications are made
only when there is a reasonable and attainable workout plan that has been agreed to by the borrower and
that is in our best intcrests, At Decomber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we had no loans that were classified as
a troubled debt restructuring.
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Delinquent Loans. The following table sets forth our loan delinquencies, including non-acerual
loans, by type and amount at the dates indicated.

ALD r3l,2012
Real estate loans;
Agrietlural.., . .oo s rirvresrresmnaresseserens
One~ to four-family residential .............
Commercial and molbi-family. e
Agrienltual and commercial non-real
SSIAEC LOANS ues sreeveeserenr i nnssssbeseninsrsers
Congumer J0an8. ... v

TOtL 10ANS. e eeevereiee e sessrrs e

At December 31, 2011
Real estats loans:
AHEWUIAL. v vrer s s
One- to four-family residential .............
Commercial and awlti-lamily ..o
Apgricultural and eomimercial non-real
estate louns.....
Consumer loang

Total [08D5. v eveeeeeereeree e eserircrees

At December 31, 2010
Real estate loans:
AFCuTuTal e e e
One- to four-family residential ..............
Commereial and nulti-family ...............
Agricultural and commetcial non-real
estate BOANS. ....ve oo
CORSUMEL JOUDS.....evevercererecressecnssenns

TORLLOANS. . cov e esreesssannrens

At December 31, 2009
Real estate loans;
Agticultural. ..o
Oue- 1w four-family residential . "
Commercial and nuolti-family......ooovenns
Agricultural and commercial non-real
311 LOANS. o vier e eeteee et v
CONSUMET L0ANS. ccereurrrccronanturennan i

Total 10ans.. ..o v ccies e

At December 31, 2008
Real estate loans:
V(5111 TS OO RIOO
One- to four-family residential ..............
Commercial and owlti-family................
Agricultural and commercial non-real
ESTALE IOANS. v vecvrsresaeisverece e rereereeeais
COnSUMer 10818 oo eeeeerrrvrreees

Total Joang...esreceieee o srreeeesiiens
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Loans Delinguent For

60-89 Days 90 Days and Over Total

Number Amount Number Amouwnt Number Amount
(Dwollars in thousands)
— b3 — — § — - § —
3 233 4 144 i 37
— — 2 2 2 2
3 $ 233 [ 5 146 g h 379
— 5 — — b — — 3 —
5 289 1 15 [ 305
1 9 - - ! 9
2 a6 — — 2 96
4 3 2 1 & 4
12 3 397 3 5 17 15 5 414
— 3 — — % - - % —
4 50 2 181 6 pAT
1 16 0 0 1 16
4 32 2 2 8 a4
29 bl 98 4 b 183 13 s 281
— 3 — — 3 — - $ —
6 110 —_ —_ 6 110
1 1 3 4 4 5
7 b 111 3 $ 4 10 S 115
— $ — — 5 —_ — $ —_
i 370 5 103 13 4713
- — 1 3 1 3
1 1 4 o 5 10
9 3 31 10 3 115 19 b 486
17




Classified Assets. Federal regulations provide that loans and other assets of lesser quality should
be classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss™ assets. An asset is considered “substandard” if it is
inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral
pledged, if any. “Substandard” assets include those characterized by the “distinct possibility” that the
insured institution will sustain “some loss™ if the deficiencies are not correcied. Assets classified as
“doubtful” have ali of the weaknesses inherent in those classified “substandard,” with the added
characteristic that the weaknesses present make “collection or liquidation in full,” on the basis of
currently existing facts, conditions, and values, “highly questionable and improbable,” Assets classified
ag “loss” are those considered “uncollectible” and of such little value that their continuance as assets
without the establishment of a specific loss reserve is not warranted. Assets which do not currently
expose the insured institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification in one of the aforementioned
categories but possess weaknesses are designated as “special mention” by our management.

When an insured institution classifies problem assets as either substandard or doubtful, it may
establish general allowances in an amount deemed prudent by management to cover probable accrued
losses. General allowances represent loss allowances which have bean established to cover probable
accrued losses associated with lending activities, but which, unlike specific allowances, have not been
allocated to particular problem assets, When an insured institution classifies problem assets as “loss,” it is
required either to establish a specific allowance for losses equal to 100% of that portion of the asset so
classified or to charge-off such amount. An institution’s determination as to the classification of its assets
and the amount of its valvation allowances is subject to review by the regulatory authorities, which may
require the establishment of additional general or specific loss allowances,

In connection with the filing of our periodic reports and in accordance with our classification of
assets policy, we regularly review the problem loans in our portfolio to determine whether any loans
require classification in accordance with applicable regulations. Loans are listed on the “watch list”
initially because of emerging financial weaknesses even though the loan is currently performing as
agreed, or delinquency status, or if the loan possesses weaknesses although currently performing.
Management reviews the status of each impaired loan on our watch list with the Loan Committee and
then with the full board of directors at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting. If a loan deteriorates
in assef quality, the classification is changed to “special mention,” “substandard,” “doubiful” or “loss™
depending on the circumstances and the cvalvation. Generally, loans 90 days or more past due are placed
on nonaccrual status and classified “substandard.” If a loan is secured by real estate and we believe that
we are well collateralized, we will conlinue to accrue interest for up to 120 days.

See Note 3 to our Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report for a
description by loan category of our classified and special mention assets as of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011.

Non-Performing Assets. We generally cease accruing interest on our loans when contractual
payments of principal or interest have become 90 days past due or management has serious doubts about
further collectibility of principal or interest, even though the loan is currently performing. We will,
however, continue to accrue interest for up to 120 days if a loan is secured by real estate and we believe
that we are well collateralized. A loan may remain on accrual status if it is in the process of collection
and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest
ercdited to income is reversed. Interest received on nonaccrual loans generally is applied against
principal, Generally, loans are restored to acerual status when the obligation is brought current, has
performed in accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time and the ultimate
collectibility of the total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt, Restructured loans are
restored to accrual stafus when the obligation is brought current, has performed in accordance with the
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revised contractual terms for a reagonable period of time (typically six months) and the ultimate
collectibility of the total contractual principal and interest is reasonably assured.

The following table sets forth information regarding our non-performing assets at the dates
indicated. We had no troubled debt restructurings at the dates indicated.

At December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thensands)

Non-accrual loans:
Real estate loans:
AZHCUIUNL....ieee st e 3 126 $ 129 $ 131 5 - $ —
One- to four-family residential.. 84 o3 35 4 —
Commercial and owdG-family .. — - — - . —
Agricultural and commmercial non-real
EBLATE JOATIS. v eeecerer e csrecene s versmseeresesmsrane -_ 1 1 - -
Consumer IOans .......ewmnvesecsesrrmrernns 4 — o — —
Total non-accrual loans ... 3 214 ] 223 b 167 5 74 3 -

Loans delirgquent 90 days or greater and
still acerving:
Regl estate loans:
Pty L1 | LT ) SRR —_ — - - —
One- to four-family residential., 79 16 181 — 103
Commengial and nuylti-family ... —_
Agricultural and commercial non-real
estate IOAMS ... s — — — —
Consuner Joans ... — 1 2 4
Total loans delinguent 90 days or :
greater and still aCCIUINE. coovrrrenonn. 3 79 $ 17 $ 183 B} 4 h 115

Sl

Total non-performing loans. ... b 293 § 240 $ 350 b3 8 £ 115

Real estate owned:
Real estate loans:
Agricultomal...conrr e —_ — —_ - -
One- to four-family residential..
COmMMEITIA 1vvaenrivrarmirmsorreresmmni e sere — — — — -
Agricultural abd conunercial non-real
2Fate JoaNS. s —_ - - — —
ConBumer 10808 .........ooecree e e e — — — — —
Total real estate owned. i ot - - 46 -

Total non-performing assets.., ) 292 b 240 3 350 3 124 b 113

Ratios:
MNon-performing loans to total Joans....... 0.14% 0.12% {0.19% 0.05% 0.08%
Non-performing assets fo total assets..... 0.11% 0.10% 0.16% 0.04% 0.06%

Interest income that would have been recorded for 2012 had non-aceruing loans been current
according to their original terms amounted to $2,000. We recognized $4,000 of interest on these loans for
2012,

Non-performing agricultural real estate loans totaled $126,000 at December 31, 2012 and
consisted of one loan. Additionally we had $163,000 in non-performing one- to four-family residential
real estate loans at December 31, 2012, We had no real estate owned at December 31, 2012,

There were no other loans at December 31, 2012 that are not already disclosed where there is
information about possible credit problems of botrowets that caused ug serious doubts about the ability of
the borrowers to comply with present loan repayment terms and that may result in disclosure of such
loaiis in the future.- Bl bt aichil : : St ovudh st At
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Allowance for Loan Losses

Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for Loan Losses. Our allowance for loan losses is
the amount considered necessary to reflect probable incurred losses in our loan portfolio. We evaluate the
need to establish allowances against losses on loans on a quarterly basis. When additional allowances are
necessary, a provision for loan losses is charged to earnings,

Our methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses has consisted
of two key elements: (1) specitic allowances for identified impaired loans; and (2) a general valuation
allowance on the remainder of the loan portfolio. Although we determine the amount of each element of
the allowance separately, the entire allowance for loan losses is available for the entire portfolio,

We identify loans that may need to be charged off as a loss by reviewing all delinquent loans,
classified loans, and other loans that management may have concerns about collectibility. For individually
reviewed loans, the borrower’s inability to make payments under the terms of the loan as well as the
shorttall in collateral value would result in our charging off the loan or the portion of the loan that was
impaired.

Among other factors, we consider current general economic conditions, including current housing
or agricultural real estate price movements, in determining the appropriateness of the allowance for loan
losses for our agricultural real estate, one-to four-family residential real estate and commercial and multi-
family portfolios. We use evidence obtained from our own loan portfolio as well as published housing
and agricultural data on our local markets from third-patty sources we determine to be reliable as a basis
for agsumptions about the impact of housing deprcciation.

Over the past several quarters, we have increased general allowances for all of our loan categories
except for our consumer loan portfolio, These increases are a result of the increase in the size of our loan
portfolio as well as our perception that there is an increase in the risk to our loan portfolio due to the
increase in our agricultural real estate and agricultural and commercial non-real estate loan portfolios. The
increases in these portfolios have resulted, in part, from an abrupt and substantial increase in the cost of
farm property in our market area as well as the cost of crop production inputs, If farm property values
decline and if profit margins return to historical lower levels, the value of these loans may decline,

The average sales price of a bushel of #2 Yellow Corn, the most important crop in our market
area, remained at consistently high levels in 2012 and as a result, the cost of agricultural real estate in-our
market area continued to increase significantly in 2012, creating additional risk to our loan portfolio, The
demand for this crop is a result of numerous factors, including its use to produce ethanol. Effective
December 31, 2011, the Federal Government allowed a major ethanol subsidy to expire which, over time,
could adversely impact the price of corn and thus adversely impact our agricultural borrowers and the
value of farm land, thereby increasing the risks associated with these types of loans,

Substantially all of our loans are secured by collateral. Loans 90 days past due and other
classified loans are evaluated for impairment and general or specific allowances are established. Typically
for a nonperforming one- to four-family residential real estate loan in the process of collection, the value
of the underlying collateral is cstimated using the original independent appraisal, adjusted for current
economic conditions and other factors, and related general or specific reserves are adjusted on a quarterly
basis. If a nonperforming real estate loan is in the process of foreclosure and/or there are serious doubts
about further collectibility of principal or interest, and there is unceriainty about the value of the
underlying collateral, we will order a new independent appraisal. Any shortfall would result in
immediately charging off the portion of the loan that was impaired.
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We establish an allowance for loans that are nof classified as impaired to recognize the inherent
losses associated with lending activities. This valvation allowance is determined by segregating the loans
by loan category and assigning allowance percentages based on our historical loss experience,
delinquency trends and management’s evalvation of the collectibility of the loan portfolio. The allowance
may be adjusted for significant factors that, in management’s judgment, affect the collectibility of the
portfolio as of the evaluation date. These significant factors may include changes in lending policies and
procedures, changes in existing general economic and business conditions affecting our primary market
area, credit quality trends, collateral value, loan volumes and concentrations, seasoning of the loan
portfolio, recent loss experience in particular scgments of the portfolio, duration of the current business
cycle and bank regulatory examination results. The applied loss factors are re-evaluated quarterly to
ensure their relevance in (he current real estate environment.

As an integral part of their examination process, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
with respect to Madison County Bank, and the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City with respect to
Madison County Financial, Inc., will periodically review our allowance for loan logses and may require
that we recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at
the time of their examinations.

Allowance for Lean Losses. The following table sets forth activity in our allowance for loan
losses for the periods indicated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period.................. 401 % 3352 h 3018 $ 2,681 b 2,544

Charge-ofls:
Peeal estato loans:
AU i — — - -
One- to fomr-Family residential B — (22) (29) {27 —
Commercial and multi-family................ - -— - - -
Agricultural and commercial non-real
estate 1oans ..........o.oeeeeeiee e _ —_ —_ —_ —
Consunier loans, ... — -
Total charge-offs .....c.oce e (3) 22 29 (27} —

Recoveries:

Real estate loans:
Agtlonllural oo 71 7 2 3 2
One- to four-family residential.............. 23 —_ - — -
Conuergial and multi-family e — — -— - -

Agricultural and commercial non-real
ESLAE TOANS 1vvvverssrsnsiisrenirinssasisstentesnsoss — —_ — — —

Consumet loans. ...

Total TecOVeries. ....oovvie e

Net (charge-offs) recoveries 94 {15} {26) (23} 2
Provision for 1oan loSSeS ......vereeiies [ 330 &80 360 360 133

Balanee at end of year.......oovvcecninrnns b 4,941 $.._4017 3 3352 b 3018 b 2,681

Ratins:
Net charge-olls/(recoveries) to

avetage loans outstamling

{antAlZed) st (0.05) % 0.01% 0.02% 0.02% 0.00%
Allowanes for Ioan losses to non-

performing Joans at end of period......... 1,692.12% 1,673.75% 957.71% 3.869.23% 2,331.30%
Allowance for [oan lesses to total

loans {including loans held for
- sale) atend of period .o e C233% 2.07% LEl% - 1,88% - LT8%
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Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses. The following tables set forth the allowance for loan
losses allocated by loan category, the percent of allowance in each loan category to the total allowance,
and the percent of loans in each category to total loans at the dates indicated. The allowance for loan
losses allocated to each category is not necessarily indicative of future losses in any particular category

and does not restrict the usc of the allowance to absorb losses in other categories.

At December 31,
2012 11 2010
Percent of Percent of Percent of’
Loans in Each Loans in Each Loans in Bach
Allowance for Category to Allowance for Category fo Allowanee for Category to
Loan Losses Total Loans . Loan Losses Total Loans Loan Losses Total Loans
{(Dollars in thowsads)
Real estate loans:
Agricoltutal ..o § 2,585 45.50% $ 1,579 43.03% b 1,448 42.8(0%
One- fo four-family residential............ 467 17.02 218 19.65 580 21.90
Comunercial and multi-family ............, 456 259 556 10,87 496 12.05
Agriculiural and commercial non-real
(=1 E N (1)1 SRR 1,337 2526 34 2408 720 20,14
Consumer loans ... . ) 2.23 80 2.35 108 311
Total oo B 4,941 100.00% 5 4017 100 00% b 3352 100.00%
At December 31,
2009 2008
Percent of Percent of
Loans in Each Loans in Each
Allowance for Category to Allowance for Category to
Laan Losses Total Loans Loan Losses Total Loans
(Dollars in thonsands)
Real Estate Ioans:
AGrEUERIBL o e resesnr e st venereaes $ 1,181 3937% b 1,173 38.34%
One- to tour-family residential ., 551 2515 183 26.97
Commercial and mulii-family.....ee. 556 12,30 385 10.60
Agricultural and commercial non-real
E3LA1E JOANT .ovvorienreoronienreracessmeisissersens 6359 19,78 314 21,75
Consumer loans.... 71 340 126 234
TOMAL s vreveire s rssnssss e rrrenes b 3018 . 100.00% 3 2,681 100.00%

At December 31, 2012, our allowance for loan losses represented 2.33% of total loans, including
loans held for sale, and 1,692% of non-performing loans, and at December 31, 2011, our allowance for
loan losses represented 2,07% of total loans, including loans held for sale, and 1,674% of non-performing
loans. The allowance for loan losses increased from $4.0 million at December 31, 2011 to $4.9 million at
December 31, 2012, due to a provision for loan losses of $830,000 and net recoveries of $94,000 during

2012.

Although we believe that we use the best information available to establish the allowance for loan
losses, future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary and results of operations
could be adversely affected if circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the
determinations. Furthermore, while we believe we have established our allowance for loan losses in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, regulators, in
reviewing our loan portfolio, may request that we increase our allowance for loan logses. In addition,
because future events affecting borrowers and collateral cannot be predicted with certainty, the existing
allowance for loan-losses may not be adequate and increases may be necessary should the quality of any - - -
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loan dsteriorate as a result of the factors discussed above. Any maierial increase in the allowance for loan
losses may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Investment Activitics

General. The goals of our investment policy are to provide and maintain liquidity to meet
deposit withdrawal and loan funding needs, to help mitigate our interest rate risk, and to generate a
favorable return on idle funds within the context of our interest rate and credit risk objectives. In recent
years, out strategy has been to reduce the maturities of our investment securities portfolio. Subject to loan
demand and our interest rate risk analysis, we will increase the balance of our investment securities
portfolio when we have excess liquidity.

Qur board of directors is responsible for adopting our investment policy. The investment policy
is reviewed annually by our ALCO/Executive Committee, which is comprised of our President and Chief
Executive Officer, our Senior Vice President and our Chief Financial Officer, and any changes to the
policy are recommended to and subject to the approval of the board of directors. Authority to make
investments under the approved investment policy guidelines is delegated to our President and Chief
Executive Officer, and his investment decisions arc reviewed and approved by a majority of our
ALCO/Executive Comumittoe prior to the exeoution of any investment trade. All investment transactions
are reviewed at regularly scheduled meetings of the board of directors.

Qur current investment policy permits, with certain limitations, investments in securities issued
by the United States Government and its agencies or government sponsored enterprises, agency-issued
morigage-backed securities, municipal bonds and securities issued by counties, cities, school districts and
other political subdivisions located in Nebraska and South Dakota, investments in bank-owned life
insurance and collateralized mortgage obligations backed by agency mortgage-backed securities.

At December 31, 2012, we did not have an investment in the securities of any single non-
government issuer that exceeded 10% of our equity at that date.

Our current investment policy does not permit investments in stripped mortgage-backed
securities, complex securities and derivatives as defined in federal banking regulations and other high-risk
securities. Our current policy does not permit hedging activities, such as engaging in futures, options or
swap transactions, or investing in high-risk mortgage derivatives, such as collateralized mortgage
obligation residual interests, real estate mortgage investment conduit residual interests or stripped
mortgage backed securities.

At December 31, 2012, none of the collateral underlying our securities portfolio was considered
subprime or Alt-A, and we did not hold any common or prefesred stock issued by Freddic Mac or Fannie
Mae as of that dato.

U.S. Treasury and Agency Debt Securities. Al December 31, 2012, the carrying value of our
portfolio of United States Treasury, United States Government agency, and Government-sponsored
enterprise securities totaled $9.5 million, of which $9.0 million was classified as available-for-sale,
While these securities generally provide lower vields than other investments in our securities investment
portfolio, we maintain these investments, to the extent appropriate for liquidity purposes, as collateral for
borrowings and for prepayment protection.

Municipal Obligations. At December 31, 2012, our municipal securities portfolio totaled $24.5

million and was comprised of bonds issued by counties, cities, school districts and other politicat
subdivisions in Nebfaska and South Dakota. ‘At Decembér 31, 2012, all of out municipal sécurities were
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classified as held to maturity. At this date, $17.0 million of these securities had maturities of more than 10
years.

We have purchased bank-qualified gencral obligation and revenue bonds of certain state and
political subdivisions which provide interest income that is exempt from federal income taxation, Our
investment policy permits purchases of these securities so long as they are rated in the top three
investment grades, with maximum term to maturity of 25 years, During 2012 we continued to increase
our municipal securities portfolio since these securities provide a stable source of tax-free income.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock. We hold common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Topeka in connection with our borrowing activities totaling $2.1 million at December 31, 2012. The
common stock of such entity is carried at cost and classified as restricted equity securities.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance. We invesi in bank-owned life insurance to provide us with a
funding source for our benefit plan obligations. Bank-owned life insurance also generally provides us
non-interest income that is non-taxable, At December 31, 2012, our balance of bank-owned life insurance
totaled $4.6 million and was issued by five insurance companies.

Securities Portfolio Composition, The following table sets forth the ameortized cost and fatr
value of our securitics portfolio at the dates indicated. Securities available for sale are carried at fair
vahue,

At December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Amortized Amortized Amortized
Cost Eair ¥alue Cosi Liair ¥alue Cost Fair Value

{In thousands)

Securilies held to matwrity:
United State Treasury and agency
debl 5ee0rities. ..o ] 498 % 508 8 493§ 526 % 489 % 537
Municipal obligations ™,..........ivvernree 24,528 25,122 14 909 15328 11,066 10,891

Total securities held (0 matnily ... 425026 § 25630 § 15402 F§ 15854 0§ 11,555 0§ 11428

Seguritiey available for sale;
United States Treasury and agency
debt SecUIities. ..oovnvveveee e, §.586 8082 9.878 10,228 7360 7.501

Total securities available for sale....... 3 858 £ _ 80O% % 98%¢ § 10228 % 7360 £ __ 7501

1 At December 31, 2012 and 2011, included $2.3 million and $1.9 million of taxable municipal bonds, respectively.
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Sources of Funds

General. Deposits have traditionally been our primary source of funds for use in lending and
investment activities. We also use borrowings, primarily Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka advances
and Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City borrowings, to supplement cash flow needs, lengthen the
maturities of liabilities for interest rate risk purposes and to manage the cost of funds, In addition, we
receive funds from scheduled loan payments, investment maturities, loan prepayments, retained earnings
and income on earning assets. While scheduled loan payments and income on earning assets are
relatively stable sources of funds, deposit inflows and outflows can vary widely and are influenced by
prevailing interest rates, market conditions and competition. To a lesser extent, we may use Federal Funds
Sold as funding sources.

Deposits, Our deposits are generated primarily from residents within our primary market area.
We offer a selection of deposit accounts, including non-interest-bearing and interest-bearing checking
accounts, money market savings accounts and certificates of deposit. Deposit account terms vary, with
the principal differences being the minimum balance reguired, the amount of time the funds must remain
on deposit and the interest rate. We have not in the past nor presently have any brokered or internet
deposits. However, dependent on our future needs, we could access these funding sources for liguidity

purposes.

. We will periodically promote a particular deposit product as part of our overall marketing plan,
Deposit products have been promoted through various mediums, which include radio and newspaper
advertisements. The emphasis of these campaigns is to increase consumer awareness and our market
share, Additionally, we focus on deposit generation from our borrower customers both at the time of a
loan origination and thereafter as we build our customer relationships.

Intercst rates paid, maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalfies are established ona
periodic basis. Deposit rates and terms are baged primarily on current operating strategies and market
rates, liquidity requirements, rates paid by competitors and growth goals. We rely on personalized
customer service, long-standing relationships with customers, and the favorable image of Madison
County Bark in the commmnity to attract and retain deposits.

The flow of deposits is influenced significantly by general economic conditions, changes in
interest rates and competition. Qur ability to attract deposits is affected by the competitive market in
which we operate, which includes numerous financial institutions of varying sizes offering a wide range
of products. We occasionally use promotional rates to meet asset/liability and market segment goals.
Additionally, we historically experience significant increases in our deposits during the first calendar
quarter of each year as a result of our farm customers receiving proceeds during this time from the sale of
agricultural commodities.

The variety of deposit accounts offered allows us to be competitive in obtaining funds and
responding to changes in consumer demand, Based on our experience, we belicve that non-interest-
bearing and inferest-bearing checking and money market savings accounts may be somewhat more stable
sources of deposits than certificates of deposits. Also, we believe that our deposits allow us a greater
opportunity to interact with our customers and offer them other financial services and products. As a
result, we have used marketing and other initiatives to increase such accounts. However, it can be
difficult to attract and maintain such deposits at favorable interest rates under current market conditions.
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The following table sels forth all our certificates of deposit classified by interest rate as of the

dates indicated.

At December 31,
2012 2011 2010
{In thousands)
Interest Rate
1.99% and below.... § 16,652 § 31,98 % 28,568
2.00% (0 2.99%...... 1,621 2,700 9,143
3.00% to 3.99%...... 2 21 345
4.00% ta 4.99%...... — 739 1.887
Total..occoioeveveee. & 28275 § 35448 % 39,943

The following table sets forth, by interest rate ranges, information concerning our certificates of

deposit.

Interest Rate Range:
1.99% and below.......

200% 10 2.99%......
3.00% to 3. 9%,

B¢ 5] IS

At Decembor 31, 2002

Period te Maturicy
Less Than More Than Maore Than
or Equal to One to Twe to More Than Percent of
One Yesr Two Yeais Tliree Years  Three Yeais Total Total

(Dotlars in thousands)

] 20,068 % 4559 % 850 8 1,175 & 26,652 94.26%
444 717 400 — 1,621 373
2 - — - z 0.01
$ 20,514 % 5330 & 1250 & 1175 & 28275 160.0%

Borrewings. Our borrowings consist primarily of advanccs from the Federal Ilome Loan Bank
of Topeka and borrowings froim the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City and, to a lesser extent, from the
Bankers® Bank of the West. At December 31, 2012, we had access to additional Federal Home Loan
Bank, Federal Reserve Bank and Bankers’ Bank of the West advances of up to $48.4 million, §10.0
million and $15.6 million, respectively. To the extent such borrowings have different terms to repricing
than our deposits, they can change our interest rate risk profile,

Historically our borrowings have increased during the fourth calendar quarter of each year in
response Lo increased loan demand from our farm customers during the fall of each year, many of whom
purchase their crop production supplies (seed, fertilizer, fuel and chemicals) for the ensuing year during
this period. Generally, we will repay a portion of our borrowings during the first calendar quarter of each
year as we experience significant increases in our deposits and significant repayments of agricultural
loans of all kinds during the first quarter of each year as our farm customers receive proceeds during this
time from the sale of agricultural commodities.
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The following table sets forth information concerning balances and interest rales on our advances
at the dates and for the periods indicated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at cnd of poriod......owimn i e v ereiaie $ 6,300 $ 26,900 $ 29755
Average balance during period.....ccoccocvvre e B 7479 § 193818 § 20,046
Maximum outstanding at any Mo end....coeee e ¥ 11,600 $ 26,900 $ 29,755
Weighted average interest rate at end of period.............cconmeee 3.42% 1.0a% 128%
Weighted average interest raie during period ... oo 3.02% : 1.37% 3.719%

Persennel

As of December 31, 2012, we had 49 full-time equivalent employees. Our employees are not
represented by any collective bargaining group. Management believes that we have a good working
relationship with our employees.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION
General

Madison County Bank is supervised, regulated and examined by the Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency (“OCC”) and is subject to examination by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC”). This regulation and supervision establishes a comprehensive framework of activities in which
an institution may engage and is intended primarily for the protection of the FDIC's deposit insurance
fund and depositors, and not for the protection of stockholders, Under this system of federal regulation,
financial institutions are periodically examined to ensure that they satisfy applicable standards with
respect to their capital adequacy, assets, manhagement, earnings, liquidity and sensitivity to market interest
rates. Madison County Bank also is a member of and owns stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Topeka, which is one of the twelve regional banks in the Federal Home Loan Bank System. Madison
County Bank also is regulated to a lesser extent by tho Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
(the “Federal Reserve Board™), governing reserves to be maintained against deposits and other matters.
The OCC examines Madison County Bank and prepares reports for the consideration of its board of
directors on any operating deficiencies. Madison County Bank’s relationship with its depositors and
borrowers also is regulated to a great extent by federal law and, to a much legser extent, state law,
especially in matters concerning the ownership of deposit accounts and the form and content of Madison
County Bank’s loan documents,

Ags a savings and loan holding company, Madison County Financial, Inc, is required to file certain
reports with, 1s subject to examination by, and otherwise must comply with the rules and regulations of
the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City. Madison County Financial, Tnc.
is also subject to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the federal
securities laws.

Certain of the regulatory requirements that are applicablc to Madison County Bank and Madison
County Financial, Inc. are described below. This description of statutes and regulations is not intended to
be a complete description of such statutes and regulations and their effects on Madison County Bank and
Madison County Financial, Inc. Any change in these [aws or regulations, whether by the FDIC, the OCC
or Congress, could have a material adverse impact on Madison County Financial, Inc., Madison County
Bank and their operations.
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The Podd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act

The Dodd-Frank Wali Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank
Act”) has significantly affected the regulation of banks and other financial institutions, including their
lending, investment, trading and operating activities, The Dodd-Frank Act eliminated the Office of Thrift
Supervision on July 21, 2011, the former primary federal regulator of Madison County Bank, and required
Madison County Bank to be regulated by the OCC (the primary federal regulator for national banks). The
Dodd-Frank Act also authorizes the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System to supervise and
regulate all savings and loan holding companies in addition to bank holding companies. As a result, the
Federal Reserve Board’s current regulations applicable to bank holding companies, including holding
company capital requirements, apply to savings and loan holding companies like Madison County
Financial, Inc,, unless an exemption cxists. These capital requirements are substantially similar to the
capital requirements currontly applicable to Madison County Bank as described in “— Federal Banking
Regulation — Capital Requirements,” The Dodd-Frank Act also requires the Federal Reserve Board to set
minimum capital levels for bank holding companies that are as stringent as those required for the insured
depository subsidiaries, and the components of Tier 1 capital are restricted to capital instruments that are
currently considered to be Tier 1 capital for insured depository instifutions. Bank holding companies with
assets of less than $500 million are exempt from these capital requirements. Under the Dodd-Frank Act,
the proceeds of trust preferred securifies are excluded from Ticr 1 capital unless such securities were
issued prior to May 19, 2010 by bank or savings and loan holding companies with less than $15 billion of
assets, The legislation also establishes a floor for capital of insured depository institutions that cannot be
lower than the standards in effect today, and directs the federal banking regulators to implement new
leverage and capital requirements within 18 months that take into account off-balance sheet activities and
other risks, including risks relating to securitized products and derivatives.

The Dodd-I'rank Act also created a new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau with broad
powers to supervise and enforce consumer protection laws. The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
bas broad rule-making authority for a wide range of consumer protection laws that apply to all banks and
savings institutions such as Madison County Bank, including the authority to prohibit “unfair, deceptive
or abusive” acts and practices, The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has examunation and
enforcement authority over all banks and savings institutions with rmore than $10 billion in assets. Banks
and savings institutions with $10 billion or less in assets will be examined by their applicable bank
regulators. The legislation also weakens the federal preemption available for national banks and federal
savings associations, and gives state attorneys general the ability to enforce applicable federal consumer
protection laws.

The legislation also broadens the base for FDIC insurance assessments. Assessments are now
based on the average consolidated total assets less tangible equity capital of a financial institution. The
Dodd-Frank Act also permanently increased the maximum amount of deposit insurance for banks, savings
institutions and credit unions to $250,000 per depositor, retroactive (o January 1, 2008, and non-interest
bearing transaction accounts had unlimited deposit insurance through December 31, 2012, Lastly, the
Dodd-Frank Act will increase stockholder influence over boards of directors by requiring companies to
give stockholders a non-binding vote on executive compensation and so-called “golden parachute”
payments, The legislation also directs the Federal Reserve Board to promulgate rules prohibiting
cxcessive compensation paid to bank holding company executives, regardless of whether the company is
publicly traded or not.

Federal Banking Regulation
Business Activities. A federal savings bank derives its lending and investiment powers from the

Home Owners’ Loan Act, as amended, and the regulations of the OQCC, Under these laws and
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regulations, Madison County Bank may invest in moxtgage loans secured by residential and commercial
real esiate, commercial business and consumer loans, certain types of debt securities and certain other
assets, subject to applicable limits. Madison County Bank also may establish subsidiaries that may
engage in activities not otherwise permissible for Madison County Bank, including real estate investment
and securities and insurance brokerage.

Capital Requirements. Federal regulations require savings banks to meet three mininmm capital
standards: a 1.5% tangible capital ratio, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for savings banks receiving the highest
rating on the CAMELS rating system) and an 8% risk-based capital ratio.

The risk-based capital standard for savings banks requires the maintenance of Tier 1 (¢ore) and
total capital (which is defined as core capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighted assets of at least
4% and 8%, respectively, In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including certain
off-balance sheet assets, are multiplicd by a risk-weight factor of 0% to 100%, assigned by the OCC,
based on the risks believed inherent in the type of asset. Core capital is defined as common stockholders’
equity {(including retained earnings), certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus
and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less intangibles other than certain
morigage servicing rights and credit card relationships. The components of supplementary capital include
cumulative preferred stock, long-term perpetual preferred stock, mandatoty convertible securities,
subordinated debt and intermediate preferred stock, the allowance for loan and lease losses limited to a
maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets and up to 45% of net unrealized gains on available-{or-sale
equity securities with readily deteriminable fair market values. Overall, the amount of supplementary
capital included as part of total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital. Additionally, a savings bank
that retains credit risk in connection with an asset sale may be required to maintain additional regulatory
capital because of the purchaser’s recourse against the savings bank. In assessing an institution’s capital
adequacy, the OCC takes into consideration not only these numeric factors but also qualitative factors as
well, and has the authority to establish higher capital requirements for individual savings banks where
necessary,

At December 31, 2012, Madison County Bank’s capital exceeded all applicable requirements.

On June &, 2012, the OCC and the other federal bank regulatory agencies issued a series of
proposed rules that would revise their leverage and risk-based capital requirements and the method for
calculating risk-weighted assets to make them consistent with agreements that were reached by the Basel
Comunittee on Banking Supervision and cettain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. The proposed rules
would apply to all depository institutions, top-tier bank holding companies with total consolidated assets
of $300 million or more and top-tier savings and loan holding companies. Among other things, the
proposed rules establish a new common equity Uier 1 minimum capital requirement (4.5% of risk-
weighted assets) and a higher minimum Tier 1 capital to risk-based assets requirement (6% of risk-
weighted assets) and assign higher risk weight (150%) to exposures that are more than 90 days past due or
are on nonaccrual status and certain commercial real estate facilities that finance the acquisition,
development or construction of real property. The proposed rules also require unrealized gains and losses
on certain secutities holdings to be included for purposes of calculating regulatory capital requirements.
The proposed rules limit a banking organization’s capital distributions and certain discretionary bonus
payments if the banking organization does not hold a “capital conservation buffer” consisting of a
specified amount of common equity Tier 1 capital in addition to the amount necessary to meet its
minimum risk-based capital requirements. The proposed rules indicated that the final rules would
become effective on Janvary 1, 2013, and the changes set forth in the final rules will be phased in from
Jannary 1, 2013 through January 1, 2019. However, the agencies have recently indicated that, due to the
volume of public comments received, the final rule has been delayed past January 1, 2013,
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Loans-to-One Borrower. Generally, a federal savings bank may not make a loan or extend credit
- to a single or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus, An
additional amount may be loaned, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital and sutplus, if the loan is secured
by readily marketable collateral, which generally does not include real estate. As of December 31, 2012,
Madison County Bank’s largest lending relationship with a single or related group of borrowers totaled
$6.8 million, which represented 13.7% of unimpaired capital and surplys. Therefore, Madison County
Bank was in compliance with the loans-to-one borrower limitations.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test. We are required to satisty a qualified thrifi lender (“QTL”) test
whereby we either must qualify as a “domestic building and loan” association as defined by the Internal
Revenue Code or maintain at least 65% of our “portfolio assets” in “qualified thrift investments,”
“Qualified thrift investments™ consist primarily of residential mortgages and related investments,
including mortgage-backed and related securities. “Portfolio assets™ generally means total assets less
specified liquid assets up to 20% of total assets, goodwill and other intangible assets and the value of
property used to conduct business. A savings institution that fails the QTL must operate under specified
restrictions. The Dodd-Frank Act made noncompliance with the QTL test also subject to agency
enforcement action for a violation of law, As of December 31, 2012, we maintained 99.0% of our
portiolio assets in quaiified thrift investments and, therefore, we met the QTL test.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Actien. Under the federal Prompt Corrective Action statute, the
OCC is required to take supervisory actions against undercapitalized savings institutions under its
Jurisdiction, the severity of which depends upon the institution’s level of capital. A savings institution
that has total risk-based capital ratio of less than 8% or a leverage ratio or a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio
that generally is less than 4% is considered to be undercapitalized, A savings institution that has a total
risk-based capital ratio less than 6%, a Tier 1 core risk-based capital ratio of less than 3% or a leverage
ratio tha! is less than 3% is considered to be “significantly undercapitalized.” A savings institution that
has a tangible capital to assets ratio equal to or less than 2% is deemed to be “critically undercapitalized.”

Generally, the OCC is required to appoint a receiver or conservator for a savings institution that is
“eritically undercapitalized” within specific time frames. The regulations also provide that a capital
restoration plan must be filed with the OCC within 45 days of the date a savings institulion receives
notice that it is “nndercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” or “critically undercapitalized.” Any
holding company for the savings institution required to submit a capital restoration plan must guarantes
the lesser of an amount equal to 5% of the savings institution’s assets at the time it was notified or
deemed to be undercapitalized by the OCC, or the amount necessary to restore the savings institution to
adequately capitalized status. This guarantee remains in place until the OCC notifies the savings
institution that it has maintained adequately capitalized status for each of four consecutive calendar
quarters, and the OCC has the authority to require payment and collect payment under the guarantee,
Various restrictions, such as on capital distributions and growth, also apply to “undercapitalized”
institutions. The OCC may also take any one of a number of discretionary supervisory actions against
undercapitalized institutions, including the issuance of a capital directive and the replacement of senior
executive officers and directors.

The recently proposed rules that would increase regulatory capital requirements would adjust the
prompt corrective action categories accordingly.

Capital Distributions. Federal regulations restrict capital distributions by savings institutions,
which include cash dividends, stock repurchascs and other transactions charged to the capital account of a
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savings institudion. A federal savings institution must file an application with the OCC for approval of
the capital distribution if*

. the total capital distributions for the applicable calendar year exceeds the sum of the
institution’s net income for that year to date plus the institution’s relained net income for
the preceding two years;

. the mstitution would not be at least adequately capitalized following the distribution;

. the distribution would violate any applicable statute, regulation, agreement or wriiten

regulatory condition; or

. the institution is not eligible for expedited review of its filings (i.e., generally, institutions
that do not have safety and soundness, compliance and Community Reinvestment Act
ratings in the top two categories or fail a capital requirement).

A savings institution that is a subsidiary of a holding company, such as Madison County Bank,
must file a notice with the Federal Reserve Board at least 30 days before the board of directors declares a
dividend of approves a capital distribution.

Applications or notices may be denied if the institution will be undercapitalized after the
dividend, the proposed dividend raises safety and soundness concerns or the proposed dividend would
violate a law, regulation enforcement order or regulatory condition,

In the event that a savings institution’s capital falls below its regulatory requirements or it is
notified by the regulatory agency that it is in need of more than normal supervision, its ability to make
capital distributions would be restricted. In addition, any proposed capital distribution could be
prchibited if the regulatory agency determines that the distribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound
practice.

Transactions with Related Parties. A savings institution’s authority to engage in transactions
with related parties or “affiliates” is limited by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and its
implementing regulation, Federal Reserve Board Regulation W, The term “affiliate” generally means any
company that controls or is under commeon control with an institution, including Madison County
Financial, Inc. and its non-savings institution subsidiaries, Applicable law limits the aggregate amount of
“covered” transactions with any Individual affiliate, including loans to the affiliate, to 10% of the capital
and surplus of the savings institution. The aggregate amount of covered transactions with all affiliates is
limited to 20% of the savings institution’s capital and surplus, Certain covered transactions with
atfiliates, such as loans to or guarantees issued on behalf of affiliates, are required to be secured by
specified amounts of collateral. Purchasing low quality assets fiom affiliates is generally prohibited.
Regulation W also provides that transactions with affiliates, including covered transactions, must be on
terms and under circumsiances, including credit standards, that are substantially the same or at least as
favorable to the institution as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-affiliated
companies. In addition, savings institutions are prohibited by law from lending to any affiliate that is
engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies and no savings institution may
purchase the securities of any affiliatc other than a subsidiary.

Our authority to extend credit to executive officers, directors and 10% or greater shareholders
(“insiders™), as well as entities controlled by these persons, is governed by Sections 22(g) and 22(h) of the
Federal Reserve Act and its implementing regulation, Federal Reserve Board Regulation O. Among other
* things, loans to insiders must be made on terms substantially the same as those offered to unaffiliated =
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individuals and not involve more than the normal risk of repayment. There is an exception for bank-wide
lending programs that do not discriminate in favor of insiders. Regulation O also places individual and
aggregate limits on the amount of loans that may be made to insiders based, in part, on the institution’s
capital position, and requires that certain prior board approval procedures be followed. Iixtensions of
credit to executive officers are subject to additional restrictions on the types and amounts of loans that
may be made. At December 31, 2012, we were in compliance with these regulations.

Enforcement. The OCC has primary enforcement responsibility over federal savings institutions,
including the authority to bring enforcement action against “institution-related parties,” including officers,
directors, certain sharcholders, and attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessty
participate in wrongful action likely to have an adverse effect on an insured institution. Formal
cnforcement action may range from the issuance of a capital directive or cease and desist order to removal
of officers and/or directors of the institution, receivership, conservatoiship or the termination of deposit
insurance. Civil penalties cover a wide range of violations and actions, and range up to $25,000 per day,
unless a finding of reckless disregard is made, in which case penalties may be as high as $1.0 million per
day.

Deposit Insurance, The Dodd-Frank Act permanently increased the maximum amount of deposit
msurance for banks, savings institutions and credit unions to $250,000 per depositor, retroactive to
January 1, 2008, Also, under the Dodd-Frank Act, noninterest-beating checking accounts had unlimited
deposit insurance through December 31, 2012.

On November 12, 2009, the FDIC approved a final rule requiring insured depository institutions
to prepay, on December 30, 2009, their estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quatter
of 2009, and for all of 2010, 2011, and 2012. Estimated assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and
for all of 2010 were based upon the assessment rate in effect on September 30, 2009, with thres basis
points added for the 2011 and 2012 assessment rates, In addition, a 5% annual growth in the assessment
base was assumed. Prepaid assessments are to be applied against the actual quarterly assessments until
exhausted, and may not be applied to any special asscssments that may occur in the future. Any vnuscd
prepayments will be returned to the institution on June 30, 2013. We recorded the pre-payment as a
prepaid expense, which will be amortized to expense over three years. Based on our deposit and
assessment rate as of September 30, 2009, our prepayment amount was $660,000.

Effective April 1, 2011, the FDIC implemented a requirement of the Dodd-Frank Act to revise its
agsessment system so that it is based on each institution’s total asgets less tangible capital, instead of
deposits. The FDIC also rovised its assessment schedule so that if ranges from 2.5 basis points for the
least risky institutions to 45 basis peints for the riskiest.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that an institution has
engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has
violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC. The Bank does not
believe that 1t is taking any action or is subject to any condition or violation that could lead to termination
of its deposit insurance.

All FDIC-insured institutions are required to pay a pro rata portion of the inferest due on
obligations issued by the Financing Corporation (“FICO™) for anticipated payments, issuance costs and
custodial fees on bonds issued by the FICO in the 1980s to recapitalize the Federal Savings and Loan
Insurance Corporation. The bonds issved by the FICO are due to mature in 2017 through 2019, For the
quarter ended December 31, 2012, the annualized Financing Corporation assessment was equal to 64
basis points cof total assels less tangible capital. Assessments related to the FICO bond obhgatlons were
not subject to the December 30, 2009 prepayment, '
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For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Bank paid $14,000 related to the FICO bonds and
$103,000 (pursuant to the December 30, 2009 prepayment) pertaining to deposit insurance
assegstuents, Deposit insurance assessments were prepaid in December 2009, for calendar years 2010
through 2012.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Madison County Bagk is a member of thie Federal Home
Loan Bank System, which consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan
Bank System provides a central credit facility primarily for member institutions. As a member of the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka, we aro required to acquire and hold a specified amount of shares of
capital stock in Federal Home Loan Bank.

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Laws. Savings institutions have a responsibility
under the Community Reinvestment Act and related regulations to help meet the credit needs of their
communities, including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. An institution’s failure to comply
with the provisions of the Community Reinvestment Act could, at a minimum, result in regulatory
restrictions on ccrtain activities such as branching and acquisitions. Madison County Bank received a
“Satisfactory” Community Reinvestment Act rating in its most recent examination.

Other Regulations. Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by Madison County
Bank are subject to state usury laws and federal laws concerning interest rates. Madison County Bank’s
operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such as the;

. Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

. Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, requiring that borrowers for mortgage loans for
one- to four-family residential real estate receive various disclosures, including good faith
estimates of settlement costs, lender servicing and escrow account practices, and
prohibiting certain practices that increase the cost of settlement services;

. Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, requiring financial institutions to provide information to
enable the public and public officials to delermine whether a financial institution is

fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves;

J Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting disctimination on the basis of race, creed or
other prohibited factors in extending credit;

. Fair Credit Reporting Act, governing the use and provision of information to credit
reporting agencies;

) Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be
collected by collection agencies;

* Truth in Savings Act; and

. Rules and reguiations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of
implementing such federal laws, '
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The operations of Madison County Bank also are subject to the:

. Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain confidentiality of
consumer financial records and prescribes procedures for complying with adminisirative
subpoenas of financial records;

. Electronic Funds Transfer Act, which governs automatic deposits to and withdrawals
from. deposit accounts and customers’ rights and liabilities arising from the use of
automated teller machines and other electronic banking services;

. Check Clearing for the 21% Century Act (also known as “Check 217}, which gives
“substitute checks,” such as digital check images and copies made from that image, the
same legal standing as the original paper check;

. The USA PATRIOT Act, which requires banks and savings institutions to, among other
things, establish broadened anti-money laundering compliance programs and due
diligence policies and controls to ensure the detection and reporting of money laundering.
Such required compliance programs are intended to supplement pre-existing compliance
requirements that apply to financial institutions under the Bank Secrecy Act and the
Office of Foreign Assets Control regulations; and

) The Gramm-ILeach-Bliley Act, which places limitations on the sharing of consumer
financial information by financial institutions with unaffiliated third parties, and requires
all financial institutions offering products or services to retail customers to provide such
customers with the financial mstitution’s privacy policy and allow such customers the
opportunity to “opt out™ of the sharing of certain personal financial information with
unaffiliated third parties. ‘

Holding Company Regulation

Madison County Financial, Inc. is a unitary savings and loan holding company subject to
regulation and supervision by the Federal Reserve Board. The Federal Reserve Board has enforcement
anthority over Madison County Financial, Inc. and ifs non-savings institution subsidiarics. Among other
things, that authority permits the Federal Reserve Board to restrict or prohibit activities that are
determined to e a risk to Madison County Bank.

As a savings and loan holding company, Madison County Financial, Inc.’s activities are limited
to those activities permissible by law for financial holding companies or multiple savings and loan
holding companies. A financial holding company may engage in activities that are financial in nature,
incidental to financial activities or complementary to a financial activity. Such activities include lending
activities, insurance and underwriting equity securities, The Dodd-Frank Act added that any savings and
loan holding company that engages in activities perinissible for a financial holding company must meet
the qualitative requirements for a bank holding company to be a financial holding company and conduct
the activities in accordance with the requirements that would apply to a financial holding company’s
conduct of the activity.

Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holding company, directly or indirecily, or through one
or more subsidiaries, from acquiring more than 5% of another savings institution or savings and loan
holding company without prior written approval of the Federal Reserve Board and from acquiring or
retaining control of any depository institution not insured by the FDIC. In evaluating applications by
holding companies fo acquire savings institutions, the Federal Reserve Board must consider such things
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as the financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the company and institution involved,
the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the federal deposit insurance fund, the convenience and needs of
the community and competitive factors. An acquisition by a savings and loan holding company of a
savings institution in another state to be held as a separate subsidiary may not be approved unless it is a
supervisory acquisition under Section 13(k) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, or the law of the state
in which the target is located authorizes such acquisitions by out-of-state companies.

Savings and loan holding companies have not historically been subjected to consolidated
regulatory capital requirements, However, the Dodd-Frank Act requires the Federal Reserve Board to set,
for all depository institution holding companies, minimum consolidated capital levels that are as stringent
as those required {or the insured depository institution subsidiaries. The components of Tier ! capita)
must be restricted to capital instruments that are currently considered to be Tier I capital for insured
depository institutions. That would exclude from tier 1 capital instruments such as trust preferred
securities and cumulative preferred stock that are currently permitted for bank holding companies. The
Dodd-Frank Act provides that instruments issued before May 19, 2010 will be grandfathered for
companies of consolidated assets of $15 billion or less, The Dodd-Frank Act further provides that
holding companies that were not regulated by the Federal Reserve Board as of May 19, 2010 (which
would include most savings and loan holding companies) are subject to a five-year transition period from
the July 21, 2010 date of enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act before such capital requirements apply. The
proposed capital rules discussed earlier would implement the consolidated capital requirements for
savings and loan holding companies. However, the proposed rules did not incorporate the referenced
grandfather for instruments issucd before May 19, 2010 ot the transition period, notwithstanding the
Dodd-Frank statutory language, so it is unceriain whether any final rule will do so.

The Dodd-Frank Act extends the “source of strength” doctrine to savings and loan holding
companies. The regulatory agencies must promulgate regulations implementing the “source of strength”
doctrine that requires holding companies to act as a source of strength for their subsidiary depository
institutions by providing capital, liquidity and other support in times of financial stress.

The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy guidance regarding the payment of dividends by
bank holding companies that it has made applicable to savings and loan holding companies as well. In
general, the Federal Reserve Board’s policies provide that dividends should be paid only from current
earnings and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention by the holding company appears consistent
with the organization’s capital needs, assct quality and overall financial condition. Federal Reserve Board
guidance provides for prior regulatory review of capital distributions in certain circumstances such as
where the company’s nel income for the past four quarters, net of dividends previously paid over that
period, is insufficient to fully fund the dividend or the company’s overall rate of earnings retention is
inconsistent with the company’s capital needs and overall financial condition. The ability of a holding
company to pay dividends may be restricted if a subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. These
regulatory policies could affect our ability to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions,
The policy statement also provides for regulatory review prior to a holding company redeeming or
repurchasing regulatory capital instruments when the helding company is experiencing financial
weaknesses or redeeming or repurchasing common stock or perpetual preferred stock in an amount that
would result in a net reduction as of the end of a quarter in the amount of such equity instruments
outstanding compared with the beginning of the quarter in which the redemption or repurchase occurred.
These regulatory policies could affect the ability of Madison County I'inancial, Tnc. to pay dividends,
repurchase shares of common stock or otherwise engage in capital distributions.
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Federal Securities Laws

Our common stock is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securitios Exchange Act of 1934, We are subject to the information, proxy solicitation, insider trading
restrictions and other requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

The JOBS Act, which became law on April 5, 2012, contains provisions that, among other things,
reduce certain reporting requirements for qualifying public companies. As an “emerging growth
company” we may delay adoption of ncw or revised accounting pronouncements applicable to public
companies until such pronouncements are made applicable to private companies. We chose to take
advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period. Accordingly, our financial statements may not
be comparable to companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.

Additionally, we are in the process of evaluating the benefits of relying on the other reduced
reporting requirements provided by the JOBS Act. Subject to certain conditions set forth in the JOBS Act,
if, as an “emerging growth company,” we choose to rely on such exemptions we may not be required to,
among other things, (i) provide an auditor’s attestation report on our system of internal controls over
financial reporting pursuant to Section 404, (ii) provide all of the compensation disclosure that may be
required of non-cmerging growth public companies under the Dodd-Frank Act, (iii) comply with any
requirement that may be adopted by the Public Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory audit
firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor’s report providing additional information about the audit and
the financial statements (auditor discussion and analysis), and (iv) disclose certain executive
compensation related items such as the correlation between executive compensation and performance and
comparisons of the chief executive officer’s compensation to median employee compensation, These
exemptions will apply for a period of five years following the completion of our iitial public offering or
until we are no longer an “emerging growth company,” whichever is earlier.

Sarbancs-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 addresses, among other issues, corporate governance, auditing
and accounting, executive compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate information,
As directed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are
required to certify that our quarterly and annual reports do not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact. The rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act have
several requirements, including having these officers cerlify that: they are responsible for establishing,
maintaining and regularly evaluating the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting;
they have made certain disclosures to our auditors and the audit committee of the board of directors about
our internal control over financial reporting; and, they have included information in our quarterly and
annual reports about their evaluation and whether there have been changes in our internal control over
financial reporting or in other factors that could materially affect internal control over financial reporting,
We will be subject to further reporting and audit requirements beginning with the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2013 under the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We will prepare policies,
procedures and systems designed to ensure compliance with these regulations.
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TAXATION
Federal Taxation

General. Madison County Financial, Inc. and Madison County Bank are subject to federal
income taxation in the same general manner as other corporations, with some exceptions discussed below.
The following discussion of federal taxation is intended only o summarize material federal income tax
matters and is not a comprehensive description of the tax rules applicable to Madison County Financial,
Inc. and Madison County Bank

Method of Accounting. For federal income tax purposes, Madison County Bank currently
reports its income and expenses on the accrual method of accounting and uses a tax year ending
December 31st for filing its consolidated federal income tax returns. The Small Business Protection Act
of 1996 eliminated the use of the reserve method of accounting for bad debt reserves by savings
institutions, effective for taxable years beginning after 1995.

Mimimum Tax. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, imposes an alternative
minimum tax at a rate of 20% on a base of regular taxable income plus certain tax preferences, referred to
as “alternative minimum taxable income.” The alternative minimum tax is payable to the extent
alternative minimum taxable income is in excess of an exemption amount. Net operating losses can, in
general, offset 1o more than 90% of alternative minimum taxable income. Certain payments of
alternative mmimum tax may be used as credits against regular tax liabilities in future years. At
December 31, 2012, Madison County Bank had no minimum tax credit carryforward,

Corporate Dividends. We may exclude from our income 1009% of dividends received from
Madison County Bank as a member of the same affiliated group of corporations.

Audit of Tax Returns. Madison County Bank’s federal income tax refurns have not been audited
in the most recent five-year period.

State Taxation

Nebraska State Taxation. Madison County Financial, Inc., and Madison County Bank are subject
to Nebraska Taxation. Under Nebraska law, Madison County Bank pays a franchise tax in lieu of a
corporate income tax. The franchise tax is the lesser of two amounts comnputed based on our average
deposits and net financial income, respectively. Presently, the tax is $0.47 per $1,000 of average deposits
but not to exceed an amount determined by applying 3.81% to our net financial income. Net financial
income is our income as reported to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency after ordinary and
necessary expenses but before income taxes. In addition, Madison County Bank and Madison County
Financial, Inc. are required to file a Nebraska income tax return because we are doing business in
Nebraska. For Nebraska tax purposes, corporations are presently taxed at a rate equal to 5.58% of the first
$50,00C of taxable income and 7,81% of taxable income in excess of $50,000, For this purpose, “taxable
income” generally means Federal taxable income, subject to certain adjustments (including addition of
interest income on non-Nebraska municipal obligations and excluding interest income from qualified 1.8.
governmental obligations).

Other applicable state taxes include generally applicable sales and use taxes phis real and

personal property taxes. Madison County Bank’s state income tax returns have not been audited in recent
years,
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Availability of Annual Report on Form 10-K

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is available on our website at www.madisoncountybank.com.

Information on the website is not incorporated into, and is not otherwise considered a part of, this Annual
Report on Form 10-K,
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ITEM 1A, Risk Factors

The presentation of Rislk Factors is not required for smaller reporting companies like Madison
County Financial, Inc.

ITEM 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

ITEM 2, Properties

Properties

As of December 31, 2012, the net book value of our office properties was $2.1 million, The
following table sets forth information regarding our offices.

Leased or Net Book Value of
Location L Owned Year Acquired Square Footage Real Property
(Lix thousands)

Main (Madison) Office:
111 West Third Street
Madison , Nebraska 68748 Owned 1995 7,400 § 479
Other Properties:
103 South 4th Street
Albion, Nebraska 68620 Owned 2005 7,500 § 444
2100 Pasewalk Avenue
Norfolk , Nebraska 68701 Owned 1998 4,600 $ 513
402 West Locust Street
Plainview, Nebraska 68769 Owned 2008 4,500 $ 627

Additionally, we maintain offices in Creighton and Randolph, Nebraska, both of which provide
limited services to our customers. These offices are located in office space of unrelated third-parties to
which we pay nominal monthly fees.

ITEM 3. 1.egal Proceedings

At December 31, 2012, we were not involved in any pending legal proceedings other than routine
legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary course of business which, in the aggregate, involve amounts
which management believes will not materially adversely affsct our financial condition, our results of
operations or our cash flows,

ITEM 4, Mine Safety Disclosures

Net applicable.
PART I
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities
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{(a) Market, Holder and Dividend Information. Our common stock is listed on the Nasdag
Stock Market under the symbol “MCBK.” The Company completed its initial public offering on October
3, 2012 and commenced trading on Ogtober 4, 2012. The approximate number of holders of record of
Madison County Financial, Inc.’s common stock as of December 31, 2012 was 677. Certain shares of
Madison County Financial, Inc. are held in “nominee” or “street” name and accordingly, the number of
beneficial owners of such shares is not known or included in the foregoing number. The following table
presents quarterly market information for Madison County Financial, Inc.’s common stock for the period
beginning October 4, 2012 and ended December 31, 2012. The following information with respect to
trading prices was provided by the Nasdaqg Capital Market.

2012 High Low Dividends Declared
Quarter Ended
December 31,2012 $16.20 $14.24 —

In 2012, Madison County Financial, Inc. did not pay cash dividends on its common stock.
Dividend payments by Madison Counly Financial, Inc. are dependent on dividends it receives from
Madison County Bank, because Madison County Financial, Inc. has no source of income other than
dividends from Madison County Bark, earnings from the investment of proceeds from the sale of shares
of common stock retained by Madison County Finaneial, Inc. and interest payments with respect to
Madison County Financial, Inc.’s loan to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan, See “Item 1. Business—
Supervision and Regulation--Federal Banking Regulation—Capital Distributions.”

(b) Sales of Unregistered Securities, Not applicable.

(c) Use of Proceeds. On Jamary 17, 2012 and as amended on April 16, 2012 and August 2,
2012, the Board of Directors of Madison County Holding Company, MHC (the “MHC”), the former
mutual holding company of Madison County Bank, adopted a plan of conversion and reorganization,
pursuant to which the MHC would convert from the mutual to the stock form of ownership, and Madison
County Financial, Inc., as successor to the MITC, would sell shares of common stock to the public. On
May 1, 2012, Madison County Financial, Inc. filed a Registration Statement on Form S-1 with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (File No. 333-181070) with respect to the shares to be offered and
sold pursuant to the plan of conversion and reorganization. Madison County Financial, Inc. registered for
offer and sale up to 4,761,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, at a sales price of
$10.00 per share. The registration statement was declared effective by the Securitics and Exchange
Commission on August 10, 2012,

The public stock offering closed on October 3, 2012, and on October 4, 2012 the common stock
began trading on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “MCBK.”

In accordance with the plan of conversion and reorganization and pursuant to the registration
statement, the shares of common stock were offered to eligible depositors of Madison County Bank,
Madison County Bank’s employee stock ownership plan and members of the general public. Keefe,
Bruyette & Woods, Inc. was engaged to assist in the marketing of the common stock. For their services,
Keefe, Bruyetle & Woods, Inc. received a management fee of $50,000 and a success fee of 1,25% of the
dollar value of the shares sold in the subscription offering, excluding shares sold to Madison County
Bank’s fax qualified employee plans, including 255,444 shares, equal to 8.0% of the shares sold in the
offering, to the Madison County Bank employee stock ownership plan, and shares sold to our officers,
employses and directors and members of their immediate families. The success fee was reduced by the
management fee,
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The stock offering resulted in gross proceeds of $31.9 million through the sale of 3,193,054
shares at $10.00 per share. Expenses related to the offering were approximately $1.3 million, including a
fee of $401,000 paid to Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc, Madison County Financial, Inc. received net
proceeds from the initial public offering of $30.7 million and loaned $2.55 million to Madison County
Bank’s employee stock ownership plan to enable it to purchase 255,444 shares of common stock in the
offering. The remaining net proceeds were $28.1 million, of which $15 million was contributed to
Madison County Bank in the form of additional paid in capital, and the remainder has been retained by
Madison County Financial, Inc. to be utilized for general corporate purposes.

Initially, upon the closing of our initial stock offering, a substantial portion of the proceeds have
been invested in overnight investments and short-term investments.

(d) Securities Authovized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans, See “Item 12,
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matiers.”

(e) Stock Repurchases. Not applicable,
() Stock Performance Graph. Not required for smaller reporting eompanies.

ITEM é. Selected Financial Data

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

This section is intended to help potential investors understand the financial performance of
Madison County Financial, Inc. and its subsidiaries through a discussion of the factors affecting our
financial condition at Deceraber 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and our results of operations for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. This section should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statoments that appear elsewhere
in this Annual Report.

Overview

We have operated continuously in and around Madison, Nebraska, which is located in
northeastern Nebraska, since our founding in 1888. Our principal business consists of attracting retail
deposits from the general public in our market area and investing those deposits, together with funds
generated from operations and to a lesser extent borrowings, in agricultural real estate loans, one- to four-
family residential real estate loans, agricultural and commercial non-real estate loans and commercial and
multi-family real estate loans. To a much lesser extent, we also originate consumer loans, including
automobile loans. We also purchase investment securities consisting prinarily of securities issued by the
United States Treasury, United States Government agencies, and Government-sponsored enterprises, and
municipal securities issued by counties, cities, school districts and other political subdivisions in
Nebraska and South Dakota. At December 31, 2012, we had total assets of $267.3 million, total deposits
of $195.2 million and total stockholders® equity of $62.1 million,

Our results of operations depend primarily on our net interest income. Net interest income is the
difference between the interest income we earn on our interest-earning assets and the interest we pay on
our interest-bearing liabilities. Our results of operations also are affected by our provisions for loan
losses, non-interest income and non-interest expense. - Non-interest income currently consists primarily of -
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insurance commission income obtained from our insurance agency subsidiary, service charges on deposit
accounts, ATM and debit card fees, loan service charges and loan servicing income, gain on sales of
securities and loans, income from bank-owned life insurance and miscellaneous other income. Non-
interest expense currently consists primarily of compensation and employee benefits, directors’ fees and
benefits, office occupancy, data processing, FDIC insurance premiums, advertising and supplies, core
deposit intangible amortization, professional fees, and other operating expenses.

Our results of operations also may be affected significantly by general and local economic and
competitive conditions, changes in market interest rates, governmental policies and actions of regulatory
authorities, Specifically, our operations are significantly affected by the profitability of farming in our
market area, the primary commodity of which is corn, and to a lesser extent, soybeans and livestock,
including beef and potk production. The profitability of many of our agricultural borrowers is dependent,
in part, on factors outside their control, including the price of commoditics, adverse weather conditions
that prevent the planting and/or harvesting of a crop or that limit crop yields, loss of livestock due to
disease or other factors, declines in market prices for agriculiural products (both domestically and
internationally), crop production expenses (primarily fertilizer, fuel, seed and chemicals) and the impact
of government regulations (including changes in price supports, subsidies and environmental
regulations).

Although our emphasis on agricultural lending, both real estate and non-real estate based, presents
specific risks to our resulis of operations, we believe that we mitigate these risks through cur conservative
underwriting standards and our understanding of the farming economy in our market area. Additionally,
we believe that our overall loan portfolio, 57.5% of which consisted of variable-rate loans at December
31, 2012, reduces our vulnerability to changes in interest rates and improves our net interest rate spread.
To reduce further our interest rate risk, in recent years and in the low interest rate environment, we have
sold all of our conforming fixed-rate, one- to four-family residential real esiate loans that we originate
with terms of greater than 15 years.

Critical Accounting Policies

We consider accounting policies that require management to oxercise significant judgment or
discretion or make significant assumptions that have, or could have, a material impact on the carrying
value of certain assets or on income, to be critical accounting pelicies.

The recently enacted JOBS Act contains provisions that, among other things, reduce certain
reporting requirements for qualifying public companies. As an “emerging growth company” we may
delay adoption of new or revised accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such
pronouncements are made applicable to private cornpanies. We intend to choose to take advantage of the
benefits of this extended transition period. Accordingly, our financial statements may not be comparable
to companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.

We consider the following to be our critical accounting policies:

Allowance for Loan Losses. Our allowance for loan losses is the estimated amount considered
necessary to reflect probable incurred credit losses in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date, The
allowance is established through the provision for loan losses, which is charged against income. In
determining the allowance for loan iosses, management makes significant estimates and has identified this
policy as one of the most critical for Madison County Financial, Inc. ‘The methodology for determining
the allowance for loan losses is considered a critical accounting policy by management due to the high

degree of judgment mvolved the sub_] ectivity of the assumptions utilized and the potential for changes in
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the economic envirenment that could result in changes to the amount of the recorded allowance for loan
losses.

Since a substantial amount of our loan portfolio is collateralized by real estate, appraisals of the
underlying value of property securing loans and discounted cash flow valuations of properties are critical
in determining the amount of the allowance required for specific loans. Assumptions for appraisals and
discounted cash flow valuations are instrumental in determining the value of properties. Overly
optimistic assumptions or negative changes to assumptions could significantly impact the valuation of a
property securing a loan and the related allowance determined. The assumptions supporting such
appraisals and discounted cash flow valuations are carefully reviewed by management to determine that
the resulting values reasonably reflect amounts realizable on the related loans.

Management performs a quarterly evaluation of the allowance for loan losses. Consideration is
given to a variety of factors in establishing this estimate including, but not limited to, current economic
conditions, delinquency statistics, goographic and industry concentrations, the value of the underlying
collateral, the financial strength of the borrower, results of internal loan reviews and other relevant
factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible
to significant revision based on changes in economic and real estate market conditions.

The analysis of the allowance for loan losses has two components: specific and general
allocations. Specific alloeations are made for loans that are determined to be impaired, Impairment loss
is measured by determining the present value of expected future cash flows or, for collateral-dependent
loans, the fair value of the collateral adjusted for market conditions and selling expenses. The general
allocation is determined by segregating classified loans from the remaining loans, and then categorizing
each group by type of loan. Loans within each type exhibit common characteristics including terms,
collateral type, and other risk characteristics. We also analyze historical loss experience, delinquency
trends, general economic conditions and geographic and industry concentrations. This analysis
establishes factors that are appliod to the loan groups to determine the amount of the general allocations.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assers. In 2005, we acquired First Capital Investment Company,
Inc. and its subsidiary financial institution, First National Bank of Albion, under the purchase method of
accounting in effect at the time. Under the purchase method, we were required to allocate the cost of an
acquired company to the assets acquired, including identified intangible assets, and liabilities assumed
based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition, The excess cost over the net assets acquired
represents goodwill, which is not subject to periodic amortization. At December 31, 2012 we had
recorded $481,000 of goodwill, '

Customer relationship intangibles are required to be amortized over their estimated useful
lives. The method of amortization reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of these intangible
assets are estimated to be consumed or otherwise used up. Our customer relationship intangibles are
being amortized over 15 years using the double declining balance method. Since our acquired cuslomer
relationships are subject to routine customer attrition, the relationships are more likely o produce greater
benefits in the near-term than in the long-term, which typically supports the use of an accelerated method
of amortization for the related intangible assets. Management is required to evaluate the useful life of
customer relationship intangibles to determine if events or circumstances warrant a change in the
estimated life, Should management determine the estimated life of any intangible asset is shorter than
originally estimated, we would adjust the amortization of that asset, which could increase future
amortization expense. At December 31, 2012 we had recorded $810,000 of core deposit intangible.

Goodwill arising from business combinations represents the value attributable to unidentifiable
Inmtangible elements in the businéss acquiréd. Goodwill recorded by us in connection with our acquisition
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relates to the inherent value in the businesses acquired and this value is dependent upon our ability to
provide quality, cost effective services in a competitive marketplace. Tn the event that the operations of
Madison County Bank lack profitability, an impairment of goodwill may need to be recognized. Any
impairment recognized would adversely impact earnings in the period in which it is recognized.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. If the implied fair value of goodwill is lower than ils
carrying value, a goodwill impairment is indicated and the goodwill is written down to its implied fair
value. Subsequent increases in goodwill are not recognized in the financial statements. At our annual
impairment assessment date of December 31, 2012, our analysis indicated that no impairment existed.

Future events, such as adverse changes in our business or changes in the economic market, could
cause management to conclude that impairment indicators exist and require management to re-cvaluate
goodwill. Should such re-evaluation determine goodwill is impaired, the resulting impairment loss
recognized could have a material, adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations,

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011

Total assets increased $28.6 million to $267.3 million at December 31, 2012 from $238.7 million
at December 31, 2011, The increase was due primarily to an increass in net loans, investment securities
classified as held to maturity, certificates of deposit and cash and cash equivalents, which were offset by a
decrease in investment securities classified as available for sale. While our net loans increased during
2012, we made a strategic decision to not actively compete for the origination of one- to four-family
residential real estate loans in the current low interest rate environment, but rather to sell all qualifying
loans in order to increase the liquidity in our balance sheet by increasing cash and cash equivalents and
nvestments.

Net loans increased $18.2 million, or 9.6%, to $207.2 million at December 31, 2012, from $189.0
million at December 31, 2011. The increase in our loan portfolio during 2012 resulied from an increase
in agricultural real estate loans, which increased $13.2 million, or 15.9%, to $96.6 million at Decembeor
31,2012, from $83.3 million at December 31, 2011, and an increase in agricultural and commetcial non-
real estate loans, which increased $7.0 million, or 15.0%, to $53.6 million at December 31, 2012, from
$46.6 million at December 31, 2011, offset by a decrease in our one- to four-family residential real estate
loans of $1.5 million, or 3.9%, to $36.0 million at December 31, 2012, from $37.4 million at December
31, 2011. The increase in agricultural real estate loans reflects the continued increase in agricuitural real
estate values in our market area. The increase in agricultural and commercial non-real estate loans
resuited from the steady demand for these types of loans in our market area in the current low interest rate
environment combined with inereasing commodities input prices (fertilizer, seed, fuel and chemicals).
One- to four-family residential mortgages decreased, due primarily to refinancing and sale of these loans
and our decision to not actively compete for these loans in the current interest rate environment.

Investment securities classified as held to maturity increased $9.6 million, or 62.5%, to $25.0
million at December 31, 2012 from $15.4 million at December 31, 2011, offset by a $1.2 million, or
12.2%, decrease in investment sccurities classified as available for sale to $9.0 million at December 31,
2012 from $10.2 million at December 31, 2011. Certificates of deposits increased $1.3 million, or
500.0%, to $1.5 million at December 31, 2012 from $250,000 at December 31, 2011. The net increase in
~ investment securities and certificates of deposit was a result of the investment of the stock offering
proceeds.
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Accrued interest reccivable on investment securities, certificates of deposit owned and loans
decreased $296,000, or 7.2%, to $3.8 million at December 31, 2012, from $4.1 million at December 31,
2011, primarily due to a decrease in the average yield on loans to 5.63% at December 31, 2012 from
5.83% at December 31, 2011,

Other assets, consisting primarily of prepaid assets and deferred federal taxes, increased
$306,000, or 14.4%, to $2.4 million at December 31, 2012, from $2.1 million at December 31, 2011,
primarily attributable to an increase in deferred taxes.

Deposits increased $16.0 milljon, or 8,9%, to $195.2 million at December 31, 2012, from $179.2
million at December 31, 2011, as we experienced an increase in each category of our core deposits,
Specifically, interest-bearing checking, noninterest-bearing checking, and money market sayings accounts
itereased $15.6 million, or 16,8%, $1.5 million, or 9.81%, and $6.0 million, or 17.1%, respectively, at
December 31, 2012, from December 31, 2011, We believe the increase in our core deposiis resulted from
our continued efforts to build relationships with our existing customers as well as our marketing efforts
with new customers. Certificates and time deposits decreased $7.2 million, or 20.2%, at December 31,
2012, from December 31, 2011, reflecting customer preference for more liquid transaction accounts rather
than tonger term deposits in the current low interest rate environment.

We borrow periodically from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka (“FHLB-Topcka”) and the
Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City (“FRB-Kansas City™), and, as needed, to a lesser exlent from the
Bankers® Bank of the West. Although we expect advances from the FHLB-Topeka and short-term
borrowings from FRB-Kansas City to remain an integral part of our funding strategy, our borrowings
from the FHLB-Topeka and FRB-Kansas City decreased $20.6 million, or 76.6%, to $6.3 millicn at
December 31, 2012, from $26.9 million at December 31, 2011. This decrease reflected our strategy of
decreasing our reliance on operational funding from advances and using the stock conversion proceeds
(which was consummated on October 3,2012). We continue to utilize borrowings as an alternative
funding source, and our borrowings from the FHLB-Topeka generally consist of advances with laddered
terms of up to 10 years and our borrowings from the FRB-Kansas City are short-term borrowings under
our Line of Credit and Seasonal Borrowing Agreement.

Total stockholders’ equity increased by $31,9 million, or 106.0%, to $62.1 million at December
31, 2012, from $30.1 million at December 31, 2011. The increase resulted from net proceeds of $28.1
million from our initial public offering which closed on October 3, 2012, and net income of $3.6 million
during the year ended 2012. Net proceeds include gross proceeds of $31.9 million offset by an unearned
ESOP contribution of $2.55 million and offering expenses of $1.3 million.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

General. Net income increased to $3.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $3.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2011, The increase reflected higher et interest income as well
as higher other income, offset partially by higher other expense and an increase in our provision for loan
losses during 2012.

Interest and Dividend Income. Interest and dividend income increased $86,000, or 0.7%, to
$11.7 million for 2012 from $11.7 million for 2011. The increase reflected a $17.5 million increase in
average interest-earning assets to $228.3 milltion for 2012 compared to $210.8 million for 2011, offset by
a 39 basis point decreasc in the average yield on interest-earning assets to 5.14% in 2012 from 5.53% in
2011,
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Interest income on non-taxable investment securities increased $216,000, or 48.1%, to $665,000
for 2012 from $449,000 for 2011, reflecting an increase in the average balance of such securities to $17.6
million during 2012 from $10.9 million in 2011, offset in part by a decrease in the average yield on such
securities fo 3.79% in 2012 from 4.12% in 2011. Interest income and fees on loans decreased $138,000,
or 1.3%, for 2012 resulting from a 20 basis point decrease in the average yield on loans to 5.63% during
2012 from 5.83% in 2011, reflecting lower market interest rates.

Interest Expense, Interest expense decreased $362,000, or 16.3%, to $1.9 million in 2012 from
$2.2 miltion in 2011. The decrease reflected a 21 basis point decrease in the average rate paid on interest-
bearing deposits and borrowings to 1.02% in 2012 from 1.23% in 2011, offset in part by a $1.7 million
increase in the average balance of interest-bearing deposits and borrowings to $182.1 million in 2012
from $180.4 million in 2011,

Interest expense on interest-bearing deposits decreased $317,000, or 16.3%, to $1.6 million for
2012 from $1.9 million for 2011 as the average rate paid on these deposits decreased to 0.93% during
2012 from 1.21% during 2011, offset in part by a $14.2 million increase in the average balance of these
deposits to $174.7 million for 2012 from $160.5 million for 2011. Interest expense from borrowings
decreased $45,000, or 16.6%, to $226,000 during 2012 from $271,000 during 2011, reflecting a
significant decrease in the average balance of borrowings in 2012 to $7.5 millien from $19.8 million
during 2011, offset in part by higher rates paid on such borrowings to 3.02% from 1.37% year to year,
reflecting a larger percentage of long-term horrowings during 2012 compared to 2011,

Net Interest Income. Net interest income increased $448,000, or 4.8%, to $9.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012 from $9.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, The increase in
our net interest income resulted from a $15.8 million increase in our average net interest earning assets to
$46.2 million in 2012 from $30.4 million in 201 I, which was offset in part by an 18 basis point decrease
in our net interest rate spread to 4.12% for 2012 from 4.30% for 2011, and by a 15 basis point decreasc in
our net interest margin to 4.33% for 2012 from 4.48% for 2011. The increase in our average net interest
carning assets resulted primarily from the additional capital raised in the conversion stock offering and
carnings which were reinvested in loans and other interest earning assets. The ratio of our average
interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing liabilities increased to 125.3% for 2012 from 116.9%
for 2011. The decreases in our net interest rate spread and net interest margin reflected the 39 basis point
decrease in the average yield on our interest-earning assets which was only partially offsct by a 21 basis
point decrease in the average cost of our interest bearing liabilities.

Provision for Loan Losses. Based on our analysis of the factors described in “Critical
Accounting Policies-Allowance for Loan Losses,” we recorded a provision for loan losses of $830,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2012, an increase of $150,000, or 22.1%, from the provision of $680,000
for the year ended December 31, 2011. Our determination to increase cur provision resulted in part from
the $13.2 million, or 15.9%, increase in our agricultural real estate portfolio from December 31, 2011 to
December 31, 2012, and the $7.0 million, or 15.0%, increase in our agricultural and commercial non-real
estate porifolio from December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012, primarily as a result of the increases in
the costs of crop production inputs. Additionally, in performing its analysis, management considered the
contimiing increases in the cost of agricultural real estate in our market area. Furthermore, effective
December 31, 2011, the federal government allowed a major ethanol subsidy to expire which could
adversely impact the price of corn and thus, adversely impact our agricultural borrowers and the risks
associated with these types of loans.

The provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2012, reflected net recoveries of

$94,000 compared to net charge-offs of $15,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011, The allowance
for loan losses was $4.9 miltion, of 2.3% of total lodns, at Decenmber 31, 2012 conipared to $4.8 million,
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or 2.1% of total loans, at December 31, 2011. Total nonperforming loans were $293,000 at December 31,
2012 compared to $240,000 at December 31,2011, As a percentage of nonperforming loans, the
allowance for loan losses was 1692.1% at December 31, 2012 compared to 1673.8% at December 31,
2011.

Otter Income. Other income increased $478,000, or 31.9%, to $2.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 from $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, The increase in other
income was due primarily to a $478,000 increase in gains on sales of mortgage loans to $778,000 for
2012 from $300,000 for 2011, reflecting continuing refinancing activity and management’s decision to
continue to sell long-term, fixed-rate one- to four-family residential real estate loans in the current low
interest rate environment. -

Other Expense. Other expense increased $584,000, or 10,9%, to $6.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012, from $5.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, The increase was due
primarily to a $384,000 increase in salaries and employee benefits expense to $3.8 million for 2012 from
$3.4 million for 2011, reflecting normal annual salary increases and payouts under our benefit plans, a
$157,000 increase in professional and service fees to $211,000 for 2012 from $54,000 for 2011, reflecting
additional costs associated with audits performed in preparation for conversion filings and a $55,000
increase in other expense reflecting normal expense increases, offset in part by a $26,000 decrease in
federal deposit insurance premiums due to a change in how the promium is calculated, and a $27,000
decrease in core deposit intangible amortization.

Income Tax Expense. The provision for income taxes was $1.4 million for 2012 compared to
$1.4 million for 2011, reflecting a slight increase in pretax income. Qur effective tax rate was 28.4% for
2012 compared to 29.3% for 2011. This difference resulted primarily from the levels of tax-exempt
income derived from our municipal bond investment portfolio and from our bank-owned life insurance.

Analysis of Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the difference between the income we eam on interest-eaiming
assets and the interest expense we pay on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income also depends
upon the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the interest rates
earned or paid on them. The following tables set forth average balance sheets, average yields and costs,
and certain other information at or for the periods indicated. All average balances are daily average
balances. Non-accrual loans were included in the computation of average balances, but have been
reflected in the tables as loans carrying a zero yield. No tax equivalent vield adjustments have been made.
The yields set forth below include the effect of loan fees, discounts and premiums that are amortized or
accreted to interest income.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the dollar amount of changes in interest income and interest expense
for the major categories of our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing Habilities. Information is
provided for each category of interest-carning assets and interest-bearing liabilities with respect to (i)
changes atiributable to changes in volume (i.., changes in average balances multiplied by the prior-
period average rate) and (if) changes attributable to rate (i.e., changes in average rate multiplicd by prior-
period average balances). For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and volume, which
cannot be segregated, have been allocated proportionately to the change due to volume and the change

due to rate.
Yenrs Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2012 vs, 2011 2011 vs, 2010 2010 vz, 2009
Inerease (Decrense) Total Increase (Decrease) Total Increase (Deerense) Total
Due ko Incrense Due to Increase Due to Inerease
Yolume Rate (Decrense} Yolume Rate (Decrease) Yolume Rate (Decrease)
{In thousands})
Titerost-earning assefs:
LOANS wiiaciassstsmrisientsnts et nnsneneass F 23 $ 31y 3§ (138) § 931 8 (520 § 404 % 1,115 {326) % 739
Securities - taxable...........ccenes {0} 8 (0 106 48 58 (183) {118} (301)
Secunities — non-taxable............ 255 (39 216 n 22 21 37 (1w 27
Other interest-eanming assets...... 16 {4) 12 (5) 4 (1 {4} 1 3
Federal Home Loan Bank of
Topeka stk oiicvvirenn e .5 (8 )] 3 (2} 3 4 3 7
Total interest-earning assets .. vl | (415} 26 1036 {551) 485 964 (450) 519
Interest-bearing liahilities:
Money matket $AvYiINgS .werreuen. 135 (195) (60) 54 (113) (5% 45 (64) (19
Checking accounts ...oecvinnrennns ol (86) (24) 158 (247) (89) 177 (68} 109
Certiticates of deposil....cc.even. (85) (148} 230 (83) (182) {265) {158} {334y {497
Total deposits ....cevverieseivierer 112 (4259) (317 129 (542} {413} 64 (471} {407
BOMOWINES s srbabraesente e {238) 193 (45) )] (480) (489) )] (131 (136)
Total interest-bearing
Tiabilities....ocrivnrvocirveenan {126 {236} (362) {120) {1.022) {902} 59 (602) (543}
Change in net ititersst income ........ $ 627 % (7 § 448 ol £ 471 § L387 % 910 ¢ 152 3 1062
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Management of Market Risk

General. Our most significant form of market risk is interest rate risk because, as a financial
institution, the majority of our assets and labilities are sensitive to changes in interest rates. Therefore, a
principal part of our operations is to manage interest rate risk and limit the exposure of our net interest
income to changes in market interest rates. Our board of directors has established an ALCO/Executive
Committee which is comprised of our President and Chief Exceutive Officer, our Senior Vice President
and our Chief Financial Officer, that is responsible for evaluating the interest rate risk inherent in our
assets and liabilities, for determining the level of risk that is appropriate, given our business strategy,
operating environment, capital, liquidity and performance ohjectives, and for managing this risk
consistent with the guidelines approved by the board of directors.

Our asset/liability management strategy attempts to manage the impact of changes in interest
rates on net interest income, our primary source of earnings.

Management has implemented an asset/liability strategy to manage our interest rate risk, subject
to our profitability goals. Among the techniques we are currently using 1o manage interest rate risk are:

1) originating agricultural and commercial non-real estate loans and commercial and multi-
family real estate loans, all of which tend to have shorter terms and higher interest rates
than one- fo four-family residential real estate loans, and which generate customer
relationships that can result in larget non-interest bearing demand deposit accounts;

2) selling conforming fixed-rate, one- to four-family residential real estate loans that we
originate with terms of greater than 15 years;

3) reducing our dependence on the acquisition of cartificates of deposits and whelesale
funding to support lending and investment activity;

4) investing in shorter- to mediurm-term investment securities; and

5) increasing other income as a percentage of total income through loan servicing income,
insurance commissions received from our insurance agency subsidiary and service
charges and ATM and debit card fees.

Net Portfolio Value. The Office of the Comptroller of Currency requires the computation of
amounts by which the net present value of an institution’s cash flow from assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items (the institution’s net portfolio value or “NPV”") would change in the event of a range
of assumed changes in market interost rates. Previously, the Office of Thrift Supervision provided all
institutions that filed a Consolidated Maturity/Rate Schedule as a part of their quarterly Thrift Financial
Report with an interest rate sensitivity report of net portfolio value, nstitutions are now required to
develop their own rate sensitivity analysis report, or contract with a third-party vendor who specializes in
the analysis of interest rate risk analysis. The model utilized by the Madison County Bank is a discounted
cash flow analysis and an option-based pricing approach to measure the interest ratc sensitivity of net
portiolio value. The model estimates the economic value of each type of asset, liability and off-balance-
sheet contract under the assumption of instantaneous rate increases or decreases of 100 to 300 basis points
in 100 basis point increments. An increase in interest rates from 3% to 4% would mean, for example, a
100 basis point increase in the “Change In Rates” column below,
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The table below sets forth, as of December 31, 2012, the calculation of the estimated changes in
our net portfolio value that would result from the designated immediate changes in the United States
Treasury yield curve,

At December 31, 2012

NPV as a Pereentage of Presont
Value of Assets &

Estimated Increase (Decrease) in

Change in Interest NPV Increase

Rutes {basis Estlmated (Decrease)
polnts) NPV @ Amount Tercent NPV Ratio ©¥ (basis peints)
(Dollars in thousanis)

+300 5 52,404 % (13266} (20.20%% 241.50% {280)
+200 56,417 (9,.253) (14.09) 21,37 {192)
+100 60,480 5,191) (7.90) 22,18 {111)

0 65,671 — — 2329 —

-100 69,967 4,297 0.54 24,12 83

{1} Assumes an instantaneous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities. ]
(2) NPV is the discovnted present value of expected cash flows from assets, Liabilities and off-halance cheer contracts.
(3) Piesent valve of assets reprosents the diseounted present value of incoming cash Dows on interest earuing assels.
(4) NPV Ratio represents NPV divided by the present valus of assets.

The table above indicates that at December 31, 2012, in the event of a 200 basis point increase in
interest rates, we would experience a 14.09% decrease in net portfolio value. In the event of a 100 basis
point decrease in interest rates, we would cxperience a 6.54% increase in net portfolio value.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodologies used in determining interest rate risk
through changes in net portfolio value. Modeling changes in net portfolio value require making certain
assumptions that may or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes
in market interest rates. In this regard, the net portfolio value tables presented assume that the
composition of our interest-sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period remains
constant over the period being measured and assume that a particular change in interest rates is reflected
uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration or repricing of specific assets and liabilities.
Accordingly, although the net portfolio value tables provide an indication of our interest rate risk
exposure at a paiticular point in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide a precise
forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates an our net interest income and will differ from
actual results.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and
securities, proceeds from sale of loans, proceeds from maturities and calls of securities, advances from the
Federal Home Loan Bank-Topeka and borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City, and to
a lesser extent from the Bankers’ Bank of the West, and other income including income firom our
insurance agency subsidiary. While maturitics and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are
predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by market
interest rates, economic conditions, and competition. Our most liquid assets are cash and short-term
investments including interest-bearing demand deposits. The levels of these assets are dependent on our
operating, financing, lending, and investing activities during any given period. Additionally, we
historically have experienced significant increascs in our deposits during the first calendar quarter of each
year as a result of our farm customers depositing proceeds from the sale of agricultural commodities
during this period. Similarly, our borrowings have historically increased during the fourth calendar
quarter of each year in response to increased loan demand from our farm customers during this period,
many of whom purchase their crop production supplies (seed, fertilizer, fuel and chemicals) during
October through De¢émber. - -~ -~~~ ~7 ~~ 7 7=~ 000
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Our cash flows are derived primarily from three sources: cash flows from operating activities,
imvesting activities, and financing activities, Net cash provided by operating activitics was $5.5 million
for 2012. Net cash used in investing activities was $27.5 million, which resulted primarily from a net
$19.0 million increase in loans from December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012. In addition, purchases of
ceriificates of deposit and investment securities outpaced matuzities by $9.8 million. Net cash provided
by financing activities was $23.5 million, which resulted primarily from net proceeds of $28.1 million
received in the stock conversion and an increase in deposits of $16.0 million. The conversion proceeds
and cash provided from deposits were in part offset by the repayment of $20. Imillion of short-term
borrowings.

At December 31, 2012, we excesded all of our regulatory capital requirements. Our Tier 1 (core)
capital level was $46.9 million, or 18.2% of risk-weighted assets, which is above the required level of
$10.3 million, or 4.0% of risk-weighted assets. Our total risk-based capital was $50.2 million, or 19.4%
of risk-weighted assets, which is above the required level of $20.7 million, or 8.0% of risk-weighted
assets. In addition, Tier I capital to average assets was 17.7%, which is substantially above regulatory
requirements. Accordingly Madison County Bank was categorized as well capitalized at December 31,
2012, Management is not aware of any conditions or events since the most recent notification that would
change our category.

At December 31, 2012, we had outstanding commitments to originate loans of $11.0 million and
lines of credit of $29.9 million. We anticipate that we will have sufficient funds available to meet our
current loan origination commitments. Certificates of deposit that arc scheduled to mature one year or less
from December 31, 2012 totaled $20.5 million. Management expects that a substantial portion of the
maturing certificates of deposit will be renewed. However, if a substantial portion of these deposits is not
retained, we may utilize FHLB-Topeka advances or FRB-Kansas City borrowings or raise interest rates
on deposits to attract new accounts, which may result in higher levels of interest expense,

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. In the normal course of operations, we engage in a variety of
financial transactions that, in accordance with U.S, generally accepted accounting principles, are not
recorded in our financial statements. These transactions involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit
risk, interest rato risk and liquidity risk. Such transactions are used primarily Lo manage customers’
requests for funding and take the form of loan commitments, lines of credit and standby letters of credit.

We sell one- to four-family residential real estate loans with recourse to the FHLB-Topeka under
the Mortgage Partnership Finance Program. We are obligated to repurchase certain loans sold that
become delinquent as defined by the agreement. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, these obligations were
approximately $3.5 million and $2.0 million, respectively, and at December 31, 2012, the Bank had a
reserve of $40,000,

For information about our loan commitments, unused lines of credit and standby letters of credit,
see Note 9 of the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual
Report.

We have not engaged in any other off-balance-sheet transactions in the normal course of our
lending activities.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of the impact of recent accounting proncuncements, see Note 16 of the notes to
our consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report,

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America which require the measurement
of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering changes in the
relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The primary impact of inflation on our
operations is reflected in increased operating costs. Unlike mest industrial companies, virtually all of the
assels and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates, generally,
have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s performance than does inflation, Interest rates
do not necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Not required for smaller reporting companics.

ITEM 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in this Annual Report on Form
10-K beginning at page F-1.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure
None.
ITEM 9A, Controls and Procedures
(a) An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the

Company’s management, including the President and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer, of the effectivencss of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢) promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as

-amended) as of December 31, 2012. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management, including the
President and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

During the quatter ended December 31, 2012, there have been no changes in the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

(b) Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting,

This Annual Report does not include management’s report on internal control over financial
reporting or an attestation report of the Cornpany’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting due to a transition period established by rules of the Securities and

Exchange Comuission for newly public companies such as Madison County Financial, Inc.

ITEM 9B. Other Information

None,
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ITEM 164, Directors. Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Madison County I'inancial, Inc, has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to Madison County
Financial, Ine.’s principal executive officer, principal financial officer and all other employees and
directors. The Code of Ethics is available on our website at www.madisoncountybank,com.

Information concerning ditectors and executive officers of Madison County Financial, Ine, is
incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement, specifically the section captioned “Proposal
I—Election of Directors.”

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

Information concerning executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference from the
Proxy Statement, specifically the section captioned “Executive Compensation.”

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Bencficial Owners and,Maﬁagemcnt and Related
Stockholder Matters

Information concerning security ownership of certain owners and management is incorporated
herein by reference from the Proxy Statement, specifically the section captioned “Voting Securities and
Principal Holder Thereof,”

ITIEM 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information concerning relationships, transactions and director independence is incorporated
herein by reference from the Proxy Statement, specifically the section captioned “Transactions with
Certain Related Persons” and “Board Independence.”

ITEM 14, Principal Accountant Fecs and Services

Information concerning principal accountant fees and services is incorporated herein by reference
from the Proxy Statement, specifically the section captioned “Proposal II-Ratification of Appointment of
Auditor.”

PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a){(1) Financial Statements
The documents filed as a part of this Form 10-K are;
(A) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm;
B) Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2012 and 2011;
O gglrllsoiidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012,
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) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the vears ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011;

(E) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011;

(F) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011; and

(G)  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

{a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statoment schedules have been omitted as the required information is inapplicable or
has been included in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Articles of Incorporation of Madison County Financial, Inc. *

Bylaws of Madison County Financial, Inc. *

Form of Common Stock Certificate of Madison County Financial, Inc. #

10.1  Employment Agreement between Madison County Bank and David J. Warnemunde

10.2  Employment Agreement between Madison County Bank and Daniel A, Fullner

10.3  Salary Continuation Agreement between Madison County Bank and David J. Warnemunde*
10.4  Salary Continuation Agresment between Madison County Bank and Daniel A. Fullner*

10.5  Salary Continuation Agreement hetween Madison County Bank and Brenda L. Borchers*

10.6  Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and David J. Warnemunde*
10.7  Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and Ivan J. Beller®

10.8  Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and Warren R. Blank*

109 Director Deferred Fee Agroement between Madison County Bank and Jon M. Moyer*

10.10  Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and Daniel L. Tunink*
10.11 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and David D. Warnemunde*
10,12 Madison County Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan*®

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

31.1  Certification required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

312 Certification required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2602.

32.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbancs-Oxley Act of 2002,

Bl G
b —

* Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-181070),
initially filed with the SEC on May 1, 2012,
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 28, 2013

Madison County Financial, Inc.

By: /s/ David J, Warnemunde
David I. Warnemunde
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Duly Authorized Representative)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures

/s/ David J. Warnemunde

David J. Warnemunde

/s/ Brenda L. Borchers

Brenda L. Borchers

/st Jon Mover

Jon Moyer

/s/ David D. Warnemunde

David D. Warnemunde

/s/ Daniel Tunink

Daniel Tunink

/s/ Ivan J. Beller

Ivan J. Beller

/s/ Warren R. Blank

Warren R. Blank
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Title Date
President, Chief Executive Officer March 28, 2013
and Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
Chief Financial Officer (Principal March 28, 2013

Financial and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

58




3.1
32

10,1
10.2
10.3
10.4
105
10,6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11
10.12
21
311
31.2
32.1

EXHIBIT INDEX

Axticles of Incorporation of Madison County Financial, Inc. *

Bylaws of Madison County Financial, Inc, *

Form of Common Stock Certificate of Madison County Financial, Inc. *

Lmployment Agreement between Madison County Bank and David J, Warmemunde
Employment Agreement between Madison County Bank and Daniel A. Fullner

Salary Continuation Agreement between Madison County Bank and David J. Warnemunde*
Salary Continuation Agreement between Madison County Bank and Daniel A. Fullner*

Salary Continuation Agreement between Madison County Bank and Brenda L. Borchers*
Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and David J. Warnemunde*
Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and Ivan J. Beller*

Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and Warren R. Blank*
Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and Jon M. Moyer*
Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and Daniel L. Tunink*
Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Madison County Bank and David D. Warncmunde*
Madison County Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan*

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Certification required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certificalion required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-181070),
initially filed with the SEC on May 1, 2012,
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Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors
Madison County Financial, Inc.
Madison, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Madison County Financial, Inc. as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statoments of income, comprehensive income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. The Company's management is responsible
for these financial statements. Our respounsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staternents
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in aceordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatoment, The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting,
Qur audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. Our audits also included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
regpects, the financial position of Madison County Financial, Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

BKD, LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
March 28, 2013
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Madison County Financial, Inc,

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31,
2012 2011
Assets
Cash and due from banks b3 5,647 % 6,449
Interest-earning demand accounts 2,271 8

Cash and cash equivalents 7918 0,457
Certificates of deposit 1,500 230
Investment securitics

Available for sale, at fair value 8,932 10,228
Held to maturity, at amortized cost (fafr value of $25,630
and $15,854, respectively) 25,026 15,402
Loans held for sale 159 621
Loans receivable, net of allowance for losses of $4,941
and $4,017, respectively 207,157 188,953
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") of Topeka 2,076 2,037
Premises and equipment, net 2,274 2,540
Bank-owned life insurance ("BOLI") 4,598 4.444
Acerned interest receivable 3,845 4,141
Core deposit intangible 810 989
Goodwill 481 481
Ciber agsets 2,431 2,125
Total assels $ 267,257 § 238,668
Liahilities and Equity
Liabilities
Deposits 5 195,187 & 179,211
Borrowings . 6,300 26,900
Accrued interest payable 106 163
Other liabilities 3,600 2,261
Total liabilities 205,193 208,537
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock, $.01 par value per share:

Issued and outstanding - 3,193,054 32 -
Additional paid in capital 30,693 -
Unearned employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) (2,452) -
Retained earnings 33,530 29,900
Acvevmulated other comprehensive income 261 231

Total stockholders’ equity 62,064 30,131
Total liabilities and equity 3 267,257 & 238,668

See notes ta consolidated tinancial statements.




Madison County Financial, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

{Dollars in Thousands)

Interest and Dividend Income
Loans recetvable, including fees
Investment securities - taxable
Investment securities - non-taxable
Other

Total interest income

Interest Expense
Deposits
Borrowings
Total interest expense

NMet interest Income
Provision for loan losses

Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses

Other Income
Service charges o deposit accounts
ATM and credit card {ees
Lean servicing income, net
Gain on sale of loans

Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investiment securities

Increases in surrender value of life insurance
Insurance commission income
Other income

Total other income

Other Expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Director fees and benefits
Net occupancy
Data processing fees
Professional feas
Advertising
Supplies
FDIC inurange premivms
Core deposit intangible amortization
Other gxpense
Total other expense

Income Before Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense
Net Income

Earnings Per Share:
Basic

Diluted

See notes 1o consolidated finaneial statements,
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Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011
10,683 § 10,821
342 343
665 449
53 44
11,743 11,857
1,629 1,946
226 271
1,855 2,217
9,338 9,440
830 680
9,058 8,760
189 209
131 122
159 127
778 300
{29 0
154 165
417 447
177 119
1,976 1,498
3,807 3.423
123 100
482 480
176 170
21 54
g9 06
143 136
1n7 143
179 206
625 570
5,962 5,378
5,072 4,880
1,442 1,431
3,630 § 3449
0.84 N/A
0.84 N/A,




Madison County Financial, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

{Dollars in Theusands)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Net Income % 3630 % 3,449
Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes of $6 and $74,
for 2012 and 2011, respectively 11 144
Less: reclassification adjustment for realized gains (losses) included in net income,
net of taxes of ($10) and $3 for 2012 and 2011, respectively {19 f
30 138
Comprehensive Income $ 3000 § 3,587

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Dollars in Thousands)

See notes o consolidated Foanclal staternents,

Accumulated
Common Siock Olher Total
Shares Additienal Unearmed Retained Comprelensive  Stockliolders'
Outstanding Amonnt Paid-in Capital LESOF Shares Larnings Income Equity
Balance, January 1, 2011 - § - § - % - % 6,451 % 93§ 26,544
Net incowe 3,449 3,449
Other comprehensive Incotne 138 138
Balance, December 31, 2011 - . - - 25,900 231 30,131
Net income 3,034 3,630
Oiker comprehensive incoing 30 30
Issuarice of comman stock, net of
offering costs 3,193,054 32 30,645 30577
Unearned BESOP shares (2,554) (2,554)
LBOP shares camed 48 102 150
Balance, December 31, 2012 1,193,054 32§ 0693 8 2452y § 33,530 % 261 & 62,064
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Dollars in Thousands)

Years Ended Decetuber 31,

2012 2011
Operating activities
Wet ificome $ 3,630 t 3,449
Tteras nol requiring cash;
Provision for loan losses 830 650
Depreciation and amottization 212 221
Deferred income laxes {391} (32%
Investiment securities amertization, net 1% 23
Investinent securities (gaing) losses 29 &)
Core deposit Intangible amortization 179 206
Loans criginateel for sale in the secondary market {32,478) {18,206)
Proceeds from loan sales in the socondary market 33,718 18,245
Gain on loang 2old (778) (300)
Increase in surrender value of life insocance {154) (165}
Met chaunpe in:
Accrued interest receivable 296 (589}
Accrued jnterest payable (59) 39
Cther adjustments 400 92
Met cash provided by operating activitics 5,453 3,279
Investing activitles
et change in certificates of deposit (1,250) (250)
Purchuses of investment securities available for sale (7,362) {10,945)
Proceeds trom wmaturilies of investmen| securities available for sale 9,100 8,405
Purchases of investment securilics held to maturity (10,254) (5,589)
Proceeds from maturities of investntent securities held 1o maturity 1,255 1,750
Purchases of Stock In FHIB of Topeka, ne - {341)
et change in loans recsivable {19,034} {7,785)
Purchases of premizes and equipment {61) (142)
Other invesling aclivities 115 -
Net cash vsed in fnvesting activities (27,451) (14,89%)
Flnancing activities
Net changs in cheeking and money market savings accounts 23,149 22,903
et change in-certificates of deposit (7173 (4,499
Nel change in short-term borrowings (20,100) (1,955}
Proceeds from FIILDE advances - 1,100
Repayment of FHLB advances (500} {2,600%
Net proceeds from stock conversion 28,123 -
Met eash provided by financing activities 23,499 15,553
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equlvalents 1,46) 3,935
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Teriod 6,457 2,522
Cash and Cash Lquivalents, End of Period . $ 7.918 4 6,457
Additional Cash Flows Infermation:
Tntevest paid 3 1,914 $ 2,256

Taxes paid 1,852 1,847

See noles to consolidated financial statements,
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

Note 1:  Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Madison County Bank (the “Bank™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Madison County Financial, Inc. (the
“Company™), is a federal stock savings bank primary engaged in providing a full range of banking and
financial services to individual and corporate customers in the areas surrounding Madison, Nebraska.
The Company is subject (o competition from other financial institutions. The Company is subject to the
regulation of the Federal Reserve Board and the Bank is subject to the regulation of the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”) and both undergo periodic examinations by such authority.

On October 3, 2012, Madison County Holding Company, MHC, (the “MHC), the Bank’s former mutual
holding company, consummated its mutual to stock conversion (“Conversion™) and the related initial
public stock offering of Madison County Financial, Inc. which, upon consummation of the Conversion,
became the savings and loan holding company of the Bank. As part of the Conversion and offering, the
Company issued and sold shares of its capital stock to eligible depositors of the Bank and the public
pursuant to an independent valuation appraisal of the Bank and the Company on a converted basis that
was conducted by an independent appraisal firm. At December 31, 2011, the Conversion had not yet
been consummated; and accordingly, the information contained in these financial statements at and for
the year ended December 31, 2011, is for that of the MHC on a consolidated basis with the Bank. See
Note 15 for additional information.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been climinated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted In
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of asscts and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceplible to significant change relate to the determination of
the allowance for loan losses and fair values of financial instruments,
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
{Dollars in Thousands)

Cash Eguivalents

The Company considers alt liquid investments with original maturities of three months or lcss to be cash
equivalents. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, cash equivalents consisted primarily of interest earning
demand deposits.

The Bank is required to maintain reserve funds in cash and/or deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank.
The reserves required at December 31, 2012 and Docember 31, 2011, were $3 and $40, respectively,

Pursuant to legislation enacted in 2010, the FDIC fully insured all noninterest-bearing transaction
accounts December 31, 2011 through December 31, 2012, at all FDIC-insured institutions.

Effeclive July 21, 2010, the FDIC’s insurance limits were permanently increased to $250. At December
31,2012, the Company’s cash and cash equivalent noninterest-bearing accounts at commercial barks
were federally insured. Beginning January 1, 2013, noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are subject
to $250 FDIC insurance limit per covered institution. At Decemmber 31, 2012, cash and cash equivalents
of $2,270 held at the Federal Home Loan Bank and $37 held at the Federal Reserve Bank, were not
federally insured. .

Certificates of Deposit
Certificates of deposit are carried at cost and mature within one to three years.
Investment Securities

Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as “held to maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held to
maturity, including equity securities with readily determinable fair values, are investment securities
classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded
from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income. Purchase premiums and discounts are
recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities. Gains and
losses on the sale of investment securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the
specific identification method.

In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers (1) the length of time and
the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent of the Company to sell or whether it would be more-likely-
than-not required to sell its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value,

For debt securities with fair value below amortized cost when the Company does not intend to sell a
debt security, and it is more likely than not the Company will not have to sell the security before
recovery of its cost basis, it recognizes the credit component of an other-than-temporary impairment of a
debt security in earnings and the remaining portion in other comprehensive income. For held-to-
maturity debt secutities, the amount of an other-than-tetnporary impairment recorded in other
comprehensive income for the noncredit portion of a previous other-than-temporary impairment is
amortized prospectively over the remaining life of the security on the basis of the timing of future
estimated cash flows of the security.




Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
{Dollars in Thousands)

Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost
or fair value in the aggregatc. Net unrcalized losscs, if any, are recognized through a valuation
allowance by charges to noninterest income. Gains and losses on loan sales are recorded in noninterest
income upon sale of the loan.

Loans Receivahle

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or
payoffs are reported at their outstanding principal balances adjusted for unearned income, charge-offs,
the allowance for loan losses, any unamortized deferred fees or costs on originated loans and
unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans.

For loans amortized at cost, interest income is accrued based on the unpaid principal balance, Premiums
and discounts are amortized as a level yield adjustment over the respective term of the loan.

For loans not secured by real estate or loans secured by real estate with loan-to-value ratios of 80% or
more, the accrual of inferest is discontinued af the time the loan is 90 days past due unless the credit is
well-secured and in process of collection, For loans secured by real estate with a loan-to-value ratio of
less than 80%, the accrual of interest is discontinued after the loan is 120 days past due. Past due status
is based on contractual terms of the loan, For all loan classes, the entire balance of the loan is considered
past due if the minimum payment contractually required to be paid is not received by the contractual due
date, For all loan classes, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier daie if collection of
principal or interest is considered doubtful.

For all loan portfolio scgments, the Company premptly charges-off loans, or portions thereof, when
available information confirms that specific loans are uncollectible based on information that includes,
but is not limited to, (1} the deteriorating financial condition of the borrower, (2) declining collateral
values, and/or (3) legal action, including bankruptcy, that impairs the borrower’s ability to adequately
meet its obligations. For impaired loans that are considered to be solely collateral dependent, a partial
charge-off is recorded when a loss has been confirmed by an updated appraisal or other appropriate
valuation of the collateral.

For all loan classes, interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged
off are reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or
cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to acermial. Nonacerual loans are returned to acerual
status when, in the opinion of management, the financial position of the borrower indicates there is no
longer any reasonable doubt as to the timely collection of interest or principal. The Company requires a
period of satisfactory performance of not less than six months before returning a nonaccrual loan to
accrual status, There were no changes in the Company’s nonaccrual policy during the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 201 1.
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
{Dollars in Thousands)

When cash payments are received on impaired loans in each loan class, the Company records the
payment as interest income unless collection of the remaining recorded prineipal amount is doubtful, at
which time payments are used to reduce the principal balance of the loan. Troubled debt restructured
loans recognize interest income on an accrual basis at the renegotiated rate if the loan is in compliance
with the modified terms.

Allowance for L.can Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision
for loan losses charged to income. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management
believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited
to the allowarce.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon
management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of histerical experience, the
neture and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ahility to
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. 1This evaluation
is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more
information becomes available.

The allowance consists of general and allocated components. The general component covers non-
impaired loans and is based on the product of the historical loss experience rate, adjusted by certain
qualitative factors in basis points, and the portfolio balance for each loan segment. The historical loss
experience rate is determined for each loan porifolio segment and 1is based on the actual loss history
experienced by the Company over the prior three years, Management believes the three year historical
loss experience methodology is appropriate in the current economic environment. The qualitative
factors considered include changes in experience of lending staff, lending policies and procedures;
changes in loan review and oversight, changes in collection, charge-off and recovery practices; changes
in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio; changes in the volume and severity of nonpetforming
loans; the existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the level of such
concentrations; changes in the underlying collateral and changes in current, national and local economic
and business conditions,

The allocated component relates to loans that are classified as impaired. For those loans that are
clagsified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or
observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan.

A loan is considered impaired when, bascd on current information and events, it is probable that the
Coinpany will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according
to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal
and interest payments when due based on the loan’s current payment status and the borrower’s financial
condition including available sources of cash flows. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays
and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the ,‘
significance of payment delays-and payment shorifalls on a case-by-case basis; taking into consideration
all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to
the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for non-homogenous
type loans such as commercial, non-owner residential and construction loans by either the present value
of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable
market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. For impaired

loans where the Company utilizes the discounted cash flows to determine the level of impairment, the
Company includes the centire change in the present value of cash flows as bad debt expense,

The fair values of collateral dependent impaired loans are based on independent appraisals of the
collateral. In general, the Company acquircs an updated appraisal upon identification of impairment and
annually thereafter for commercial non-real estate, commercial real estate and multi-family real estate
loans, After determining the collateral value as described, the fair value is calculated based on

the determined collateral value less selling expenses.

Segments of loans with similar risk characteristics are collectively evaluated for impairment based on
the segment’s historical loss experience adjusted for changes in trends, conditions and ather relevant
factors that affect repayment of the loans. Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify
individual consumer and residential loans for impairment measurements, unless such loans are the
subject of a restructuring agreement due to financial difficulties of the borrower.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method for premises and the declining balance method for equipment based
principally on the estimated useful lives of the assets, Estimated useful lives ate seven to 40 years for
buildings and improvements, five to 15 years for furniture and equipment, five yoars for automobiles
and three years for software. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred while major additions
and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are included in current operations.

Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka

Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka stock is a required investment for institutions in our market area
that are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank system. The required investment in the common
stock is based on a predetormined formula.

Management periodically evaluates the FHLB stock for impairment. Determination of whether the
FHLB stock is impaired is based on the assessment of the ultimate recoverability of cost rather than by
recognizing declines in value. The determination of whether a decline affects the ultimate recoverability
of costs is influenced by the significance of the decline in net assets compared to the capital of the
FHLB and the length of time this situation has persisted; the ability of the FHLB to make payments
required by law or regulation and operating performance; the impact of legislative and regulatory
changes on member institutions and customer base and the liquidity position of the FHLB. Management
believes that no impairment charge on FHLB of Topeka stock is necessary at December 31, 2012,
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
{Dollars in Thousands)

Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

Asscts acquired through, or in lieu of, loan [oreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair
value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subseguent to
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower
of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in
the valuation allowance are included in noninterest expense. There were no foreclosed assets held for
sale at December 31, 2012 or 2011,

Bank-Owned Life insurance

Bank-owned life insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contracts
at the balance sheet date, which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts
due that are probable at settlement. Changes in the net cash surrender value of the policies, as well as
insurance proceeds received are reflected in noninterest income on the consolidated statements of
mcome and are not subject to income taxes,

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. If the implied fair value of goodwill is Iower than its
carrying amount, a goodwill impairment is indicated and goodwill is written down to its implied fair
value. Subsequent increases in goodwill value are not recognized in the financial statements.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are being amortized on an accelerated basis over a period of 15 years. Such assets are
periodically evalnated as to the recoverability of their carrying value.

fncome Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance (ASC 740,
Income Taxes). The income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense:
current and deferred. Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current
period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions
over revenucs. The Company determines deferred income taxes using the liability (or balance sheet)
method, Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the
differences between the book and tax bases of assets and Habilities, and enacted changes in tax rates and
laws are recognized in the period in which they occur, Deferred income tax expense resulis from
chianges in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a
valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available, it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

Uncerlain tax positions are recognized if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the
tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more likely than not means a
likelihood of more than 50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of
the related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has
a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority that has
full knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or not a tax position has met
the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances and information
available at the reporting date and is subject to management’s judgment.

The Company recognizes interest and penaliies on income taxes as a compenent of income tax expense.
The Company files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiaries.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share represents income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share reflects
additional potential common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common
shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed
issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock
options and are determined using the treasury stock method,

Unearned ESOP shares, which are not vested, are excluded from the computation of average shares
outstanding. The Company had no outstanding options during 2012 and 2011.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income, net of applicable
income taxes. Other comprehensive income and accumulated other comprehensive income consist
entirely of unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on available-for-sale investment securities.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial instruments

Financial instruments include off-balance-sheet credit instruments, such as comumitments to make loans
and commercial lines and letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing needs. The face amount
for these items represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability 1o repay,
Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded,

Management estimates losses on off-balance-sheet credit instruments using the same methodology as for
portfolio loans. Additions to the allowance for losses on off-balance-sheet credit instruments are made
by charges to the provision for Josses and credits (o other liabilities in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet.
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

Current Economic Conditions

The current protracted economic decline continues to prosent financial institutions with difficult
circumstances and challenges, which in some cascs have resulted in large and unanticipated declines in
the fair vatues of investments and other assets, constraints on liquidity and capital and significant credit
quality problems, including severe volatility in the valuation of real estate and other collateral
supporting loans.

At December 31, 2012, the Company held $53,611 in agricultural and commercial non-real estate loans
and $96,569 in agricultural real estate loans primarily in Madison County, Nebraska and surrounding
counties. Values for agricultural real estate in this market are currently increasing but are subject to
change based on factors impacting the agricultural industry. Changes in values could significantly affect
the repayment ability for many agricultural loan customers.

At December 31, 2012, the Company held approximately $21,205 in commercial and multi-family real
estate loans. In the Company’s market area, the value of non-agricultural commercial real estate has,
over the past year, begun to rebound, but remains below values in 2008. Such properties are not quickly
liquidated and remain on the market for periods of up to one year or more before sold.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using values and information
currently available to the Company.

Given the volatility of current economic conditions, the values of assets and liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements could change rapidly, resulting in material future adjustments in asset
values, the allowance for loan losses and capital that could negatively impact the Company’s ability to
meet regulatory capital requirements and maintain sufficient liquidity. Furthermore, the QCC or FRB
could require material adjustiments to asset values or the allowance for loan losses for regulatory capital
purposes that could affect the Company’s measurement of regulatory capital and compliance with the
capital adequacy guidelines under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
{Doilars in Thousands)

Note 2: Investment Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair values of investment securities are as follows:

December 31, 2012
Gross Gross Approximate
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Avallable for sale;
U.S. Treasuries $ 500 8 -3 -3 500
Federal agencies 8,086 408 (12) 8,482
Total available for sale 3,580 408 (12) 8,982
Held to maturity:
Federal agencies 498 10 - 508
State and municipal 24,528 600 {6) 25,122
Total held to maturity 25,026 610 (6) 25,630
Total investment securities b 33612 § 1,018 § (18) $ 34,612
December 31, 2011
Gross Gross Approximate
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for sale; $ 499 § 23 - § 501
U.8. Treasuries 9,379 365 (17 9,727
Federal agencies 9,878 367 (17) 10,228
Total available for sale
Held to maturity:
Federal agencies 493 33 - 526
State and municipal 14,909 421 (2) 15,328
Total held to maturity 15,402 454 (2) 15,854
Total investment securities $ 25,280 § 821 § (19 %
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
{Dollars in Thousands)

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2012, by contractual
maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual matutities because issuers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties,

Available for Sale Held to Matuarity
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Yalue
Within one year 3 1,350 ¢ 1,354 § 2218 § 2,231
After one through five years (,721 1,872 2,740 2,786
After five through ten years 3,211 3,453 3,115 3,194
After ten years 2,304 2,303 16,953 17,419
$ 858 § 8,982 § 25,026 § 25,630

The carrying value of investment securities pledged as collateral, to secure public deposits and for other
purposes was $5,673 at December 31, 2012 and $6,119 at December 31, 2011,

There were no sales of investment sceurities available for sale for the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011. The Company recorded net losses of $29 and net gains of $9 for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, on called investment securities.

Certain investments in debt securities have fair values at an amount less than their historical cost. Total
fair value of these investments at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $3,163 and $2,227, which is
approximately 9% aad 9%, respectively, of the Company’s investment portfolio. These declines
primarily resulted from changes in market interest rates.

Based on evaluation of available evidence, including recent changes in market interest rates, credit
rating information and information obtained from regulatory filings, management believes the declines
in fair value for these investment securities are temporary.
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Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Dollars in Thousands})

Should the impairment of any of these investment securities become other than temporary, the cost basis
of the investment will be reduced and the resulting loss recognized in net income in the period the other-

than-temporary impairment is identified.

Investment securities with unrealized losscs at December 31, 2012 were as follows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
Falr Unrealized Falr Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Walue Lasses Value losses Value losses
Available for sale-
Federal agencies 6 1,807 $ 38 250 § o5 2,066 § {12)
Held to maturity-
State and municipal 1,047 (5) 50 {1) 1,087 {8)
$ 2,854 § i8) $ 300”8 {10) $ 3,163 § {18)
Investment securitics with unrealized losses at December 31, 2011 were as follows:
Less than 12 Menths 12 Months or Longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Falr Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value losses Value losse5
Available for sale-
Federal agencies $ 1,885 § (1N -3 - § 1,885 § {17y
Held to maturity-
State and municipal 342 (2) - - 342 {2}
' $ 2227 % {189) $ -} - § 2227 § {19)
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Note 3: Loans Receivable and Allowance for Losses

Categories of loans receivable include:

December 31,

2012 2011
Real estate:
Agricultural $ © 96,569 $ 33,347
Commercial and multi-family 21,205 21,037
One- to four-family residential 35,964 37,414
Agricultural and commercial non-real estate 53,611 46,620
Consumer 4,749 4,552
212,098 ' 192,970
Less
Allowance for losscs 4,941 4,017

$ 207,157  § 188,953

The risk characteristics of each loan portfolio segmont are as follows:

Agricultural Real Estate

Agricultural real estate loans are primarily comprised of loans for the purchase of farmland. Loan-to-
value ratios on loans secured by farmland generally do not exceed 70% and have amortization periods
limited to twenty one years,

Agricultural and Commercial Non-Real Estate

Agricultural non-real estate loans are generally comprised of seasonal operating lines to cash grain
farmers to plant and harvest corn and soybeans and term loans to fund the purchase of equipment.
Specific underwriting standards have been established for agricultural-related loans including the
establishment of projections for each operating year based on industry-developed estimates of farm
input costs and expected commodity yields and prices, Operating lines are typically written for one year
and secured by the crop and other farm assets as considered necessary.

Commercial non-real estate loans are primarily based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and
secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower. The cash flows of borrowers,
however, may not be as expected and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value. Most
commercial non-real estate loans are secured by the assets being financed or other business assets, such
as accounts receivable or inventory, and may include a personal guaraniee, Short-term loans may be
made on an unsecured basis.
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Cormmercial and Multi-Family Real Estate

Commercial and multi-family real estate lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts and
the repayment of these loans is generally dependent on the successful operation of the property securing
the Joan or the business conducted on the property securing the loan.

Commercial and multi-family real estate loans may be more adversely affected by conditions in the real
estate markets or in the general economy. The characteristics of properties securing the Company’s
commercial and multi-family real estate portfolic are diverse, but virtually all of these loans are secured
by propertics in Nebraska. Management monitors and evaluates commercial real estate and multi-
family real estate loans based on collaieral, geography and risk grade criteria. In addiiion, the Company
generally will not finance single puipose projects unless other underwriting factors are present to help
mitigate risk. In addition, management tracks the level of owner-occupied commercial real estate versus
notowner-occupied loans. -

Residential Real Estate and Consumer

Residential real estate and consumer loans consist of two segments - residential mortgage loans and
personal loans. For residential mortgage loans that are secured by 1-4 family residences and are
generally owner-occupied, the Company generally establishes a maximum loan-to-value ratio and
requires private mortgage insurance if that ratio is exceeded. Home equity loans are typically secured
by a subordinate interest in 14 family residences, and consumer loans are secured by consumer assets,
such as automobiles or recreational vehicles. Some consurner personal loans are unsecured, such as
small installment loans and certain lines of credit. Repayment of these loans is primarily dependent on
the personal income of the borrowers, which can be impacted by economic conditions in their market
areas, such as unemployment levels. Repayment can also be impacted by changes in property values on
residential properties. Risk is mitigated by the fact that the loans are of smaller individual amounts and
spread over a large number of borrowers.
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The following presents by portfolio segment, the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and the recorded investment in loans and impairment method as of

December 31, 2012:

Real Eatate
Commercial Orne- to Agricultural
and TFour-Lamily and
Year Ended December 31, 2012: Agrieoltural Multi-Family ~_Residentinl ~ Commercial _Consnmer Total
Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balanve, beginning of period 3 1,572 & 356§ 318§ 984 % 80 4 4017
Provision far loan losses 935 {100 {(374) 353 16 830
Lonans charged to (he allowsance - - - - (3) )]
Repoveries of loans previously cliarged off 7l - 23 - 3 97
Balanee, end of period $ 2,585 § 436 § 467 g 1,337 9 % 4,941
A ——— e er—
Ending balance: individually evaluated for [mpainoent  $ - % -3 45 3 - $ - % 45
Ending balange: collectively evaluated [or impaitment  § 2,585 % 435 § 422 % 1,337 3 96 % 4,896
At December 31, 2012;
Loans:
Ending balance § 96,569 § 21,205 § 35964 % 53,611 % 4749 ¢ 212098
Ending balance individually evalusted for impaimmem  $ - § - § 52 § -3 - % 82
Lnding balance collectively evaluated for impaimment  § 946,569 § 21,205 § 35882 § 33,611 % 4,749 ¢ 212,016

The following presents by portfolio segment, the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the year
ended Decembor 31, 2011 and the recorded investment in loans and impairment method as of December
31,2011:

Real Eslate
Commergial One- to Agricultural
and Four-Famlly and
Year Ended December 31, 2011: Agriculiurgl  _Mulli-Family  Residentinf  Commercial _ Consumer Total
Allowance for Loan T.osses:
Balance, beginning of period $ 1,448 3 496 § 580 § F20 % 108 § 3,352
Provision for loan losses ' 124 &0 260 264 03 680
Laans charged to the allowance - - (22} - - (22)
Recoveries of lnans previously charged off 7 - - - - 7
Balaoce, end of period $ 1,570 & 556 3 518 & 934 % 50 s 4,017
Eading balance: individually evalualed for impairment  § - % -4 g - % - 5 50
Ending balance: colleotively evaluated for impairment  § 1,579 § 536 & 763§ 984 3 30§ 3,967
At December 31, 2011:
Loans:
Ending balance $ 83,347 ¢ 21,037 § 37414 2 46,020 % 4,552 § 192970
Bnding balanee individually evaloated for impaitmant 3§ - - 64 g - & -4 64
. _Ending balance collectively evahuated for impaiment  $ 83,347 ¢ . 21087 ¢ . 37350 ¢ 46,620 § 4,552 & 192906 .
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The following tables present the credit risk profile of the Company’s loan portfolio based on rating
category and payment activity as of December 31, 2012:

Real Estate
Conumercial One- 1o Agriculinral
and Four-Fainily and
Agriculenral Multi-Family  Residentinl  Comynercial Conswner Total
Pass s 96,444 § 21,205 § 35290 § 53,546 § 4747 § 211232
Special Mention - - 357 63 - 622
Substandacd 125 - 117 - 2 244
Doubttul - - - - “ -
Loss - - - - - .
Total h3 96,569 § 21,205 § 33,964 % 53611 § 4,749 5 212,098
The following tables present the credit risk profile of the Company’s loan portfolio based on rating
category and payment activity as of December 31, 2011:
Real Estate
Comumercial One- 1o Agriculiural
and Fowr-Fainily and
Agricultural Multi-Family  Residential  Commercial Consumer Taotal
Pass b 83,218 § 21,028 § 36,835 § 46,517 3 4,543 § 192,141
Special Mention - 9 469 102 9 583
Substandard 129 - 1o 1 - 240
Doubtful - - . _
Loss - -
Total 3 83,347 § 21,037 3 37414 46,620 % 4332 § 192,970

The Company generally categorizes all classes of loans into risk categorics based on relevant
information about the ability of borrowers to service their debt such as: current financial information,
historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends,
ameong other factors. Generally, smaller dollar consumer loans are excluded from this grading process
and are reflected in the Pass category. The delinquency trends of these consumer loans are monitored
on a homogeneous basis and the related delinquent amounts are reflected in the aging analysis table
below. The Company uses the following definitions for risk ratings:

The Pass asset quality rating encompasses assets that have generally performed as expected. With the
exception of some smaller consumer and residential loans, these assets generally do not have
delinquency. Loans assigned this rating include loans to borrowers possessing solid credit quality with
acceptable risk. Borrowers in these grades are differentiated from higher grades on the basis of size
{capital and/or revenue), leverage, asset quality, stability of the industry or specific market area and
quality/coverage of collateral. These borrowers generally have a history of consistent earnings and
reasonable leverage.
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The Special Mention asset quality rating cncompasses assets that have potential weaknesses that deserve
management’s close attention, If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration
of the repaynient prospects for the asset or in the institution’s credit position at some future date.

Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an institution to sufficient risk to
warrant adverse clagsification. This grade is intended to iticlude loans to borrowers whose credit quality
has clearly deteriorated and where risk of further decline is possible unless active measures are taken to
cotrect the situation. Weaknesses are considered potential at this state and are not yet fully defined.

The Substandard asset quality rating encompasses assets that are inadequately protected by the current
net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any; assets having a well-
defined weakness based upon objective evidence; assets characterized by the distinct possibility that the
Bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected; or the possibility that liquidation will
not be timely. Loans categorized in this grade possess a well-defined credit weakness and the likelihood
of repayment from the primary source is uncertain. Significant financial deterioration has occurred and
very close attention is warranted to ensure the full repayment without loss. Collateral coverage may be
marginal and the accrual of interest has been suspended,

The Doubtful asset quality rating encompasses assets that have all of the weaknesses of those classified
as Substandard. In addition, these weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of
currently existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable.

The Loss asset quality rating encompasses assets that are considered uncollectible and of such little
value that their continuance as assets of the bank is not warranted. A loss classification does not mean
that an asset has no recovery or salvage value; instead, it means that it is not practical or desirable to
defer writing off or reserving all or a portion of a basically worthless asset, even though partial recovery
_ may be realized in the futurc.

The Company evaluates the loan grading system definitions and allowance for loan loss methodology on
an ongoing basis. No significant changes were made to cither during the past year,
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The following tables present the Company’s loan portfolio aging analysis and nonperforming loans as of
December 31, 2012:

R.eal Estale
Cominercial One-to Agricultoral
and Four-Family aid
LAgricultueal Muolti-Family  Residential =~ Commewsizl  Consumer Toial
Past Due:
30-59 days $ 161 8§ 162 $ 282 § 308 P 637
60-89 days - . 233 B - 233
0 days or mors - - 144 - 2 146
Total past duc 161 162 439 30 4 1,016
Current 96,408 21,043 35,305 53,581 4,745 211,082
Total loans 5 96,569 § 21,205 § 35064 & 53,611 & 4,749 £ 212,008
Nonaectual loans $ 126 § $ 84 ¥ $ 4 % 214
Loang past due 90 days and still acoruing - . 79 - - 79
$ 126 § - § 163 g -8 4 4 203

The following tables present the Company’s loan portfolio aging analysis and nonperforming loans as of
December 31, 2011:

Real Estate
Commnercial One- to Agricultural
and Four-Family and
_Agicultural Multi-Family  Residential ~ Commercial  Consumer Total
Past Dug;
30-59 days $ 111 3 - % 169 § 36 % 2§ 348
60-89 days - 9 289 96 3 197
90 days or mere - - 16 - 1 17
Total past dve 111 9 474 132 ki 762
Current $3,236 21,028 36,540 46,488 4,516 192,208
Total loans $ 8337 % 21,037 § 37414 & 46,620 ¢ 4,552 & 192,970
Nonaccrual loang 3 129 § - § 93 § 1§ -5 223
Loans past due 90 days and stilf accruing - - 16 - 1 17
b 129 ¢ -8 109 g I s 1% 240

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance (ASC 310-10-
35-16), when based on current information and events, it is probable the Company will be unable to
collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan, Impaired
loans include nonperforming commercial loans but also include foans modified in troubled debt :
restructurings where concessions have been granted to borrowers experiencing financial difficultics.
These concessions could include a reduction in the interest rate on the loan, payment extensions,
forgiveness of principal, forbearance or other actions intended to maximize collection.
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The following table presents impaired loans and specific valnation allowance based on class level al
December 31, 2012:

Real Estale

Commercial One-to Agricultural
and Four-Family and

Agricultural Mubi-Family  Residential  Commercial  Consumer Total
Impaired loans with an allowance for loan losses $ -5 - % 82 % -8 -3 82
Impaircd loans with no allowance for [oan losses - - - - - -
Total inpaired loans $ - 5 - $ 82 ¢ - B -3 32

1 ] ——————
Unpaid prineipal balance of impaired loans g -8 - % 82 % -3 - % 82
Allowance for [oan losses on impaired loans - - 45 - - 45
Average vecorded investment in impaired loans - - 4% - - 49

The following table presents impaired loans and specific valuation allowance based on class level at
December 31, 2011

Real Estate
Commercial One- lo Agrienltural
and Fowr-Family and
Agricultural Multi-Family  Residentinl — Commercial Consumer Total

Tpaived loans with an allowance for loan losses $ -3 - 3§ 64 § -8 - ¥ 64
Tnpaired loans with no allowance for loan losses - - - - - -
Total impaired loans & - % - & 64 % - % - 8 64
Unpaid principal balance of impaired loans 3 - % - % 54 % - % - & &4
Allowance for loan losses on fmpaired loans - - 30 " - 30
Average recorded investment in impaired loang - - 48 - - 48

Interest income of $4 and $4 was recognized on impaired loans for the vears ended December 31, 2012
and 2011. '

There were no troubled debt restructurings during the years ended December 31, 2012 or 2011,

Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The
unpaid principal balances of mortgage and other loans serviced for others were $56,720 and $40,604 at
December 31, 2012 and 201 1, respectively.
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Note 4: Premises and Equipment

Major classifications of premises and equipment, stated at cost, are as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011

Land $ 339 341
Buildings and improvements 3,353 3,466
Furniture and equipment 1,786 1,776
Automobiles 72 69
Software 280 289
5,830 5,841

Less accumulated depreciation 3,556 3,401
A3 2,274 2,540

Note 5: Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible

Goodwill was recognized in connection with the acquisition of First Capital Investment Company, Inc.,
the parent company of First Natjonal Bank of Albion, in November 2005. Under FASB ASC 350,
“Intangibles - Goodwill and Other,” goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently, if
necessary.

As a result, goodwill was not impaired at either December 31, 2012 or 2011.

The gross carrying value and accumulated amortization of the core deposit intangibles related to the
acquisition of First National Bank of Albion is presented below:

December 31,
2012 2011
Core deposit intangible $ 3,094 § 3,094
Accumulated depreciation (2,284) (2,105)
$ 810 § 939

The core deposit intangible is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
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Amortization expense on core deposit intangibles for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was
$179 and $206, respectively.

Estimated amortization expense on core deposit intangibles for the next five years is as follows:

2013 $ 156
2014 136
2015 119
2016 104
2017 91

Note 6: Deposits

December 31,
2012 2011
Non-interest bearing checking $ 17,167 § 15,633
Interest-bearing checking 108,756 93,133
Money market savings 40,989 34,997
Certificates and other time deposits of $100 or more 5,614 9,070
Other certificates and time deposits 22,661 26,378
Total deposits $ 195,187 % 179,211
At December 31, 2012, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:
2013 $ 20,514
2014 5,337
2015 1,250
2016 GO0
2017 508
$ 28075

There were no brokered deposits at December 31, 2012 or 2011,
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Note 7: Borrowings

December 31,
2012 2011
Federal Home Loan Bank line of credit $ -8 13,100
Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) borrowings - 7,000
Federal Home Loan Bank advances _ 6,300 6,800
Total borrowings 3 6,300 $ 26,900

The Company has a line of credit with at the FHLB of Topeka which expires December 20, 2013, The
line of credit accrues interest at a variable rate (,23% at December 31, 2012), The maximum credit
available is based on certain criteria including a percentage of assets limitation and an available
collateral limitation, Based on the statement received from the FHLB of Topeka, the additional
borrowing capacity at December 31, 2012 was $48,416. The Company had no balance outstanding at
December 31, 2012,

'The Company has an unsecured line with another financial institution to purchase overnight federal
funds, The maximum amount of the cstablished line is $15,570 and matures on May 31, 2013. The line
is subject to quarterly review as well as annual renewal, and terms may be altered in the event of a
significant change in the Company’s financial condition. The Company had no federal funds
cutstanding at December 31, 2012,

"The Company has a line of credit with the FRB to obtain advances which matures on January 31, 2013,
FRB advances are secured by loans totaling $22,984 at December 31, 2012, The maximum credit
available from the FRB, including amounts approved for seasonal borrowing at December 31, 2012, is
$10,020 and is subject to an annual approval process and certain other restrictions. The Company had
no advances at December 31, 2012.

FHLB advances, at interest rates from 1.37 percent to 4.54 percent at December 31, 2012, are subject to
restrictions or penalties in the event of prepayment. FHLB advances and the line of credit are secured
by a blanket lien on mortgage loans totaling $97,499 at December 31, 2012.
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Maturities of FHLB advances were as follows at December 31, 2012:

2013 $ 300

2014 -
2015 4,400
2016 ©200
2017 400
Thereafter 1,000
J—)

Nete 8: Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. With a few exceptions, the
Company is no longer subject to U.S, federal or state examinations by tax authorities for years before

2009,
Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011
Income tax expense:
Currently payable - Federal : $ 1,833 % 1,760
Deferred - Federal (391) (329)
$ 1,442 § 1,431
Reconciliation of Federal statutory to actual tax expense
Federal statutory income tax at 34% $ 1,725 § 1,66t
Tax-exempt income (228) (168)
Cash surrender value of life insurance (53) (53
Other (2} €]
Actual tax expense $ 1,442 § 1,431
Effective tax rate 28.4% 29.3%
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A cumulative net deferred tax asset is included in other assets. Tho components of the asset are as
follows:

December 31,
2012 2011
Assets;

Allowance for loan losses b 1,566 § 1,317
Deferred compensation 475 418
Other ' 88 84
Total assets 2,162 1,819

Liabilities
Core deposit intangible 275 336
Stock in FHLB of Topeka 165 151
Prepaid expense 176 154
Depreciation 89 112
Securities available for sale : 135 119
Total liabilities 840 872
¥ 1,322 § 047

Retained carnings at December 31, 2012 and 2011 include approximately $750 for which no deferred
income tax liability has been recognized. This amount represents an allocation of income to bad debt
deductions as of December 31, 1987 for tax purposes only. Reduction of amounts so allocated for
purposes other than tax bad debt losses or adjustments arising from carryback of net opetating losses
would create income for tax purposes only, which income would be subject to the then-current corporate
incore tax rate. The unrecorded deferred income tax Hability on the above amount was approximately
$255.

F-30




Madison County Financial, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
{Dollars in Thousands)

Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities, such as
commitments to extend credit, lines of credit and letters of credit, which are not included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of
nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments for commitments to extend credit, lincs
of credit and letters of credit is represcnted by the contractual or notional amount of those instruments.
The Company uses the same credit policies in making such commitments as it does for instruments that
are included in the consolidated balance sheet.

Financial instruments whose contract amount represents credit risk as of December 31, 2012 and 2011
were as follows;

December 31,
2012 2011
Commitments to extend credit $ 10,975 % 8,724
Lines of credit, primarily commercial 29,904 23,553
Commercial letters of credit 897 325

Commitments to extend credit and lines of credit are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is
no violation of any condition established in the coniract and a majority of such commitments are
contractually discretionary. at the discretion of the Company. These commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the
commercial letters of credit and a large amount of the lines of credit are expected to expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.
The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management's
credit evaluation. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and
equipment and income-producing commercial properties,

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party.

The Company sells residential loans with limited recourse to the FHLB of Topeka under the Mortgage
Partnership Finance program. The Company is obligated to repurchase certain loans sold that become
delinquent as defined by the agreement. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, these obligations were
approximatcly $3,510 and $1,959, Based upon a favorable payment history, the Company does not
anticipate any significant losses on these residential loans under the agreement. Based on historical loss
history and qualitative congiderations, a reserve was established in 2012 and has a balance of $40 at
December 31, 2012,
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Note 10: Regulatory Capital

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on
the Bank’s financial statements, Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier T capital to average assets (as defined).
Management believes, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the most recent notification from the OCC categorized the Bank as
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well
capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based and Tier I loverage
ratios as set forth in the table. Therc are no conditions or cvents since that notification that management
believes have changed the Bank’s category.

'The Bank’s actual and required capital amounts and ratios are as follows:

Te Be Well Capitalized

For Capital Under Prompt Corrective
Actyal Adequacy Purposes Aclion Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2012:
Total capital
{to risk weighted assets) 3 50,196 19.44% 20,653 8.00% 23,816 10.00%
Tier | capital
{to risk weighted assols) 46,948 18.19% 10,327 4.00% 15,480 6.00%
Tier 1 capital
{to average assets) 46,948 17.66% 7,976 3.00% 13,294 5.00%
As of December 31, 2011;
Tatal capital
{to risk weighted assets) $ 31,103 14.52% 17,142 8.00% 21427 10.00%
Tier 1 capital .
(10 risk weighted assels) 28,409 13.26% 8,571 4.00% 12,856 6.00%
Tigr 1 capitil ’ ’ C ' ’ ) T '
fto average assets) 28,400 11,98% 7113 3.00% 11,855 5.00%
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The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare without prior
regulatory approval. Generally, the Bank’s payment of dividends is limited to net income for the current
year plus the two preceding calendar years, less capilal distributions paid over the comparable time
period. Al December 31, 2012, approximately $7,117 of retained earnings were available for dividend
declaration without prior regulatory approval.

Note 11: Employee Benefits

The Company has a retirement savings 401(k) plan covering substantially all cmployees. Employees
may contribute up to 100% of their compensation, subject to limitations prescribed by law. The
Company contributes 3% of the employee’s compensation. Employer contributions charged to expense
was $93 and §76 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company has a salary continuation plan for the benefit of certain executive officers. The Bank is
funding the agreement with variable rate life insurance policies. The recorded obligation of $1,162 and
$1,021 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, is included in other liabilities. Expense of $141
and $130 was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. There were no
payments made during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In addition, the Company has a deferred compensation plan for the directors of the Company. The
recorded obligation of $235 and $208 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, is included in other
liabilities. Expense of $27 and $25 was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

The Company has also entered into employment and change in control agreements with certain officers
that provide for the severance payments and the continuation of certain benefits for a specificd period of
time under cettain conditions, Under the terms of the agreements, these payments could eccur in the
event of a change in control of the Company, as defined, along with other specific conditions. In the
event of involuntary termination, subject to certain criteria, the officer is entitled to payment of base
salary and certain benefits for the remaining term of the employment agreement, but in no event for a
period of less than 12 months following the date of termination. The severance paymenis under these
agreements are generally 2.99 times the bage salary of the officer in the event of a change in control.

As part of the conversion, the Bank established an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) covering
substantially all employees. The ESOP acquired 255,444 shares of Company common stock at $10 per
share in the conversion with funds provided by a loan from the Company. Accordingly, $2,554 of
cormumon stock acquired by the ESOP was shown as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. Shares are
released to participants proportionately as the loan is repaid. Compensation expense is recorded equal to
the fair market value of the stock when contributions, which are determined annually by the Board of
Directors, are made to the ESOP,
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The ESOP shares as of December 31, 2012, were as follows:

December 31,

2012
Allocated shares 10,218
Unearned shares 245,226
Total ESOP shares 255,444
Fair value of unearned shares at December 31, 2012 $ 4,022

At December 31, 2012, the fair value of the 10,218 allocated shares held by the ESOP is $168.

Note 12: Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share (EPS) were computed as follows:

2012

Net income i $ 646
Shares outstanding for basic EPS (;;

Average shares outstanding 785

Less: Average Unearned ESOP Shares 18
Shares outstanding for basic EPS 767
Additional dilutive shares
Share outstanding for diluted EPS 767
Basic earnings per share b 0.84
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.84

y Calculated from October 3, 2012, the cffective date of the conversion
and stock offering to the end of the period.
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Note 13: Related Party Transactions

The Company has entered into transactions with certain directors, executive officers and their affiliates _
or associates (related parties). Such transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on
substantially the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at
the same time for comparable transactions with other customers, and did not, in the opinion of
management, involve more than normal credit risk or present other unfavorable features. The aggregate
amount of loans to such related parties at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $687 and $482, net of loans
sold of $602 and $589, respectively. Deposits from related parties held by the Company at December
31, 2012 and 2011 totaled $945 and $1,972, respectively.

Note 14: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Topic 820 also specifies a fair valuc hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.
The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that arc observablo
or can be corroborated by cbservable market data for substantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities.

Level 3  Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

Recurring Measurements

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for instruments measured
at fair value, as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy,

Avaifable-for-Sale Securities

Where quoted market prices arc available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of
the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by
using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or discounted cash flows.
The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads,
cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus
prepayment speeds, credit information and the security’s terms and conditions. Additionally, matrix
pricing is used for certain investmont securities and is a mathematical fechnique widely used in the
banking industry to value investment securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for specific
investment securities but rather relying on the investment securities’ relationship to other benchmark
quoted investment securities. Level 1 securities include U, 8. Treasuries. Level 2 securities include
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federal agencies. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, securities are
classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.

The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets measured at fair value on a recurring
basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at
Decomber 31, 2012 and 2011:

December 31, 2012

Fair Yalue Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Stgnificant
Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Assets Inputs Inputs
Assets Value {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Available for sale:
U.S, Treasuries 5 500§ 500 § - % -
Federal agencies 8,482 - 8,482 -
$ 3,982 § 500§ 5,482 § -
December 31, 2011

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Assets Inputs Inputs.
Assets Value (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Available for sale:

U.5. Treasuries 3 501§ 500§ - % -
Federal agencies 9,727 - 9,727 -
$ 10,228 § 501 § 9,727 § -
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Nonrecurring Measurements

The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measuremonts
fall:

lair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observahble Unohservable
Fair Assets Inputs Inputs
Asscts Yalue (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

December 31,2012
Impaired loans $ _ 37 % - 3 - % 37
December 31, 2011
Impaired loans 3 14 § - % - % 14

Collateral-dependent Impaired Loans, Net of ALLL

The estimated fair value of collatcral-dependent impaired loans is based on the appraised fair value of
the collateral, less estimated cost to sell. Collateral-dependent impaired loans are classified within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Company considers the appraisal or evaluation as the starting point for determining fair value and
then considers other factors and events in the environment that may affect the fair value. Appraisals of
the collateral underlying collateral-dependent loans are obtained when the loan is determined to be
collateral-dependent and subsequently as deemed necessary by the Loan Committee. Appraisals are
reviewed for accuracy and consistency by the Loan Committee, Appraisers are selected from the list of
approved appraisers maintained by management. The appraised valucs are reduced by discounts to
consider lack of marketability and estimated cost to sell if repayment or saiisfaction of the loan is
dependent on the sale of the collateral. These discounts and estimates are developed by the Loan
Committee by comparison to historical results.
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Unobservable (Level 3) Inputs

The following table presents quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in recurring and
nonrecuzring Level 3 fair value measurements other than goodwill.

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Inputs ~ Weighted
December 31, 2012 Techiigue Average
Collateral-dependent $ 37  Market comparable Marketability discount 10%
impaired loans propertics

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Certificates of Deposit, Federal Home Loan Bank Stock,
Accrued Interest Receivable and Accrued Interest Payable

The carrying amount approximates fair value,

Held-to-maturity Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices, if available, If a quoted market price is not available, fair
value is estimated using quoted market pricos for similar sccurities.

Loans and Loans Held for Sale

The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the market rates at which
similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining
maturities, Loans with similar characteristics were aggregated for purposes of the calculations. The
carrying amount of accrued interest approximates its fair value.

Deposits

Deposits include checking and money market savings accounts. The carrying amount of these deposits
approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-maturity time deposits (certificates and other time
deposits) is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies the rates currently offered for
deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowings

Rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar terms and remaining maiurities are used
to estimate the fair value of existing debt. Fair value of long-term debt is based on quoted market prices
ot dealer quotes for the identical liability when traded as an asset in an active market. Ifa quoted market
price is not available, an expected present value technique is used to estimate fair value.
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The following table presents estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at
December 31, 2012,

Queted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
for 1dentical Obsgervable  Unobservable
Carrying Assets Inputs Tnputs
Amonnt (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

(Unaudited, In Thousands)
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,918 § 1918 § - % -
Certificates of deposit 1,500 1,500 - -
Held to maturity investiment securities 25,026 - 25,630 -
Loans held for sale 159 - 159 -
Loans, net 207,157 - - 220,196
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka 2.076 - 2076 -
Accrued interest receivable 3,845 - 3,845 -
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 195,187 166,912 - 28,497
Borrowings 6,300 - 6,617 -
Accrued interest payable 106 - 106 -

The {ollowing table presents estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31,
2011.

Carrying Fair
Amount Value
Financial agsets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,457 % 6,457
Certificates of deposit 250 250
Held te martority invesiment securities 15,402 15,854
Loans held for sale 621 621
Loans, net 188,953 198,499
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka 2,037 2,037
Accrued interest receivable 4,141 4,141
Financial liabilities:
Beposits {79,211 179,709
Borrewings 20,900 26,324
Acerued interest payable 165 165
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Note 15: Condensed Financial information (Parent Company Only)

Presented below is condensed financial information as to financial position, results of operations and

cash flows of the Company:

Condensed Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Other Assets
Investment in Bank

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Total liahilities and stockholders' equity

Condensed Statements of Income

Net income (loss) belore equity in

undistributed income of subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries
Net income

Comprehensive Income
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2012 2011
h) 13,374 % 69
20 |
48.661 30,061
5 62,064 § 30,131
$ 62,064 3§ 30,131

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011
] 33y ¢ (3

3,663 3,452
3 3630 § 3,449
3 3,660 § 3,587
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Operating Activities
Net income $ 3,630 3 3,449
Items not providing cash (3,448) (3,451)
Net cash used for eperating activities 182 (2)
Investing Activities - Investment in Bank (15,000) -
Financing Activities - Net proceeds from stock conversion 28,123 -
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,305 {2)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 69 71
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 3 13374 §$ 69

Note 16: Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company is an emerging growth company and as such will be subject to the effective dates noted
for the private companies if they differ from the effective dates noted for public companics.

FASB ASU 2013-02, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220); Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income '

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02 to improve the transparency of reporting
reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Other comprehensive income includes gains and losses that are initially excluded from net income for
an accounting period. Those gains and losses are later reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income into net income.

The amendments in the Update do not change the current requirements for reporting net income or
other comprehensive income in financial statements. All of the information that this Update requires
already is required to be disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements under 1.8, Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (U.S. GAAP),
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The new amendments will require an organization to:

Present (sither on the face of the statement where net income is presented or in the notes) the effects on
the line items of net income of significant amounts reclassified out of accunmlated other comprehensive
income—but only if the item reclassified is required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified to net income in
its entirely in the same reporting period.

Cross-reference to other disclosures currently required under U.S. GAAP for other reclassification
itemns (that are not required under U.S. GAAP) to be reclassified directly to net income in their entirety
in the same reporting period. This would be the case when a portion of the amount reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income is initially transferred to a balance sheet account (e.g.,
inventory for pension-related amounts) instead of directly to income or expense.

The amendments apply to all public and private companies that report items of other comprehensive
income. Public companies are required to comply with these amendments for all reporting periods
(interim and annual}. A private company is required to meet the reporting requirements of the amended
paragraphs about the roll forward of accumulated other comprehensive income for both interim and
annual reporting periods. However, private companies are only required to provide the information
about the impact of reclassifications on line items of net income for annual reporting periods, not for
interim reporting periods.

The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012, for public
companies and are effective for reporting periods boginning after December 15, 2013 for private
companies. The Company will adopt the provisions of the ASU by the date required, and does not
anticipate the ASU will have a material effect on its financial position or results of operations.

FASB ASU 2013-01, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offvetting
Assets and Liabilities

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scope of
Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. The Update clarifies the scope of transactions that
are subject to the disclosures about offsetting.

The Update clarifies that ordinary trade receivables and receivables are not in the scope of Accounting
Standards Update No. 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and
Liabilities. Specifically, Update 2011-11 applies only to derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse
purchase agreements, and securities borrowing and securities lending transactions that are either offset
in accordance with specific criteria contained in FASB Accounting Standards Codification or subject to
a master netting arrangement or similar agreement.

Issued in December 2011, Update 2011-11 was the result of a joint project with the International
Accounting Standards Board. Its objective was to improve transparency and comparability between
U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards by requiring enhanced disclosures about
financial instruments and derivative- instruments that are cither-(1Y-offset on the statement of-financial
position or (2) subjcct to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement.
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The Board undertook this clarification project in response to concerns expressed by U.S. stakeholders
aboul the standard’s broad definition of financial instruments After the standard was finalized,
companies realized that many contracts have standard commercial provisions that would equate to a
master netting arrangement, significantly increasing the cost of compliance at minimal value to
financial statement users. The amendments are cffeciive for fiscal year beginning on or after January 1,
2013, and interim periods within those atmual periods. Required disclosures should be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods presented. The Company does not anticipate the ASU will
have a material effect on its financial position or results of operations.

FASB ASU 2012-04, Technical Corrections and Improvements

In October 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-04, Technical Corrections and Improvements. The
amendments in this ASU make technical corrections, clarifications and limited-scope improvements to
various Topics throughout the Codification.

This ASU is effective for public entities for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2012. For
nonpublic entities, the amendments will be effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15,
2013. The Company does not anticipate the ASU will have a material effect on its financial position or
results of operations,

FASB ASU 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offvetting Assets and Liabilities

The eligibility criteria for offseiting are different in international financial reporting standards (IFRS)
and U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Offsetting, otherwise known as nefting, is
the presentation of assets and liabilities as a single net amount in the statement of financial position
(balance sheet). Unlike IFRS, U.S. GAAP allows companies the option to present net in their balance
sheets derivatives that are subject to a legally enforceable netting arrangement with the same party
where rights of set-off are only available in the event of default or bankruptcy.

To address these differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP, in January 2011 the FASB and the IASB
(the Boards) issued an exposure draft that proposed new criteria for netting, which were narrower than
the current conditions in U.S. GAAP. Nevertheless, in response to feedback from their respective
stakeholders, the Boards decided to retain their existing offsetting modcls. Instead, the Boards have
issued common disclosure requirements related to offsetting arrangements to allow investors {o better
compare financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS or U.S. GAAP.

The amendments to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification in this ASU require an entity to
disclose information about offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of its financial
statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its financial position. Coinciding with the
release of ASU No. 2011-11, the TASB has issued Disclosures—Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 7). This amendment requires disclosures about the
offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities common to those in ASU No. 2011-11.

Amn entity is required to apply the amendmients for aninual feporting petiods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013, and interim periods within those annual periods. If applicable, the Company will
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provide the disclosures required by those amendments retrospectively for all comparative periods
presented. The Company does not anticipate the ASU will have a material effect on its financial
position or results of operations.

FASB ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Reguirements in US. GAAP and IFRSs

The amendments included in this ASU change the wording used to describe many of the requirements
in U.S. GAAY for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements,
The application of fair value measurements are not changed as a result of this amendment. Some of the
amendments provide clarification of existing fair value measurements requirements while other
amendments change a particular principal or requirement for measuring fair value or disclosing
information about fair value measurements. The amendments in this ASU are effective for annual
periods beginning after December 31, 2012, ‘The Company does not anticipate the ASU will have a
material effect on its financial position or results of operations.

Note 17: Plan of Conversion and Change in Corporate Form

On October 3, 2012, Madison County Holding Company, MHC, the Bank’s former federally chartered
mutual holding company, consummated its mutual-to-stock conversion, and the Company
consummated its initial stock offering, In the Offering, the Company sold 3,193,054 shares of its _
common stock, par value $0.01 per share, at $10.00 per share in a subscription offering and |
community offering, including 255,444 shares, equal to 8.0% of the shares sold in the offering, (o the
Madison County Bank employee stock ownership plan.

The cost of conversion and the stock offering werc deferred and deducted from the proceeds of the
offering. Conversion costs incurred for the year ended December 31, 2012, were $1,254. No
conversion costs were incurred in 2011,

In accordance with applicable federal conversion regulations, at the time of the completion of the
mutual-to-stock conversion, we established a liquidation account in an amount equal to the Bank’s total
equity as of the lalest balance sheet date in the final prospectus used in the Conversion, Rach eligible
account holder or supplemental account holder is entitled to a proportionate share of this liquidation
account in the event of a complete liquidation of the Bank, and only in such event. This share will be
reduced if the eligible account holder’s or supplemental account holder’s deposit balance falls below the
amounts on the date of record as of any December 31 and will cease to cxist if the account is closed.
The liquidation account will never be increased despite any increase after Conversion in the related
deposit balance.

The Company may not declare, pay a dividend on, or repurchase any of its capital stock of the Bank, if
the effect thereof would cause retained earnings to be reduced below the liquidation account amount or
regulatory capital requirements. '
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made effective as of September 1,
2011 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Madison County Bank (the “Bank™) and David J.
Warnemunde (“Executive™),

WHEREAS, the Bank wishes to assure itself of the continued services of Executive for
the period provided in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to induce Executive to remain in the employ of the Bank and to
provide further incentive for Executive to achieve the financial and petformance objectives of
the Bank, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement; and -

WHEREAS, the Bank desires to set forth the rights and responsibilities of Executive and
the compensation payable to Executive, as modified from time to time.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and
upon the other terms and conditions hereinafter provided, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. POSITION AND RESPONSIBILITIES.

During the term of this Agreement, Exccutive agrees to serve as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Bank (the “Executive Position”), and will perform the duties and will
have all powers associated with such position as set forth in any job description provided to
Executive by the Bank, and as may be set forth in the bylaws of the Bank. During the period
provided in this Agreement, Executive also agrees to serve, if ¢lected, as an officer of any
subsidiary or affiliate of the Bank and in such capacity carry out such dufics and responsibilities
reasonably appropriate to that office.

2, TERM AND DUTIES.

(a) The term of this Agreement and the period of Executive's cmployment hereunder
shall begin as of the Effective Date and shall continue for thirty-six (36) full calendar months
thereafter. Commencing on the first anniversary of the Effective Date and continuing on each
anniversary date thereafter (the “Anniversary Date”), this Agrcement shall renew for an
additional year such that the remaining term shall be thirty-six (36) months, provided, however,
that in order for this Agreement to renew, the disinterested members of the Board of Directors of
the Bank (the “Board”) must take the following actions prior to each non-renewal nofice period
(as described in the next sentence): (i) at least sixty (60) days prior to the Anniversary Date,
conduct a comprehensive performance evaluation and review of Executive for purposes of
determining whether to extend this Agreement; and (ii) affirmatively approve the renewal or
non-renewal of this Agreement, which such decision shall be included in the minutes of the
Board’s meeting. If the decision of such disinterested members of the Board is not to renew this
Agreement, then the Board shall provide Executive with a written notice of non-renewal (“Non-
Ronewal Notice”) at least thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to any
Anniversary Date, such that this Agreement shall terminate at the end of twenty-four (24)
months following such Anniversary Date. - Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that at




any time prior to the Anniversary Date the Bank or the Bank’s stock holding company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) has entered into an agreement to effect a transaction
which would be considered a Change in Control as defined under Section 5 hereof, then the term
of this Agreement shall be extended for thirty-six (3 6) months following the date on which the
Change in Control occurs.

(b) During the period of his employment hercunder, cxeept for periods of absence
occasioned by illness, reasonable vacation periods, and reasonable leaves of absence, Executive
will devote all of his business time, attention, skill and efforts to the faithfial performance of his
duties under this Agreement, including activities and duties related to the Executive Position.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, subject to the approval of the Board, Executive may
serve as a member of the board of directors of business, community and charitable organizations,
provided that in each case such service shall not materially interfere with the performance of his
duties under this Agreement, adversely affect the reputation of the Bank or any other affiliates of
the Bank, or present any conflict of interest.

(©) Nothing in this Agreement shall mandate or prohibit a continuation of Executive’s
employment following the expiration of the term of this Agreement, upon such terms and
conditions as the Bank and Executive may mutually agree in writing,

3. COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND REIMBURSEMENT.

(@) In consideration of Executive’s performance of the responsibilities and duties set
forth in this Agreement, the Bank will provide Executive the compensation specified in this
Agreement. The Bank will pay Executive a salary of not less than $238,523.43 per year (“Base
Salary”). Such Base Salary will be payable in accordance with the customary payroll practices
of the Bank. During the term of this Agreement, Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed at
least annually. Such review shall be conducted by a Committee des gnated by the Board, and the
Board may increase, but not decrease (other than a decrease which is applicable to all senior
officers of the Bank and in a percentage not in excess of the percentage decrease for other senior
officers), Executive's Base Salary (any increase in Base Salary shall become the "Base Salary"
for purposes of this Agreement).

(b)  Executive shall be eligible to receive discretionary bonuses that are authorized
and declared by the Board to its sehior management employees from time to time. No other
compensation provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed a substitute for Executive’s right
to receive such discretionary bonuses as declared by the Board,

(c) Executive will be entitled to participate in all employee benefit plans,
arrangements and perquisites offered to senior management cmployees of the Bank. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing provisions of this Section 3(c), Executive also will be
entitled to participate in any employee benefit plans including but not limited to, bonus plans,
retirement plans, pension plans, profit-sharing plans, health-and-accident plans, or any other
employee benefit plan or arrangement made available by the Bank in the future to management
employees, subject to and on a basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall
administration of such plans and arrangements.




(d)  The Bank shall provide Exccutive with medical, dental, vision and disability
coverage made available by the Bank to its senior management employees, subject to and on a
basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of such coverage, In
addition, Executive may submit to a physical examination or examinations and such physicals
may be conducted by a health care provider of the Executive’s choice. The net cost of such
examinations, services and tests, after regular health insurance bencfits have been paid, shall be
paid by the Bank in their entirety, including reasonable trave] expenses. Such reimbursable
expenscs shall not exceed $15,000 per year.

(e} Executive will be entitled to paid vacation time each year during the term of this
Agreement measured on a calendar year basis, in accordance with the Bank’s customary
practices, as well as sick leave, holidays and other paid absences in accordance with the Bank’s
policies and procedures for senior management employees. Any unused paid time off during an
annual period will be treated in accordance with the Bank’s personnel policies as in effect from
time to time.

(f) The Bank will reimburse Executive for all reasonable travel, entertainment and
other reasonable expenses incurred by Executive during the course of performing his obligations
under this Agreement, including, without limitation, fees for memberships in such organizations
as Executive and the Board mutually agree are necessary and appropriate in connection with the
petformance of his duties under this Agreement, upon substantiation of such expenses in
accordance with applicable policies and procedures of the Bank. All reimbursements pursuant to
this Section 3(f) shall be paid promptly by the Bank and in any event no later than thirty (30)
days following the date on which the expense was incurred.

(2) To the extent not specifically set forth in this Section 3, any compensation

payable or provided under this Section 3 shall be paid ot provided no later than two and one-half

(2.5) months after the calendar year in which such compensation is no longer subject to a
 substantial risk of forfeiture within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(d).

4. TERMINATION AND TERMINATION PAY,

Subject to Section 5 of this Agreement which govemns the occurrence of a Change in
Control, Executive’s employment under this Agreement may be terminated in the following
circumstances:

(a) Death, Executive’s employment under this Agreement will terminate upon his
death during the term of this Agreement, in which event Executive’s cstate or beneficiary shall
be paid Executive’s Base Salary at the rate in effect at the time of Executive’s death for a period
of one (1) year following Executive’s death (payable in accordance with the regular payroll
practices of the Bank). In addition, for the later of} (i) the remaining term of this Agreement or
(i1) one (1) year following Executive’s death, the Bank will continue to provide non-taxable
medical and dental coverage substantially comparable to the coverage maintained by the Bank
for Executive and his family immediately prior to Executive’s death. Such continued benefits
will be fully paid for by the Bank.




(b)  Disability,

(i)

(ii)

Termination of Bxecutive’s employment based on “Disability” shafl mean
Exceutive becomes disabled or incapacitated to the extent that Executive
is unable to perform his duties under this Agreement, by reason of a
medically determinable physical or mental impairment, as determined bya
doctor engaged by the Board.

Tn the event of Executive’s termination of employment due to Disability,
Executive shall be entitled to receive disability benefits, if any, provided
under any disability plan sponsored by the Bank. In addition, the Bank
will continue to provide Executive (at no cost to the Executive) his non-
taxable medical and dental coverage substantially comparable to the
coverage maintained by the Bank for Executive immediately prior to his
date of termination until the later of: (i) the remaining term of this
Agreement; or (ii) date on which Executive attains age 65. If the Bank
cannot provide one or more of the benefits set forth in this Section 4(b)(ii)
because Executive is no longer an employee, applicable tules and
regulations prohibit such benefits or the payment of such benefiis in the
manner contemplated, or it would subject the Bank to penalties, then the
Bank shall pay Executive a cash lump sum payment reasonably estimated
to be equal to the value of such benefits or the value of the remaining
benefits at the time of such determination. Such cash payment shall be
made in a lump sum within thirty (30) days after the later of Executive’s
date of termination or the effective daie of the rules or regulations
prohibiting such benefits or subjecting the Bank to penalties.

(c) Termination for Cause.

@

The Board may by written notice to Executive in the form and manner
specified in paragraph (ii) below, immediately terminate his employment
at any time for “Cause” Executive shall have no right to receive
compensation or other benefits for any period after termination for Cause,
except for already vested benefits. Termination for Cause shall mean
termination because of, in the good faith determination of the Board,
Exccutive’s:

(A)  material act of dishonesty or fraud in performing Executive’s
duties on behalf of the Bank;

(B)  willful misconduct that in the judgment of the Board will likely
cause economic damage to the Bank or injury to the business
reputation of the Bank;




(i)

(C)  incompetence (in determining incompetence, the acts or omissions
shall be measured against standards generally prevailing in the
savings institutions industry);

(D)  breach of fiduciary duty involving personal profit;

(E)  intentional failure to perform stated duties under this Agreement
after written notice thereof from the Board;

(F)  willful violation of any law, rule or regulation (other than traffic
violations or similar offenses which results only in a finc or other
non-custodial penalty) that reflect adversely on the reputation of
the Bank, any felony conviction, any violation of law involving
moral turpitude, or any violation of a final cease-and-desist order;
any violation of the policies and procedures of the Bank as
outlined in the Bank’s employee handbook, which would result in
termination of the Bank employees, as from time to time amended
and incorporated hetein by reference, or

(G)  material breach by Executive of any provision of this Agreement,

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall not be decmed to have
been terminatod for Cause unless and until there shall have been delivered
to him a notice of termination which shall include a copy of a resolution
duly adopted by the affirmative vote of not lcss than a majority of the
disinterested members of the Board that Executive was guilty of the
conduct described above and specifying the particulars of such conduct.

(d)  Yolumtary Termination by Executive. I[n addition to his other rights to
terminate his employment under this Agreement, Bxecutive may voluntarily terminate
employment during the term of this Agreement (other than With Good Reason) upon at least
thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Board. Upon Executive’s voluntary termination,
Executive will receive only his compensation and vested rights and benefits as of the date of his

termination.

(e) Termination Without Causc or With Good Reason,

(@)

The Board may, by providing a Notice of Termination (as defined in
Section 6 hereof) to Executive, immediately terminate his employment at
any time for a reason other than Cause (a termination “Without Cause”),
and Executive may, by written notice to the Board, terminate this
Agreement at any time within ninety (90) days following an event
constituting “Good Reason,” as defined below (a termination “With Good
Reason”); provided, however, that the Bank shall have thirty (3 0) days to
cure the “Good Reason” condition, but the Bank may waive its right to
cure. Any termination of Executive’s employment, other than termination
for Cause shall have no effect on or prejudice the vested rights of
Executive under the Bank’s qualified or non-qualified retirement, pension,




(i)

(iii)

(iv)

savings, thrift, profit-sharing or bonus plans, group life, health (including

- hospitalization, medical and major medical), dental, accident and long

term disability insurance plans or other employee benefit plans or
programs, or compensation plans or programs in which Executive was a
participant.

In the event of Executive’s termination as described under Section 4(e)(i)
and subject to the requirements of Section 4(e)}(v), the Bank shall continue
to pay Executive, or in the event of Executive’s subsequent death,
Executive’s beneficiary or estate, as the case may be, as severance pay,
Executive’s Base Salary at the rate in effect as of his date of termination
for the later of: (A) remaining term of this Agreement or (B) twelve (12)
months. Such payment shall commence within thirty (30) days following
Executive’s date of termination and shall be payable in accordance with
the Bank’s regular payroll practices.

In addition, the Bank will continue to provide Executive with non-taxable
medical and dental insurance coverage substantially comparable to the
coverage maintained by the Bank for Executive immediately prior to his
date of termination at no cost to Executive. Such continued coverage shall
continue for the later of: (A) the remaining term of this Agreement or (B)
twelve (12) months. The period of continued health coverage required by
Section 4980B(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code”), shall run concurrently with the coverage period provided herein.
If the Bank cannot provide one or more of the benefits set forth in this
Section 4(e)(iii) because Exccutive is no longer an employee, applicable
rules and regulations prohibit such benefits or the payment of such
benefils in the manner contemplated, or it would subject the Bank to
penalties, then the Bank shall pay Executive a cash lump sum payment
reasonably estimated to be equal to the value of such benefits o the value
of the remaining benefits at the time of such determination. Such cash
payment shall be made in a lump sum within thirty (30) days after the later
of Executive’s date of termination or the effective date of the rules or
regulations prohibiting such benefits or subjecting the Bank to penalties.

“Good Reason” exists if, without Executive’s express written consent, any
of the following occurs:

(A a material reduction in Exccutive’s Base Salary or benefits
provided in this Agreement (other than a reduction or elimination
of Executive’s benefits under one or more benefit plans maintained
by the Bank as part of a good faith, overall reduction or
elimination of such plans or benefits applicable to all participants
in a manner that does not discriminate against Executive {cxcept as
such discrimination may be necessary to comply with applicable
law));




(v)

(B) a material reduction in PExecutive’s authority, duties or
responsibilities from the position and atfributes associated with the
Executive Position;

(C)  arelocation of Executive’s principal place of employment by more
than thirty-five (35) miles from the Bank’s main office location as
of the date of this Agreement; or

(D)  amaterial breach of this Agreement by the Bank,

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Execcutive shall not be entitled to any
payments or benefits under this Section 4(e) unless and until Executive
executes a release of his claims against the Bank and any affiliate, and
their officers, directors, successors and assigns, releasing said persons
from any and all claims, rights, demands, causes of action, suits,
arbitrations or grievances relating to the employment relationship,
including claims under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act
(“ADEA”), but not including claims for benefits under tax-qualified plans
or other benefit plans in which Executive is vested, claims for benefits
required by applicable Jaw or claims with respect to obli gations set forth in
this Agreement that survive the termination of this Agreement. In order to
comply with the requirements of Code Section 409A and the ADEA, the
release shall be provided to Executive no later than the date of his
Separation from Service (as defined below) and Executive shall have no
fewer than twenty-one (21) days to consider the release, and following
Executive’s execution of the release, Executive shall have seven (7) days
to revoke said release.

5. CHANGE IN CONTROL.

(a) Change in Control Defined. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change in
Control” shall mean (i) a change in the ownership of the Company or Bank, (ii) a change in the
effective control of the Company or Bank, or (iii) a change in the ownership of a substantial
portion of the assets of the Company or Bank, as described below.

(i)

(ii)

A change in the ownership of a corporation occuts on the date that any one
person, or more than cne person acting as a group (as defined in Treasury
Regulation 1.409A-3(i)(5)(v)(B)), acquires ownership of stock of the
Company or Bank that, together with stock held by such person or group,
constitutes more than fifty (50) percent of the total fair market value or
total voting power of the stock of such corporation. For these purposes, a
change in ownership will not be deemed to have occurred if no stock of
the Company or Bank is outstanding,

A change in the effective control of the Company or Bank occurs on the
date that either (A) any one person, or more than one person acting as a

- group (as defined in Treasury Regulation 1.409A-3(i)(5)(viXD)) acquires




(or has acquired during the twelve (12)-month period ending on the date of
the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) ownership of stock
of the Comparny or Bank possessing thirty (30) percent or more of the total
voting power of the stock of the Company or Bank, or (B) a majority of
the members of the Company’s or Bank’s board of directors is replaced
during any twelve (12)-month period by directors whose appointment or
election is not endorsed by a majority of the members of the Company’s
or Bank’s board of directors prior to the date of the appointment or
election, provided that this subsection “(B)” is inapplicable where a
majority shareholder of the Company or Bank is another corporation.

(iii} A change in a substantial portion of the Company’s or Bank’s assets
oceurs on the date that any one person or more than one person acting as a
group (as defined in Treasury Regulation L409A-3(1)(SHviiKC)) acquires
(or has acquired during the twelve (12)-month period ending on the date of
the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) assets from the
Company or Bank that have a total gross fair market value equal to or
more than forty (40) percent of the total gross fair market value of (A} all
of the agsets of the Company or Bank, or (B) the value of the assets being
disposed of, either of which is determined without regard to any liabilities
associated with such assets. For all purposcs hereunder, the definition of
Change in Control shall be construed to be consistent with the
requirements of Treasury Regulation 1.409A-3(i)(5), except to the extent
that such regulations are superseded by subsequent guidance.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Control shall not be deemed to have occurred
upon the conversion of Madison County Holding Company, MHC, a federal mutual corporation,
into the capital stock form of organization.

{b) Change in Control Benefits. In the event of Executive’s termination Without
Cause or With Good Reason occurring on or after, but within two (2) years following, a Change
in Control, Executive shall be paid an amount equal to one dollar less than the product of three
(3) times Executive’s “base amount” as defined in Section 280G(b)(3) of the Cede and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. Such payment shall commence within thirty (30) days
following Executive’s date of termination and shall be paid in periodic payments over the next
thirty-six (36) months in accordance with the regular payroll practices of the Bank. Such
payments shall be made in lieu of any other future payments which Executive would be
otherwise entitled to receive under Section 4(e)(ii) hereof. In addition, Executive shall be
entitled to receive the benefits set forth in Section 4(e)(i1i) hereof, provided however that the
release of claims requirement set forth in Section 4(e)(v) hereof shall not be required with
respect to any severance payments or benefits payable in accordance with this Section 5(b).

{c) 280G Cutback. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in
no event shall the aggregate payments or benefits to be made or afforded to Executive under this
Agreement , either as a stand-alone benefit or when aggregated with other payments to, or for the
benefit of, Executive that are contingent on a change in control (as defined under Section 280G
of the Code), constitute an “excess parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code or any




successor thereto, and in order to avoid such a result, Executive’s benefits hereunder shall be
reduced, if necessary, to an amount, the value of which is one dollar ($1.00) less than an amount

oqual to three (3) times Executive’s “base amount,” as determined in accordance with Section
280G of the Code.

6. NOTICE OF TERMINATION,

(a) Any purported termination by the Bank shall be communicated by Notice of
Termination to Executive. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Notice of Termination” shall
mean 4 written notice which shall indicate the specific termination provision in this Agrooment
relied upon and shall set forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide
a basis for termination of Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated.

(b)  If the party receiving a Notice of Termination desires to dispute or contest the
basis or reasons for termination, the party receiving the Notice of Termination must notify the
other party in writing within thirty (30) days after receiving the Notice of Termination that such a
dispute exists, and shall pursue the resolution of such dispute in good faith and with reasonable
diligence pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement. During the pendency of any such dispute,
the Bank shall not be obligated to pay Fxecutive Base Salary or other compensation beyond
Executive’s date of termination. Any amounts paid to Executive upon resolution of such dispute
under this Section shall be offset against or reduce any other amounis due under this Agreement.

7. COVENANTS OF EXECUTIVE.

(a) Confidentiality. Executive recognizes and acknowledges that the knowledge of
the business activities, plans for business activities, and all other proprietaty information of the
Bank, as it may exist from time to time, are valuable, special and unique assets of the business of
the Bank. Executive will not, during or afier the term of his employment, disclose any
knowledge of the past, present, planned or considered business activities or any other similar
proprietary information of the Bank to ay person, firm, corporation, or other entity for any
reason or purpose whatsoever uniess expressly authorized by the Board or required by law.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive may disclose any knowledge of banking, financial
and/or economic principles, concepts or ideas which are not solely and exclusively derived from
the business plans and activities of the Bank. Further, Executive may disclose information
regarding the business activities of the Bank to any bank regulator having regulatory jurisdiction
over the activities of the Bank pursuant to a formal regulatory request. In the event of a breach
or threatened breach by Executive of the provisions of this Section 7(a), the Bank will be entitled
to an injunction restraining Executive from disclosing, in whole or in part, the knowledge of the
past, present, planned or considered business activities of the Bank or any other similar
proprietary information, or from rendering any services to any petson, firm, corporation, or other
entity to whom such knowledge, in whole or in part, has been disclosed or is threatened to be
disclosed. Nothing herein will be construed as prohibiting the Bank from pursuing any other
remedies available to the Bank for such breach or threatened breach, including the recovery of
damages from Executive.

(b)  Information/Cooperation. Executive shall, upon reasonable notice, furnish such
information and assistance to the Bank as may be Teasonably required by the Bank, in connection




with any litigation in which it or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates is, or may become, a party;
provided, however, that Executive shall not be required to provide information or assistance with
respect to any litigation between Executive and the Bank or any other subsidiaries or affiliates.

(c) Reliance. Except as otherwise provided, all payments and benefits to Executive
under this Agreemont shall be subject to Executive’s compiiance with this Section 7, to the
extent applicable. The parties hereto, recognizing that irreparable injury will result to the Bank,
its business and property in the event of Executive’s breach of this Section 7, agree that, in the
event of any such breach by Executive, the Bank will be entifled, in addition to any other
remedies and damages available, to an injunction to restrain the violation heteof by Executive
and all persons acting for or with Exccutive. Executive represents and admits that Executive’s
experience and capabilities are such that Executive can obtain employment in a business engaged
in other lines of business than the Bank, and that the enforcement of a remedy by way of
injunction will not prevent Executive from earning a livelihood. Nothing herein will be
construed as prohibiting the Banic from pursuing any other remedies available to them for such
breach or threatened breach, including the recovery of damages from Exccutive,

8. SOURCE OF PAYMENTS.,

All payments provided in this Agreement shall be timely paid by check or direct deposit
from the general funds of the Bank (or any successor of the Bank).

9. EFFECT ON PRIOR AGREEMENTS AND EXISTING BENEFITS PLANS.

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto and
supersedes any prior employment agreement between the Bank or any predecessor of the Bank
and Executive, cxcept that this Agreement shall not affect or operate to reduce any benefit or
compensation inuring to Executive of a kind expressly provided elsewhere.

10.  NO ATTACHMENT; BINDING ON SUCCESSORS.

{(a) Except as required by law, no right to receive payments under this Agreement
shall be subject to anticipation, commutation, alienation, sale, assignment, cncumbrance, charge,
pledge, or hypothecation, or to execution, attachment, levy, or similar process or assignment by
operation of law, and any attempt, voluntary or involuntary, to affect any such action shall be
null, void, and of no effect.

(b) The Bank shall require any successor or assignee, whether direct or indirect, by
purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, to all or substantially all the business or assets of
the Bank, expressly and unconditionally to assume and agree 10 perform the Bank’s obligations
under this Agreement, in the same manner and to the same extent that the Bank would be
required to perform if no such succession or assignment had taken place.

1.  MODIFICATION AND WAIVER.

(a) This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an instrument in
writing signed by the parties hereto.
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(b)  No term or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived, nor
shall there be any estoppel against the enforcement of any provision of this Agreement, except
by written instrument of the party charged with such waiver or estoppel. No such written waiver
shall be deemed a continuing waiver unless specifically stated therein, and each such waiver
shall operate only as to the specific term or condition waived and shall not constitute a waiver of
such term or condition for the future as to any act other than that specifically waived.

12,  REQUIRED PROVISIONS.

(a) The Board may terminate Executive’s employment at any time, but any
termination by the Bank’s Board other than termination for Cause shall not prejudice Executive’s
right to compensation or other benefits under this Agreement. Executive shall have no right to
receive compensation or other benefits for any period after his termination for Cause.

(b)  If Executive is suspended from office and/or temporarily prohibited from
patticipating in the conduct of the Bank’s affairs by a notice served under Section 8(e}3)
(12 U.5.C. §1818(e)(3)) or &(g)(1) (12 U.S.C. §1818(g)(1)) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act,
the Bank’s obligations under this Agreement shall be suspended as of the date of service, unless
stayed by appropriate proceedings. If the charges in the notice are dismissed, the Bank may in
its discretion (i) pay Executive all or part of the compensation withheld while its Agreement
obligations were suspended and (ii} reinstate (in whole or in part) any of its obligations which
were suspended.

() If Executive is removed and/or permanently prohibited from participating in the
conduct of the Bank’s affairs by an order issued under Section 8(e)(4) (12 U.S.C. §1818(e)}4)) or
8(g)(1) (12 U.S.C. §1818(g)(1)) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, all obligations of the Bank
under this Agreement shall terminate as of the effective date of the order, but vested rights of the
contracting parties shall not be affected.

(d)  Ifthe Bank is in default as defined in Section 3(x)(1) (12 U.S.C. §1813(x)(1)) of
the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, all obligations of the Bank under this Agreement shall
terminate as of the date of default, but this paragraph shall not affect any vested rights of the
contracting parties.

{e) All obligations under this Agreement shall be terminated, except to the extent
determined that continuation of this Agreement is necessary for the continued operation of the
Bank: (i) by the Comptroller of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”) or his
or her designee, at the time the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) enters into
an agreement to provide assistance fo or on behalf of the Bank under the authority contained in
Section 13(¢c) (12 U.S.C. §1823(¢c)) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act; or (i) by the
Comptroller or his or her designee at the time the Comptroller or his or her designee approves a
supervisory merger to resolve problems related to operation of the Bank or when the Bank is
determined by the Comptroller to be in an unsafe or unsound condition. Any rights of the partics
that have already vested, however, shall not be affected by such action.

(f) Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, any payments to
Executive by the Company, whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, are subject to and
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conditioned upon their compliance with Section 18(k) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act,
12 U.8.C. Section 1828(k), and the regulations promulgated thereunder in 12 C.E.R. Part 359,

(g)  Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, Executive’s
employment shall not be deemed to have been terminated unless and until Executive has a
Separation from Service within the meaning of Code Section 409A. For purposes of this
Agreement, a “Separation from Service” shall have occurred if the Bank and Executive
reasonably anticipate that either no further services will be performed by Executive after the date
of termination (whether as an employee or as an independent contractor) or the level of further
services performed is less than twenty (20) percent of the average level of bona fide services in
the thirty-six (36) months immediately preceding the termination. For all purposes hersunder,
the definition of Separation from Service shall be interpreted consistent with Treasury
Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)(ii).

(h) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Executive is a “specified employee” (i.e., a
“key employee” of a publicly traded company within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code
and the final regulations issued thereunder) and any payment under this Agreement is triggered
due to Executive’s Separation from Service (other than due to Disability or death), then solely to
the extent necessary to avoid penalties under Section 409A of the Code, no payment shall be
made during the first six (6) months following Executive’s Separation from Service. Rather, any
payment which would otherwise be paid to Executive during such period shall be accumulated
and paid to Executive in a lump sum on the first day of the seventh month following such

Separation from Service. All subsequent payments shall be paid in the manner specified in this
Agreement,

13. SEVERABILITY.

If, for any reason, any provision of this Agrecment, or any part of any provision, is held
invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement or any patt of such
provision not held so invalid, and each such other provision and part thereof shall to the full
extent consistent with law continue in full force and effect.

14. GOVERNING LAW.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nebraska but only to the
extent not superseded by federal law.

15S.  ARBITRATION,

Any dispute or controversy arising under or in connection with this Agreement shall be
settled exclusively by binding arbitration, as an alternative to civil litigation and without any trial
by jury to resolve such claims, conducted by a single arbitrator mutually acceptable to the Bank
and Executive, sifting in a location selected by the Bank within fifty (50) miles from the main
office of the Bank, in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association’s
National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes then in effect. Judgment may be
entered on the atbitrator’s award in any court having jurisdiction.
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16. PAYMENT OF LEGAL FEES.

To the exient that such payment(s) may be made without triggering penalty under Section
409A of the Code, all reasonable legal fees paid or incurred by Executive pursuant to any dispute
relating to this Agreemcent shall be paid or reimbursed by the Bank, provided that the dispute is
resolved in Executive’s favor, and such reimbursement shall occur no later than sixty (60) days
after the end of the year in which the dispute is scttled or tesolved in Executive’s favor.

17. INDEMNIFICATION.

The Bank shall provide Executive (including his heirs, executors and administrators) with
coverage under a standard directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy at its expense, and
shall indemnify Executive (and his heirs, executors and administrators) to the fullest extent
permitted under applicable law against all expenses and liabilities reasonably incurred by him in
connection with or arising out of any action, suit or proceeding in which he may be involved by
reason of his having been a director or officer of the Bank or any subsidiary or affiliate of the
Bank (whether or not he continues to be a director or officer at the time of incurring such
expenses or liabilities), such expenses and liabilities to include, but not be limited to, judgments,
court costs and attorneys’ fees and the cost of reasonable settlements (such settlements must be
approved by the Board, as appropriate); provided, however, the Bank shall not be required to
indemnify or reimburse Exceutive for legal expenses or liabilities incurred in connection with an
action, suit or proceeding arising from any illegal or fraudulent act committed by Executive.
Any such indemnification shall be made consistent with Section 145.121 of the OCC
Regulations,

18. NOTICE.

For the purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications provided for in
this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 1o have heen duly given when delivered
or mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to
the respective addresses set forth below;

To the Bank Madison County Bank
111 West Third Street
P.O. Box 650
Madison , NE 68748

To Executive; David J. Warnemunde

Most recent address on file with the Bank
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
written above.

MADISON COUNTY BANK

By: /s/ Janet S, Irwin
Name: Janet 8. Trwin
Title: Vice President

EXECUTIVE

/s/ David J, Warnemunde
David J. Watrnemunde
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Exhibit 10,2

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made effective as of September 1,
2011 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Madison County Bank (the “Bank”) and Daniel A.
Fullner (“Executive™).

WHEREAS, the Banic wishes to assure itself of the continued services of Executive for
the period provided in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to induce Executive to remain in the employ of the Bank and to
provide further incentive for Executive to achicve the financial and performance objectives of
the Bank, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Bank desires to set forth the rights and responsibilities of Executive and
the compensation payable to Executive, as modified from time to time.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and
upon the other terms and conditions hereinafter provided, the parties hercby agree as follows:

1. POSITION AND RESPONSIBILITIES.

During the term of this Agreement, Executive agrees to serve as Senior Vice President,
Treasurer and General Counsel of the Bank (the “Executive Position™), and will perform the
duties and will have all powers associated with such position as set forth in any job degcription
provided to Executive by the Bank, and as may be set forth in the bylaws of the Bank. During
the period provided in this Agreement, Executive also agrees to serve, if elected, as an officer of
any subsidiary or affiliate of the Bank and in such capacity carry out such duties and
responsibilities rensonably appropriate to that office.

2. TERM AND DUTIES.

(a) The term of this Agreement and the period of Executive’s employment hereunder
shall begin as of the Effective Date and shall continue for thirty-six (36) full calendar months
thereafter. Commencing on the first anniversary of the Effective Date and continuing on each
anniversary date thereafter (the “Anniversary Date™), this Agreement shall tenew for an
additional year such that the remaining term shall be thirty-six (36) months, provided, however,
that in order for this Agrecment to renew, the disinterested members of the Board of Directors of
the Bank (the “Board”) must take the following actions prior to each non-renewal notice period
(as described in the next sentence): (i) at least sixty (60) days prior to the Anniversary Date,
conduct a comprchensive performance evaluation and review of Executive for purposes of
determining whether to extend this Agreement; and (i) affirmatively approve the renewal or
non-renewal of this Agreement, which such decision shall be included in the minutes of the
Board’s meeting. If the decision of such disinterested members of the Board is not to renew this
Agreement, then the Board shall provide Executive with a written notice of non-renewal (“Non-
Renewal Notice”) at least thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to any
Annivetsary Date, such that this Agreement shall terminate at the end of twenty-four (24)
months following such Anniversary Date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that at




any time prior to the Anniversary Date the Bank or the Bank’s stock holding company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) has entered into an agreement to effect a transaction
which would be considered a Change in Control as defined under Section 5 hereof, then the term
of this Agreement shall be extended for thirty-six (36) months following the date on which the
Change in Control occurs,

(b)  During the period of his employment hereunder, except for perfods of absence
occastoned by illness, reasonable vacation periods, and reasonable leaves of absence, Executive
will devote all of his business time, attention, skill and efforts to the faithful petformance of his
duties under this Agreement, including activities and duties related to the Executive Position.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, subject to the approval of the Board, Executive may
serve as a member of the board of directors of business, community and charitable organizations,
provided that in each case such service shall not materially interfere with the performance of his
duties under this Agreement, adversely affoct the reputation of the Bank or any other affiliates of
the Bank, or present any conflict of interest.

(c) Nothing in this Agreement shall mandate or prohibit a continuation of Executive’s
employment following the expiration of the term of this Agreement, upon such terms and
conditions as the Bank and Bxecutive may mutually agree in writing,

3. COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND REIMBURSEMENT.,

(@)  In consideration of Executive’s performance of the responsibilities and duties set
forth in this Agreement, the Bank will provide Executive the compensation specified in this
Agreement. The Bank will pay Executive a salary of not less than $100,123.01 per year (“Base
Satary”). Such Base Salary will be payable in accordance with the customary payroll practices
of the Bank. During the term of this Agreement, Executive’s Base Salary shall be reviewed at
least annually. Such review shall be conducted by a Committee designated by the Board, and the
Board may increase, but not decrease (other than a decrcase which is applicable to all senior
officers of the Bank and in a percentage not in excess of the percentage decrease for other senior
officers), Executive's Base Salary (any increase in Base Salary shall become the "Base Salary”
for purposes of this Agreement).

()  Executive shall be eligible to receive discretionary bonuses that are authorized
and declared by the Board to its senior management employees from time to time. No other
compensation provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed a substitute for Executive’s right
to receive such discretionary bonuses as declared by the Board.

(¢}  Executive will be entitled to participate in all employee benefit plans,
arrangements and perquisites offered to senior management employees of the Bank. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing provisions of this Section 3(c), Executive also will be
entitled to participate in any employee benefit plans including but not limited to, bonus plans,
retirement plans, pension plans, profit-sharing plans, health-and-accident plans, or any other
employee benefit plan or arrangement made available by the Bank in the future to management
employees, subject to and on a basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall
administration of such plans and arrangements,




{d) The Bank shall provide Executive with medical, dental, vision and disability
coverage made available by the Bank to its scnior management employees, subject to and on a
basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of such coverage. In
addition, Executive may submit to a physical examination or examinations and such physicals
may be conducted by a health care provider of the Executive’s choice. The net cost of such
examinations, services and tests, after regular health insurance benefits have been paid, shall be
paid by the Bank in their entirety, including reasonable travel expenscs. Such reimbursable
expenses shall not exceed $15,000 per year.

(e}  Executive will be entitled to paid vacation time each year during the term of this
Agreement measured on a calendar year basis, in accordance with the Bank’s customary
practices, as well as sick leave, holidays and other paid absences in accordance with the Bank’s
policies and procedures for senior management employees. Any unused paid time off during an
annual period will be treated in accordance with the Bank’s personnel policies as in effect from
time to time. '

(f) The Bank will reimburse Executive for all reasonable travel, entertainment and
other reasonable expenses incurred by Executive during the course of performing his obli gations
under this Agreement, including, without limitation, fees for memberships in such organizations
as Executive and the Board mutually agree are necessary and appropriate in connection with the
perfortnance of his duties under this Agreement, upon substantiation of such expenses in
accordance with applicable policies and procedures of the Bank. All reimbursements pursuant to

this Section 3(f) shall be paid promptly by the Bank and in any event no later than thirty (30)-

days following the date on which the expense was incurred.

(g) To the extent not specifically set forth in this Section 3, any compensation
payable or provided under this Section 3 shall be paid or provided no later than two and one-half
(2.5) months after the calendar year in which such compensation is no longer subject to a
substantial risk of forfeiture within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(d).

4. TERMINATION AND TERMINATION PAY.

Subject to Section 5 of this Agreement which govems the occurrence of a Change in
Control, Executive’s employment under this Agreement may be terminated in the following
circumstances:

(a) Death. Executive’s employment under this Agreement will terminate upon his
death during the term of this Agreement, in which event Executive’s estate or beneficiary shall
be paid Executive’s Base Salary at the rate in effect at the time of Executive’s death for a period
of one (1} year following Executive’s death (payable in accordance with the regular payroll
practices of the Bank). In addition, for the later of: (i) the remaining term of this Agreement or
(i) one (1) year following Executive’s death, the Bank will continue fo provide non-taxable
medical and dental coverage substantially comparable to the coverage maintained by the Bank
for Executive and his family immediately prior to Executive’s death. Such continued benefits
will be fully paid for by the Bank.




(b) Disability.

(i)

(ii)

Termination of Executive’s employment based on “Disability” shall mean
Executive becomes disabled or incapacitated to the cxtent that Exccutive
is unable to perform his duties under this Agreement, by reason of a
medically determinable physical or mental impairment, as determined by a
doctor engaged by the Board.

In the event of Executive’s termination of employment due to Disability,
Executive shall be entitled o receive disability benefits, if any, provided
under any disability plan sponsored by the Bank. In addition, the Bank
will continue to provide Executive (at no cost to the Executive) his non-
taxable medical and dental coverage substantially comparable to the
coverage maintained by the Bank for Executive immediately prior to his
date of termination until the later of: (i) the remaining term of this
Agreement; or (ii) date on which Executive attains age 65. If the Bank
cannot provide one or more of the benefits set forth in this Section 4(bXii)
because Executive is no longer an employee, applicable rules and
regulations prohibit such benefits or the payment of such benefits in the
manner contemplated, or it would subject the Bank to penalties, then the
Bank shall pay Executive 2 cash lump sum payment reasonably estimated
to be equal to the value of such benefits or the value of the remaining
benefits at the time of such determination. Such cash payment shall be
made in a lump sum within thirty (30) days after the later of Executive’s
date of termination or the effective date of the rules or regulations
prohibiting such benefits or subjecting the Bank to penalties.

{c) Termination for Cause.

()

The Board may by written notice to Executive in the form and manner
specified in paragraph (ii) below, immediately terminate his employment
al any time for “Cause” Executive shall have no right to receive
compensation or other benefits for any period after termination for Cause,
except for already vested benefits. Termination for Cause shall mean
termination because of, in the good faith determination of the Board,
Executive’s;

(A)  material act of dishonesty or fraud in performing Executive’s
duties on behalf of the Bank;

(B)  willful misconduct that in the judgment of the Board will likely
cause economic damage to the Bank or injury to the business
reputation of the Banlk;




(ii)

(C)  incompetence (in determining incompetence, the acts or omissions
shall be measured against standards generally prevailing in the
savings institutions industry);

(D)  breach of fiduciary duty involving personal profit;

(E)  intentional failure to perform stated duties under this Agreement
after written notice thereof from the Board;

(F)  willful viclation of any faw, rule or regulation (other than traffic
violations or similar offenses which results only in a fine or other
non-custodial penaity) that reflect adversely on the reputation of
the Bank, any felony conviction, any violation of law involving
moral turpitude, or any violation of a final cease-and-desist order;
any violation of the policies and procedures of the Bank ag
outlined in the Bank’s employec handbook, which would result in
termination of the Bank employees, as from time to time amended
and incorporated herein by reference, or

(G)  material breach by Exccutive of any provision of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall not be deemed to have
been terminated for Cause unless and until there shall have been delivered
to him a notice of termination which shall include a copy of a resolution
duly adopted by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the
disinterested members of the Board that Executive was guilty of the
conduct described above and specifying the particulars of such conduct.

(d)  Yoluntary Termination by Executive. In addition to his other rights to
terminate his employment under this Agreement, Executive may voluntarily terminate
employment during the term of this Agreement (other than With Good Reason) upon at least
thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Board. Upon Executive’s voluntary termination,
Executive will receive only his compensation and vested rights and benefits as of the date of his

termination.

(e) Termination Without Cause or With Good Reason.

®

The Board may, by providing a Notice of Termination (as defined in
Section 6 hereof) to Executive, immediately terminate his employment at
any time for a reason other than Cause (a termination “Without Cause”),
and Executive may, by written notice to the Board, terminate this
Agreement at any time within ninety (90) days following an event
constituting “Good Reason,” as defined below (a termination “With Good
Reason™); provided, howcver, that the Bank shall have thirty (30) days to
cure the “Good Reason” condition, but the Bank may waive its right to
cure. Any termination of Executive’s employment, other than termination
for- Cause shall have no effect on or prejudice the vested rights of
Executive under the Bank’s qualified or non-qualified retirement, pension,

ORI




(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

savings, thrift, profit-sharing or bonus plans, group life, health (including
hospitalization, medical and major medical), dental, accident and long
tettn disabilily insurance plans or other employee benefit plans or
programs, or compensation plans or programs in which Executive was a
participant.

- In the event of Executive’s termination as described under Section 4(¢)(i)

and subject to the requirements of Section 4(e)(v), the Bank shall continue
to pay Exccutive, or in the event of Executive’s subsequent death,
Executive’s beneficiary or estate, as the case may be, as severance pay,
Executive’s Base Salary at the rate in effect as of his date of termination
for the later of: (A) remaining term of this Agreement or (B) twelve (12)
months. Such payment shall commence within thirty (30) days following
Executive’s date of termination and shall be payable in accordance with
the Bank’s regular payroll practices.

In addition, the Bank will continue to provide Executive with non-taxable
medical and dental insurance coverage substantially comparable to the
coverage maintained by the Bank for Executive immediately prior to his
date of termination at no cost to Executive. Such continued coverage shall
continue for the later of: (A) the remaining term of this Agreement or (B)
twelve (12) months. The period of continued health coverage required by
Section 4980B(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code”), shall run concurrently with the coverage period provided herein.
If the Bank cannot provide one or more of the benefits set forth in this
Section 4(e)(iii) because Executive is no longer an employee, applicable
rules and regulations prohibit such benefits or the payment of such
benefits in the manner contemplated, or it would subject the Bank to
penalties, then the Bank shall pay Executive a cash lump sum payment
reasonably estimated to be equal to the value of such benefits or the value
of the remaining benefits at the time of such determination. Such cash
payment shall be made in a lump sum within thirty {30) days after the later
of Executive’s date of termination or the effective date of the rules or
regulations prohibiting such benefits or subjecting the Bank to penalties.

“Good Reason” exists if, without Executive’s express written consent,
any of the following occurs:

{A) a material reduction in Executive’s Base Salary or benefits
provided in this Agreement (other than a reduction or elimination
of Executive’s benefits under one or more benefit plans maintained
by the Bank as part of a good faith, overall reduction or
elimination of such plans or benefits applicable to all participants
in a manner that does not discriminate against Executive (except as
such discrimination may be necessary to comply with applicable
law));




(v}

(B) a material reduction in Executive’s authority, duties or
responsibilities from the position and attributes associated with the
Executive Posilion;

(C)  arelocation of Executive’s principal place of employment by morc
than thirty-five (35) miles from the Bank’s main office location as
of the date of this Agreement: or

(D) amaterial breach of this Agreement by the Bank.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall not be entitled to any
payments or benefits under this Section 4(e) unless and until Executive
executes a release of his claims against the Bank and any affiliate, and
their officers, directors, successors and assigns, releasing said persons
from any and all claims, rights, demands, causes of action, suits,
arbitrations or grievances relating to the cmployment relationship,
including claims under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act
("ADEA”™), but not including claims for benefits under tax-qualified plans
or other benefit plans in which Executive is vested, claims for benefits
required by applicable law or claims with respect to obligations set forth in
this Agreement that survive the termination of this Agreement. In order to
comply with the requirements of Code Section 409A and the ADEA, the
release shall be provided to Executive no later than the date of his
Separation from Service (as defined below) and Executive shall have no
fewer than twenty-onc (21) days to consider the release, and following
Executive’s execution of the release, Executive shall have seven (7) days
to revoke said release.

5. CHANGE IN CONTROL.

(a) Change in Control Defined. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change in
Control” shall mean (i) a change in the ownership of the Company or Bank, (ii) a change in the
effective control of the Company or Bank, or (iii) a change in the ownership of a substantial
portion of the assets of the Company or Bank, as described below.

&

(i)

A change in the ownership of a corporation occurs on the date that any onc
person, or morc than one person acting as a group (as defined in Treasury
Regulation 1.409A-3()(5)(v)(B)), acquites ownership of stock of the
Company or Bank that, together with stock held by such person or group,
constitutes more than fifty (50) percent of the total fair market value or
total voting power of the stock of such corporation. For these purposes, a
change in ownership will not be deemed to have occurred if no stock of
the Company or Bank is outstanding,

A change in the effective control of the Company or Bank occurs on the
date that either (A) any onc petson, or more than one person acting as a
group (as defined in Treasury Regulation 1.409A-3(i}5)(vi)(D)) acquires




(or has acquired during the twelve (12)-month period ending on the date of
the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) ownership of stock
of the Company or Bank possessing thirty (30) percent or more of the total
voting power of the stock of the Company or Bank, or (B) a majority of
the members of the Company’s or Bank’s board of directors is replaced
during any twelve (12)-month period by directors whose appointment or
election is not endorsed by a majority of the members of the Company’s
or Bank’s board of directors prior to the date of the appointment or
election, provided that this subsection “(B)” is inapplicable where a
majority shareholder of the Company or Bank is another corporation.

(iii) A change in a substantial portion of the Company’s or Bank’s assets
occurs on the date that any one person or more than one petson acting as a
group (as defined in Treasury Regulation 1.409A-3(1)(5)(vii)(C)) acquires
(or has acquired during the twelve (12)-month period ending on the date of
the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) assets from the
Company or Bank that have a total gross fair market value equal to or
more than forty (40) percent of the total gross fair market value of (A) all
of the assets of the Company or Bank, or (B) the value of the assets being
disposed of, either of which is determined without regard to any liabilities
associated with such assets. For all purposes hereunder, the definition of
Change in Control shall be construed to be consistent with the
requirements of Treasury Regulation 1.409A-3(i)(5), except to the extent
that such regulations are superseded by subsequent guidance.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Control shall not be deemed to have occurred
upon the conversion of Madison County Holding Company, MHC, a federal mutual corporation,
into the capital stock form of organization.

(b)  Change in Control Benefits, In the event of Executive’s tormination Without
Cause or With Good Reason oceurring on or after, but within two (2) years following, a Change
in Control, Executive shall be paid an amount equal to one dollar less than the product of three
(3) times Executive’s “base amount” as defined in Section 280G(b)(3) of the Code and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. Such payment shall commence within thirty (30) days
following Executive’s date of termination and shall be paid in periodic payments over the next
thirty-six (36) months in accordance with the regular payroll practices of the Bank. Such
payments shall be made in lieu of any other future payments which Executive would be
otherwise entitled to receive under Section 4(e)(ii) hereof. In addition, Executive shall be
entitled to receive the benefits set forth in Section 4(e)(iii) hereof, provided however that the
release of claims requirement set forth in Section 4(e)(v) hereof shall not be required with
respect to any severance payments or benefits payable in accordance with this Section 5(b).

(c) 280G Cutback. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in
no event shall the aggregate payments or benefits to be made or afforded to Executive under this
Agreement , either as a stand-alone beneftt or when aggregated with other payments to, or for the
benefit of, Executive that are contingent on a change in control (as defined under Section 280G
of the Code), constitute an “excess parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code or any




successor thereto, and in order to avoid such a result, Executive’s benefits hereunder shall be
reduced, if necessary, to an amount, the value of which is one dollar ($1.00) less than an amount

equal fo three (3) times Executive’s “base amount,” as determined in accordance with Section
280G of the Code.,

6. NOTICE OF TERMINATION,.

(a) Any purported termination by the Bank shall be communicated by Notice of
Termination to Executive. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Notice of Termination” shall
mean a written notice which shall indicate the specific termination provision in this Agreement
relied upon and shall set forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide
a basis for termination of Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated.

(b)  If the party receiving a Notice of Termination desires to dispute or contest the
basis or reasons for termination, the party receiving the Notice of Termination must notify the
other party in writing within thirty (30) days after receiving the Notice of Termination that such a
dispute cxists, and shall pursue the resolution of such dispute in good faith and with reasonable
diligence pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement. During the pendency of any such dispute,
the Bank shall not be obligated to pay Executive Basc Salary or other compensation beyond
Exccutive’s date of termination. Any amounts paid to Executive upon resolution of such dispute
under this Section shall be offset against or reduce any other amounts due under this Agreement.

7. COVENANTS OF EXECUTIVE,

{a) Confidentiality. Executive recognizes and acknowledges that the knowledge of
the business activities, plans for business activities, and all other proprietary information of the
Bank, as it may exist from time to time, are valuable, special and unique assets of the business of
the Bank. Executive will not, during or after the term of his employment, disclose any
knowledge of the past, present, planned or considered business activities or any other similar
proprietary information of the Bank to any person, firm, corporation, or other entity for any
reason or purpose whatsoever unless expressly authorized by the Board or required by law.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive may disclose any knowledge of banking, financial
and/or economic principles, concepts or ideas which are not solely and exclusively derived from
the business plans and activities of the Bank. Further, Executive may disclose information
regarding the business activities of the Bank to any bank regulator having regulatory jurisdiction
over the activities of the Bank pursuant to a formal regulatory request. In the event of a breach
or threaiened breach by Executive of the provisions of this Section 7(a), the Bank will be entitled
to an injunction restraining Executive from disclosing, in whole or in part, the knowledge of the
past, present, planned or considered business activities of the Bank or any other similar
proprietary infermation, or from rendering any services to any person, firm, corporation, or other
entity to whom such knowledge, in whole ot in part, has been disclosed or is threatened to be
disclosed. Nothing herein will be construed as prohibiting the Bank from pursuing any other
remedies available to the Bank for such breach or threatened breach, including the recovery of
damages from Executive.

(b) Information/Cooperation. Executive shall, upon reasonable notice, furnish such
information and assistance to the Bank as may be reasonably required by the Bank, in connection




with any litigation in which it or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates is, or may become, a party;
provided, however, that Executive shall not be required to provide information or assistance with
respect to any litigation between Executive and the Bank or any other subsidiaries or affiliates,

{c) Reliance. Except as otherwise provided, all payments and benefits to Executive
under this Agreement shall be subject to Executive’s compliance with this Section 7, to the
extent applicable. The parties hereto, recognizing that irreparable injury will result to the Bank,
its business and property in the event of Executive’s breach of this Section 7, agree that, in the
event of any such breach by Executive, the Bank will be entitled, in addition to any other
remedies and damages available, to an injunction to restrain the violation hereof by Executive
and all persons acting for or with Exccutive. Executive represents and admits that Executive’s
experience and capabilities are such that Executive can obtain employment in a business engaged
in other lines of business than the Bank, and that the enforcement of a remedy by way of
injunction will not prevent Executive from earning a livelihood. Nothing herein will be
construed as prohibiting the Bank from pursuing any other remedies available to them for such
breach or threatened breach, including the recovery of damages from Executive.

8. SOURCE OF PAYMENTS.

All payments provided in this Agreement shall be timely paid by check or direct deposit
from the general funds of the Bank (or any successor of the Bank).

9. EFFECT ON PRIOR AGREEMENTS AND EXISTING BENEFITS PLANS.

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto and
supersedes any priot employment agreement between the Bank or any predecessor of the Bank
and Executive, except that this Agreement shall not affect or operate to reduce any benefit or
compensation inuring to Executive of a kind expressly provided elsewhere.

10.  NO ATTACHMENT; BINDING ON SUCCESSORS.

(a) Except as required by law, no right to receive payments under this Agreement
shall be subject to anticipation, commutation, alienation, sale, assignment, encumbrance, charge,
pledge, or hypothecation, or to execution, attachment, levy, or similar process or assignment by
operation of law, and any attempt, voluntary or involuntary, 1o affect any such action shall be
null, void, and of no effect.

(b) The Bank shall require any successor or assignee, whether direct or indirect, by
purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, to all or substantially all the business or assets of
the Bank, expressly and unconditionally to assume and agree to perform the Bank’s obligations
under this Agreement, in the same manner and to the same extent that the Bank would be
required to perform if no such succession or assignment had taken place.

11.  MODIFICATION AND WAIVER.

(a) This Agreoment may not be modified or amended except by an instrument in
writing signed by the parties hereto..
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(b) No term or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived, nor
shall there be any estoppel against the enforcement of any provision of this Agreement, except
by written instrument of the party charged with such waiver or estoppel. No such written waiver
shall be deemed a continuing waiver unless specifically stated therein, and each such waiver
shall operate only as to the specific term or condition waived and shall not constitute a waiver of
such term or condition for the future as to any act other than that specifically waived.

12. REQUIRED PROVISIONS.

(a) The Board may terminate Executive’s employment at any time, but any
termination by the Bank’s Board other than termination for Cause shall not prejudice Fxecutive’s
right to compensation or other benefits under this Apreement. Executive shall have no right to
receive compensation or other benefits for any period after his termination for Cause.

(b)  If Executive is suspended from office and/or temporarily prohibited from
patticipating in the conduct of the Bank’s affairs by a notice served under Section 8(¢)(3)
(12 U.S.C. §1818(e)(3)) or 8(g)(1) (12 U.S,C. §1818(g)(1)) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act,
the Bank’s obligations under this Agreement shall be suspended as of the date of service, unless
stayed by appropriate proceedings. If the charges in the notice are dismissed, the Bank may in
its discretion (i) pay Executive all or part of the compensation withheld while its Agreement
obligations were suspended and (ii) reinstate (in whole or in part) any of its obligations which
were suspended.

(c) It Executive is removed and/or permanently prohibited from participating in the
conduct of the Bank’s affairs by an order issued under Section 8(e)(4) (12 U.S.C. §1818(e)(4)) or
8(g)(1) (12 U.8.C. §1818(g)(1)) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, all obligations of the Bank
under this Agreement shall terminate as of the effective date of the order, but vested rights of the
contracting parties shall not be affected.

(d) If the Bank is in default as defined in Scction 3(x}(1) (12 U.S.C. §1813(x)(1)) of
the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, all obligations of the Bank under this Agreement shall
terminate as of the date of default, but this paragraph shall not affect any vested rights of the
contracting parties,

(e) All obligations under this Agreement shall be terminated, except to the extent
determined that continuation of this Agreement is necessary for the continued operation of the
Bank: (i) by the Comptroller of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”) or his
or her designee, at the time the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) enters into
an agreement to provide assistance to or on behalf of the Bank under the authority contained in
Section 13(c) (12 U.S.C. §1823(c)) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act: or (ii) by the
Comptrolier or his or her designee at the time the Comptroller or his or her designee apptoves a
supervisory merger to resolve problems related to operation of the Bank or when the Bank is
determined by the Comptroller to be in an unsafe or unsound condition. Auny rights of the parties
that have already vested, however, shall not be affected by such action.

() Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, any payments to
Executive by the Company, whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise; are subject to and
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conditioned upon their compliance with Section 18(k) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act,
12 U.8.C. Section 1828(k), and the regulations promulgated thereunder in 12 C.F.R. Part 359,

(2) Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, Executive’s
employment shall not be deemed to have been terminated unless and until Executive has a
Separation from Service within the meaning of Code Section 409A. For purposes of this
Agreement, a “Separation from Service” shall have occurred if the Bank and Executive
reasonably anticipate that either no further services will be performed by Executive after the date
of termunation {whether as an employee or as an independent contractor) or the level of further
services performed is less than twenty (20) percent of the average level of bona fide services in
the thirty-six (36) months immediately preceding the termination. For all purposes hercunder,
the definition of Separation from Scrvice shall be interpreted consistent with Treasury
Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)(ii).

(h)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Executive is a “specified employec” (i.e., a
“key employee” of a publicly traded company within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code
and the final regulations issued thereunder) and any payment under this Agreement is triggered
due to Executive’s Separation from Service {other than due to Disability or death), then solely to
the extent necessary to avoid penalties under Section 409A of the Code, no payment shall be
made during the first six (6) months following Executive’s Separation from Service. Rather, any
payment which would otherwise be paid to Executive during such petiod shall be accumulated
and paid to Executive in a lump sum on the first day of the seventh month following such

Separation from Service. All subsequent payments shall be paid in the manner specified in this
Agreement,

13. SEVERABILITY.

If, for any reason, any provision of this Agreement, or any part of any provision, is held
invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement or any part of such
provision not beld so invalid, and each such other provision and part thereof shall to the full
extent consistent with law continue in full force and effect.

14. GOVERNING LAW,

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nebraska but only to the
extent not superseded by federal law.

15. ARBITRATION.

Any dispute or controversy arising under or in connection with this Agreement shall be
settled exclusively by binding arbitration, as an alternative to civil litigation and without any ftrial
by jury to resolve such claims, conducted by a single arbitrator mutually acceptable to the Bank
and Executive, sitting in a location selected by the Bank within fifty (50) miles from the main
office of the Bank, in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association’s
National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes then in effect. Judgment may be
entered on the arbitrator’s award in any court having jurisdiction.
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16. PAYMENT OF LEGAL FEES.

To the extent that such payment(s) may be made without triggering penalty under Section
409A of the Code, all reasonable legal fees paid or incurred by Executive pursuant to any dispute
relating to this Agreement shall be paid or reimbursed by the Bank, provided that the dispute is
resolved in Executive’s favor, and such reimbursement shall occur no later than sixty (60} days
after the end of the year in which the dispute is settled or resolved in Executive’s favor.

17. INDEMNIFICATION.

The Bank shall provide Executive (including his heirs, executors and administrators) with
coverage under a standard directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy at its expense, and
shall indemnify Executive (and his heirs, executors and administrators) to the fullest extent
permitted under applicable law against all expenses and liabilities reasonably incurred by him in
connection with or arising out of any action, suit or proceeding in which he may be involved by
reason of his having been a director or officer of the Bank or any subsidiary or affiliate of the
Bank (whether or not he continues to be a director or officer at the time of incurring such
expenses or liabilities), such expenses and liabilities to include, but not be limited to, judgments,
court costs and attorneys’ fees and the cost of reasonable settlements (such settlements must be
approved by the Board, as appropriate); provided, however, the Bank shall not be required to
indemnify or reimburse Executive for legal expenses or liabilities incurred in connection with an
action, suit or proceeding arising from any illegal or traudulent act committed by Executive.
Any such indemnification shall bc made consistent with Section 145.121 of the OCC
Regulations,

18. NOTICE.

For the purposes of this Agrcement, notices and all other communications provided for in
this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered

or mailed by cettified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to
the respective addresses set forth below:

To the Bank Madison County Bank
111 West Third Street
P.O. Box 650
Madison , NE 68748

To Exccutive: Daniel A, Fullner
Most recent address on file with the Bank
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
written above.

MADISON COUNTY BANK
By: /s/ Janet S. Irwin

Name: Janet S. Irwin
Title: Vice President

EXECUTIVE

/s/ Daniel A. Fullner
Daniel A. Fullner
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Subsidiary Ownership State of Incorporation
Madison County Bank 100% Federal

SUBSIDIARIES OF MADISON COUNTY BANK

Subsidiary Ownership State of Incorporation
Bush and Roe Financial, Ine, 100% Nebraska
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EXHIBITS 31.1 AND 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION
302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
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Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, David ], Warnemunde, certify that:

L.

[ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Madison County Financial, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 5{e) and 15d-15(e)) for
the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectivencss of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the petiod covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporiing
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an anmual report) that has materially aflected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's intornal conirol over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the andit committee of the
registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivatent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and repott financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 28, 2013 {8/ David J. Warnemunde

Date David J. Warnemunde

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Brenda L. Borchers, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Madison County Financial, Inc.;

2, Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledgo, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
tepor, fairly present in all material respecis the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and T are responsible for establishing and mainfaining

' disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for
the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporfing
that occurted during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (ihe registrant's fourth fiscal
quartet in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrani's internal control over financial reporting; and

5 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal ¢ontrol over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  allsi gnificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report tinancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invol ves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

March 28, 2013 /s/ Brenda L. Borchers

Date Brenda L. Borchers

Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
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Certification pursuant to
18 U.8.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

David J. Warnemunde, President and Chief Executive Officer and Brenda L. Borchers, Chief Financial
Officer of Madison County Financial, Inc. {the “Company”™) each certify in their capacity as officers of
the Company that they have reviewed the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K. for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and that to the best of their knowledge:

(1} the Report fully complies with the requircments of Sections 13(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

March 28, 2013 f8/ David J. Warnemunde
Date David J. Warnemunde
President and Chief Executive Officor

March 28. 2013 s/ Brenda L. Borchers
Date Brenda L. Borchers
Chief Financial Officer
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